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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)

xx QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Quarterly Period Ended March 31, 2005

or

oo TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File No. 1-10410

HARRAH��S ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware I.R.S. No. 62-1411755
(State of Incorporation) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

One Harrah��s Court
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

(Current address of principal executive offices)

(702) 407-6000
(Registrant�s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes x No o

As of April 29, 2005, there were 113,928,203 shares of the Company�s Common Stock outstanding.

PART I��FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

The accompanying unaudited Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements of Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc., a Delaware corporation,
have been prepared in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q and, therefore, do not include all information and notes necessary for
complete financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States. The results for the periods
indicated are unaudited, but reflect all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) that management considers necessary for
a fair presentation of operating results. Results of operations for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of a full year of operations.
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These Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes
thereto included in our 2004 Annual Report to Stockholders.
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HARRAH��S ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

(UNAUDITED)

Mar. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2004

(In millions, except share amounts)
ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 436.3 $ 489.0
Receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $49.7 and $48.6 127.6 130.5
Deferred income taxes 30.1 30.1
Income tax receivable 22.0 46.0
Prepayments and other 71.1 66.0
Inventories 23.3 25.6

Total current assets 710.4 787.2
Land, buildings, riverboats and equipment 6,714.0 6,520.7
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,838.2) (1,775.7)

4,875.8 4,745.0
Assets held for sale (Notes 1 and 10) 503.3 502.6
Goodwill (Notes 3 and 4) 1,354.3 1,354.7
Intangible assets (Notes 3 and 4) 857.9 861.4
Deferred costs and other 328.5 334.7

$ 8,630.2 $ 8,585.6

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS�� EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 149.2 $ 174.5
Accrued expenses 635.7 577.7
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 6) 1.8 1.8

Total current liabilities 786.7 754.0
Liabilities held for sale (Notes 1 and 10) 0.6 0.8
Long-term debt (Note 6) 5,025.2 5,151.1
Deferred credits and other 199.8 198.5
Deferred income taxes 416.3 413.5

6,428.6 6,517.9
Minority interests (Note 4) 33.4 32.5
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4, 6, 8 and 9)

Stockholders� equity (Notes 2, 4 and 5)
Common stock, $0.10 par value, authorized�720,000,000 shares,

outstanding�113,880,165 and 112,732,285 shares (net of 36,137,415 and
36,130,542 shares held in treasury) 11.4 11.3

Capital surplus 1,455.2 1,394.5
Retained earnings 704.7 638.4
Accumulated other comprehensive income 5.3 1.0
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Deferred compensation related to restricted stock (8.4) (10.0)
2,168.2 2,035.2

$ 8,630.2 $ 8,585.6

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements.

3

HARRAH��S ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(UNAUDITED)

First Quarter Ended March 31,
2005 2004

(In millions, except per share amounts)
Revenues

Casino $ 1,136.0 $ 897.8
Food and beverage 174.5 154.6
Rooms 102.0 92.1
Management fees 15.4 14.5
Other 58.0 47.7
Less: casino promotional allowances (228.7) (194.3)

Total revenues 1,257.2 1,012.4
Operating expenses

Direct
Casino 566.8 454.7
Food and beverage 68.2 62.4
Rooms 16.0 16.5

Property general, administrative and other 254.2 209.3
Depreciation and amortization 90.5 72.5
Write-downs, reserves and recoveries 2.7 3.3
Project opening costs 1.9 2.0
Corporate expense 16.4 14.7
Merger and integration costs for Caesars acquisition 4.0 �

Losses/(income) on interests in nonconsolidated affiliates 0.2 (0.5)
Amortization of intangible assets 3.5 1.2

Total operating expenses 1,024.4 836.1
Income from operations 232.8 176.3
Interest expense, net of interest capitalized (79.1) (58.2)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt (2.2) �

Other (expenses)/income, including interest income (0.1) 2.2
Income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interests 151.4 120.3
Provision for income taxes (55.5) (43.4)
Minority interests (2.5) (2.1)
Income from continuing operations 93.4 74.8
Discontinued operations

Income from discontinued operations 18.7 11.8
Provision for income taxes (8.3) (4.9)

Income from discontinued operations, net 10.4 6.9
Net income $ 103.8 $ 81.7

Earnings per share�basic

Income from continuing operations $ 0.83 $ 0.68
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Discontinued operations, net 0.09 0.06
Net income $ 0.92 $ 0.74

Earnings per share�diluted

Income from continuing operations $ 0.81 $ 0.67
Discontinued operations, net 0.09 0.06

Net income $ 0.90 $ 0.73

Dividends declared per share $ 0.33 $ 0.30

Weighted average common shares outstanding 112.5 110.7
Additional shares based on average market price for period applicable to:

Restricted stock 0.5 0.5
Stock options 1.8 1.4

Weighted average common and common equivalent shares outstanding 114.8 112.6

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements.
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HARRAH��S ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(UNAUDITED)

First Quarter Ended March 31,
2005 2004

(In millions)
Cash flows from operating activities

Net income $ 103.8 $ 81.7
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash flows from operating activities:

Income from discontinued operations, before income taxes (18.7) (11.8)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 2.2 �

Depreciation and amortization 99.8 78.8
Write-downs, reserves and recoveries � 0.7
Other noncash items 5.5 6.5
Deferred income taxes 3.0 (2.9)
Tax benefit from stock equity plans 11.3 11.2
Minority interests� share of income 2.5 2.1
Losses/(income) on interest in nonconsolidated affiliate 0.2 (0.5)
Net (gains)/losses from asset sales (0.1) 0.7
Net change in long-term accounts (2.9) 66.8
Net change in working capital accounts 48.3 20.0

Cash flows provided by operating activities 254.9 253.3
Cash flows from investing activities

Land, buildings, riverboats and equipment additions (221.3) (153.6)
Payment for businesses acquired, net of cash acquired � (39.7)
Minority interest buyout � (37.5)
Proceeds from other asset sales 11.9 0.9
Increase/(decrease) in construction payables 2.2 (0.1)
Other (2.2) (2.4)

Cash flows used in investing activities (209.4) (232.4)
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Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes, net of issue costs 249.1 �

Borrowings under lending agreements, net of deferred financing costs 1,147.6 354.2
Repayments under lending agreements (1,461.5) (452.0)
Scheduled debt retirements (0.5) (0.3)
Early extinguishments of debt (58.3) �

Premiums paid on early extinguishments of debt (2.1) �

Dividends paid (37.3) (33.5)
Minority interests� distributions, net of contributions (1.6) (3.1)
Proceeds from exercises of stock options 49.2 51.9
Other (1.0) 0.2

Cash flows used in financing activities (116.4) (82.6)
Cash flows from assets held for sale

Net transfers from assets held for sale 18.2 8.9
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (52.7) (52.8)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 489.0 397.9
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 436.3 $ 345.1

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements.
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HARRAH��S ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(UNAUDITED)

First Quarter Ended March 31,
2005 2004

(In millions)
Net income $ 103.8 $ 81.7
Other comprehensive income:

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax (benefit)/provision of $(0.2)
and $0.0 (0.4) 0.1

Net gain on derivatives qualifying as cash flow hedges, net of tax provision
of $2.6 4.7 �

4.3 0.1
Comprehensive income $ 108.1 $ 81.8

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements.
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HARRAH��S ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2005
(UNAUDITED)

Note 1��Basis of Presentation and Organization

Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc. (�Harrah�s Entertainment,� the �Company,� �we,� �our� or �us,� and including our subsidiaries where the
context requires) is a Delaware corporation. As of March 31, 2005, we operated 27 casinos in 12 states under the Harrah�s, Horseshoe, Rio,
Showboat, and Harveys brand names, including 10 land-based casinos, 11 riverboat or dockside casinos, one combination thoroughbred
racetrack and casino, one combination greyhound racetrack and casino and four managed casinos on Indian lands. We view each property as
an operating segment and aggregate all operating segments into one reporting segment.

On April 26, 2005, we completed the sale of the assets and certain related liabilities of Harrah�s East Chicago and Harrah�s Tunica to
another gaming company. At March 31, 2005, these properties were classified in Assets/Liabilities held for sale on our Consolidated
Condensed Balance Sheets, and we ceased depreciating their assets in September 2004. 2005 and 2004 results for Harrah�s East Chicago and
Harrah�s Tunica are presented as part of our discontinued operations. See Note 10 for further information regarding discontinued operations.

In conjunction with our plans to acquire Horseshoe Gaming Holding Corp. (�Horseshoe Gaming�) (see Note 4), in May 2004, we sold
Harrah�s Shreveport to avoid overexposure in that market. Prior to the sale, we classified this property in Assets/Liabilities held for sale on
our Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheets and we ceased depreciating its assets in September 2003. Since we had a continued presence in
the Shreveport-Bossier City market, Harrah�s Shreveport�s operating results were not classified as discontinued operations. No material gain
or loss was recognized on the sale of Harrah�s Shreveport.

Note 2��Stock-Based Employee Compensation

As allowed under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 123, �Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,� we apply the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, �Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,� and
related interpretations to account for our employee stock option-based compensation plans and, accordingly, do not recognize compensation
expense. Furthermore, no stock option-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net income, as all options granted under those plans
had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), �Share-Based Payment.�
SFAS No. 123(R) requires that we recognize an expense for our equity-based compensation programs, including stock options. In second
quarter 2005, the application of SFAS No. 123(R) was changed from the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15,
2005, to the first annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005. Based on the new guidance, we will apply SFAS No. 123(R) in our
first quarter 2006 reporting period. We are currently evaluating the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) to determine its impact on our future
financial statements.
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SFAS No. 148, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation�Transition and Disclosure�an amendment of SFAS No. 123,� requires that
companies provide disclosure regarding the pro forma impact of the provisions of SFAS No. 123 in interim financial statements. The
following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee compensation.

First Quarter Ended March 31,
2005 2004

(In millions, except per share amounts)
Net income, as reported $ 103.8 $ 81.7
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under

fair-value-based method for all awards, net of related tax effects (5.6) (5.6)
Pro forma net income $ 98.2 $ 76.1
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Earnings per share:
Basic�as reported $ 0.92 $ 0.74
Basic�pro forma 0.87 0.69

Diluted�as reported 0.90 0.73
Diluted�pro forma 0.86 0.68

Note 3��Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The following table sets forth changes in our goodwill for the quarter ended March 31, 2005.

(In millions)
Balance at December 31, 2004 $ 1,354.7

Additions or adjustments (0.4)
Impairment losses �

Balance at March 31, 2005 $ 1,354.3

The following table provides the gross carrying value and accumulated amortization for each major class of intangible assets.

March 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Gross

Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

(In millions)
Amortizing intangible assets:

Contract rights $ 73.6 $ 11.9 $ 61.7 $ 73.6 $ 10.6 $ 63.0
Customer relationships 113.1 12.6 100.5 113.1 10.4 102.7

$ 186.7 $ 24.5 162.2 $ 186.7 $ 21.0 165.7
Nonamortizing intangible assets:

Trademarks 273.1 273.1
Gaming rights 422.6 422.6

695.7 695.7
Total $ 857.9 $ 861.4

The aggregate amortization expense for the quarter ended March 31, 2005, for those assets that are amortized under the provisions of
SFAS No. 142 was $3.5 million. Estimated annual amortization expense for those assets for the years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, 2007,
2008 and 2009 is $14.0 million, $13.7 million, $13.0 million, $11.4 million and $9.8 million, respectively.
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Note 4��Acquisitions

Las Vegas Horseshoe Hotel and Casino

In March 2004, we acquired certain intellectual property assets, including the rights to the Horseshoe brand in Nevada and to the World
Series of Poker brand and tournament, from Horseshoe Club Operating Company (�Horseshoe Club�). MTR Gaming Group, Inc. (�MTR
Gaming�) acquired from Horseshoe Club the assets of the Binion�s Horseshoe Hotel and Casino (�Las Vegas Horseshoe�) in Las Vegas,
Nevada, including the right to use the name �Binion�s� at the property. We operated the Las Vegas Horseshoe jointly with a subsidiary of
MTR Gaming from April 1, 2004, until the operating agreement was terminated on March 10, 2005, and the operating results for Las Vegas
Horseshoe were consolidated with our results. Las Vegas Horseshoe�s results were not material to our operating results.

We paid approximately $37.5 million for the intellectual property assets, including assumption and subsequent payment of certain
liabilities of Las Vegas Horseshoe (which included certain amounts payable to a principal of Horseshoe Gaming) and approximately $5.2
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million of acquisition costs. The intangible assets acquired in this transaction have been deemed to have indefinite lives and, therefore, are not
being amortized. We financed the acquisition with funds from various sources, including cash flows from operations and borrowings from
established debt programs.

Harrah�s Shreveport and Louisiana Downs�Buyout of Minority Partners

In first quarter 2004, we paid approximately $37.5 million to the minority owners of the company that owned Louisiana Downs and
Harrah�s Shreveport to purchase their ownership interest in that company. The excess of the cost to purchase the minority ownership above
the capital balances was assigned to goodwill. As a result of this transaction, Harrah�s Shreveport and Louisiana Downs became wholly-
owned by the Company. Harrah�s Shreveport was subsequently sold to another gaming company (see Note 1).

Horseshoe Gaming

On July 1, 2004, we acquired 100 percent of the equity interests of Horseshoe Gaming for approximately $1.62 billion, including
assumption of debt valued at approximately $558 million and acquisition costs. A $75 million escrow payment that was made in 2003 was
applied to the purchase price. We issued a redemption notice on July 1, 2004, for all $558 million of Horseshoe�s outstanding 85¤8% Senior
Subordinated Notes due July 2009 and retired that debt on August 2, 2004. We financed the acquisition and the debt retirement through
working capital and established debt programs. We purchased Horseshoe Gaming to acquire three properties and with the intention of growing
and developing the Horseshoe brand. The purchase included casinos in Hammond, Indiana; Tunica, Mississippi; and Bossier City, Louisiana.

In anticipation of our acquisition of Horseshoe Gaming, we sold our Harrah�s brand casino in Shreveport, Louisiana. After consideration
of the sale of Harrah�s Shreveport, the Horseshoe Gaming acquisition added a net 113,300 square feet of casino space and approximately
4,580 slot machines and 150 table games to our existing portfolio. Taken together with our acquisition of intellectual property rights from
Horseshoe Club, this acquisition gave us rights to the Horseshoe brand in all of the United States.

9

The results of operations of the properties acquired in the Horseshoe acquisition have been included in our consolidated financial
statements since the July 1, 2004, date of acquisition. The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information has been prepared
assuming that the acquisition of Horseshoe Gaming, the extinguishment of Horseshoe Gaming�s debt and the sale of Harrah�s Shreveport had
occurred on January 1, 2004.

First Quarter Ended
March 31, 2004

(In millions, except per share amounts)
Net revenues $ 1,187.3
Income from operations $ 210.0
Income from continuing operations $ 84.9
Net income $ 91.8
Earnings per share�diluted

From continuing operations $ 0.75
Net income $ 0.82

These unaudited pro forma results are presented for comparative purposes only. The pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of
what our actual results would have been had the acquisition and sale been completed as of the beginning of this period, or of future results.

Chester Downs & Marina

In July 2004, after receiving Pennsylvania regulatory and certain local approvals, we acquired a 50% interest in Chester Downs &
Marina, LLC (�CD&M�), an entity licensed to develop a harness-racing facility in southeastern Pennsylvania. Harrah�s Entertainment and
CD&M have agreed to develop Harrah�s Chester Downs Casino and Racetrack (�Harrah�s Chester�), a 5¤8-mile harness racetrack facility,
approximately six miles south of Philadelphia International Airport. Plans for the facility include a 1,500-seat grandstand and simulcast
facility, a slot casino with approximately 2,000 games and a variety of food and beverage offerings. We have commenced site work and
demolition at the property and expect racing and simulcasting to begin in the second quarter of 2006 and the casino to open in the third quarter
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of 2006, pending receipt of a gaming license and other regulatory approvals. This project is expected to cost $392 million, $6.5 million of
which had been spent at March 31, 2005. We will guarantee or provide financing for the project, and we are consolidating CD&M in our
financial statements.

Caesars Entertainment

On July 14, 2004, we signed a definitive agreement to acquire Caesars Entertainment, Inc. (�Caesars�) in a cash and stock transaction.
Under the terms of the agreement, Caesars shareholders will receive either $17.75 in cash or 0.3247 shares of Harrah�s Entertainment�s
common stock for each outstanding share of Caesars� common stock, subject to limitations on the aggregate amount of cash to be paid and
shares of stock to be issued. Caesars shareholders will be able to elect to receive solely shares of Harrah�s Entertainment�s common stock or
cash, to the extent available pursuant to the terms of the agreement. The aggregate estimated purchase price, calculated as of July 14, 2004,
was approximately $9.4 billion. The purchase price will fluctuate until closing due to changes in the number of outstanding shares of Caesars�
stock and the balance of Caesars� outstanding debt. Caesars operates 24 casinos with about 1.8 million square feet of gaming space and
approximately 24,650 hotel rooms and has significant presence in Las Vegas, Atlantic City and Mississippi. At separate meetings held on
March 11, 2005, stockholders of Harrah�s Entertainment and Caesars approved the agreement. The transaction is subject to regulatory
approvals and is expected to close in the second quarter of 2005.
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In anticipation of the Caesars merger, we have engaged consultants and dedicated internal resources to plan for the merger and
integration of Caesars into Harrah�s Entertainment. These costs are reflected in Merger and integration costs for Caesars acquisition in our
Consolidated Condensed Statements of Income.

Note 5��Stockholders�� Equity

In addition to its common stock, Harrah�s Entertainment has the following classes of stock authorized but unissued:

Preferred stock, $100 par value, 150,000 shares authorized
Special stock, $1.125 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized�

Series A Special Stock, 2,000,000 shares designated

In November 2004, our Board of Directors authorized the purchase of 3.5 million shares of common stock in the open market and
negotiated purchases through the end of 2005. As of March 31, 2005, no shares have been repurchased under this authorization.

In January 2005, the Company declared a cash dividend of 33 cents per share, which was paid on February 23, 2005, to shareholders of
record as of the close of business on February 9, 2005. The Company has paid quarterly cash dividends since third quarter 2003. Subsequent
to the end of first quarter 2005, we declared a regular quarterly cash dividend of 33 cents per share, payable on May 25, 2005, to shareholders
of record as of the close of business on May 11, 2005.

In connection with the Caesars acquisition, at a special meeting held in March 2005, our stockholders voted to approve an amendment to
Harrah�s Entertainment�s certificate of incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of Harrah�s Entertainment common stock
from 360 million to 720 million.

Note 6��Debt

Credit Agreement

Our current credit facilities (the �Credit Agreement�) provide for up to $2.5 billion in borrowings, maturing on April 23, 2009. The
Credit Agreement contains a provision that would allow an increase in the borrowing capacity to $3.0 billion, if mutually acceptable to the
Company and the lenders. Interest on the Credit Agreement is based on our debt ratings and leverage ratio and is subject to change. As of
March 31, 2005, the Credit Agreement bore interest based upon 90 basis points over LIBOR and bore a facility fee for borrowed and
unborrowed amounts of 20 basis points, a combined 110 basis points. At our option, we may borrow at the prime rate under the Credit
Agreement. As of March 31, 2005, $1.36 billion in borrowings was outstanding under the Credit Agreement with an additional $58.7 million
committed to back letters of credit. After consideration of these borrowings, but before consideration of amounts borrowed under the
commercial paper program, $1.08 billion of additional borrowing capacity was available to the Company as of March 31, 2005.
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In January 2005, an agreement was reached to amend the Credit Agreement, which will increase our borrowing capacity from $2.5
billion to $4.0 billion. The amendment also contains a provision that will allow a further increase in the borrowing capacity to $5.0 billion, if
mutually acceptable to the Company and the lenders, and lowers the combined interest spread from LIBOR plus 110 basis points to LIBOR
plus 87.5 basis points. The amended agreement becomes effective upon the satisfaction of various closing conditions, including the closing of
our acquisition of Caesars. Other significant terms and conditions of the Credit Agreement, including the maturity date of April 2009, did not
change.
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Derivative Instruments

We account for derivative instruments in accordance with SFAS No. 133, �Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,� and all amendments thereto. SFAS No. 133 requires that all derivative instruments be recognized in the financial statements at fair
value. Any changes in fair value are recorded in the income statement or in other comprehensive income, depending on whether the derivative
is designated and qualifies for hedge accounting, the type of hedge transaction and the effectiveness of the hedge. The estimated fair values of
our derivative instruments are based on market prices obtained from dealer quotes. Such quotes represent the estimated amounts we would
receive or pay to terminate the contracts.

Our derivative instruments contain a credit risk that the counterparties may be unable to meet the terms of the agreements. We minimize
that risk by evaluating the creditworthiness of our counterparties, which are limited to major banks and financial institutions, and we do not
anticipate nonperformance by the counterparties.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements�We use interest rate swaps to manage the mix of our debt between fixed and variable rate instruments.
As of March 31, 2005, we were a party to four interest rate swaps for a total notional amount of $500 million. These interest rate swaps serve
to manage the mix of our debt between fixed and variable rate instruments by effectively converting fixed rates associated with long-term debt
obligations to floating rates. The differences to be paid or received under the terms of interest rate swap agreements are accrued as interest
rates change and recognized as an adjustment to interest expense for the related debt. Changes in the variable interest rates to be paid or
received pursuant to the terms of interest rate swap agreements will have a corresponding effect on future cash flows. The major terms of the
interest rate swaps are as follows.

Effective Date
Type of
Hedge

Fixed Rate
Received

Variable Rate
Paid as of

Mar. 31, 2005
Notional Amount

(In millions)
Maturity

Date

Dec. 29, 2003 Fair Value 7.875% 8.433% $ 50 Dec. 15, 2005
Dec. 29, 2003 Fair Value 7.875% 8.437% 150 Dec. 15, 2005
Jan. 30, 2004 Fair Value 7.125% 6.853% 200 June 1, 2007
Feb. 2, 2004 Fair Value 7.875% 8.455% 100 Dec. 15, 2005

The Company�s interest rate swaps qualify for the �shortcut� method allowed under SFAS No. 133, which allows for an assumption of
no ineffectiveness. As such, there is no income statement impact from changes in the fair value of the hedging instruments. The net effect of
the above swaps increased our first quarter 2005 interest expense by $0.3 million and reduced first quarter 2004 interest expense by $1.2
million.

Treasury Rate Lock Agreements�In anticipation of issuing new debt in the first half of 2005 and to partially hedge the risk of future
increases to the treasury rate, we entered into agreements in the fourth quarter of 2004 and the first quarter of 2005 to lock in existing ten-year
rates to hedge against such increases. The major terms of the treasury rate lock agreements are as follows.

Effective Date
Type of
Hedge

Treasury
Lock
Rate

Notional
Amount

(In millions)
Termination

Date

Nov. 22, 2004 Cash flow 4.373% $ 200 May 20, 2005
Dec. 16, 2004 Cash flow 4.239% 50 May 20, 2005
Dec. 16, 2004 Cash flow 4.239% 50 May 20, 2005
Dec. 16, 2004 Cash flow 4.239% 100 May 23, 2005
Jan. 24, 2005 Cash flow 4.242% 100 May 20, 2005
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The Company has determined that the treasury rate lock agreements qualify for hedge accounting and are perfectly effective. As such,
there is no income statement impact from changes in the fair value of the hedging instruments. The fair values of our treasury rate lock
agreements are carried as assets or liabilities in our Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheets, and changes in the fair values are recorded as a
component of other comprehensive income and will be reclassified to earnings over the life of the debt after issuance.

Commercial Paper

To provide the Company with cost-effective borrowing flexibility, we have a $200 million commercial paper program that is used to
borrow funds for general corporate purposes. At March 31, 2005, $65.0 million was outstanding under this program.

Senior Floating Rate Notes

In February 2005, we issued $250 million of Senior Floating Rate Notes due in 2008 in a Rule 144A private placement. We agreed to,
upon the request by holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Senior Floating Rate Notes then outstanding, exchange the
private placement offering with fully registered Senior Floating Rate Notes. If the exchange offer does not provide the holders of the Senior
Floating Rate Notes freely transferable securities, we may be required to file a shelf registration statement that would allow them to resell the
Senior Floating Rate Notes in the open market, subject to certain restrictions. At March 31, 2005, the interest rate on these notes was 3.37%.

Debt Repurchase Program

In July 2003, our Board of Directors authorized the Company to retire, from time to time through cash purchases, portions of our
outstanding debt in open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions or otherwise. These repurchases will be funded through available
cash from operations and borrowings from our established debt programs. Such repurchases will depend on prevailing market conditions, the
Company�s liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions and other factors. In first quarter 2005, we retired $58.3 million of our 7.875%
Senior Subordinated Notes due in December 2005, bringing the total retired under this authorization to $217.8 million of our 7.875% Senior
Subordinated Notes. A loss of $2.2 million, representing premiums paid and write-offs of unamortized deferred financing costs, is included in
Income from continuing operations in our Consolidated Condensed Statements of Income.

At March 31, 2005, $532.2 million, face amount, of our 7.875% Senior Subordinated Notes due December 2005, are classified as long-
term in our Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet because the Company has both the intent and the ability to refinance these notes.
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Note 7��Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures

Cash Paid for Interest and Taxes

The following table reconciles our Interest expense, net of interest capitalized, per the Consolidated Condensed Statements of Income, to
cash paid for interest:

First Quarter Ended March 31,
2005 2004

(In millions)
Interest expense, net of interest capitalized $ 79.1 $ 58.2
Adjustments to reconcile to cash paid for interest:

Net change in accruals 1.6 (9.8)
Amortization of deferred finance charges (2.0) (1.6)
Net amortization of discounts and premiums (0.5) (0.3)

Cash paid for interest, net of amount capitalized $ 78.2 $ 46.5
Cash refunds of income taxes, net of payments $ (23.0) $ (16.2)
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Note 8��Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Contractual Commitments

We continue to pursue additional casino development opportunities that may require, individually and in the aggregate, significant
commitments of capital, up-front payments to third parties, guarantees by the Company of third-party debt and development completion
guarantees.

The agreements under which we manage casinos on Indian lands contain provisions required by law that provide that a minimum
monthly payment be made to the tribe. That obligation has priority over scheduled payments of borrowings for development costs and over
the management fee earned and paid to the manager. In the event that insufficient cash flow is generated by the operations of the Indian-
owned properties to fund this payment, we must pay the shortfall to the tribe. Subject to certain limitations as to time, such advances, if any,
would be repaid to us in future periods in which operations generate cash flow in excess of the required minimum payment. These
commitments will terminate upon the occurrence of certain defined events, including termination of the management contract. As of
March 31, 2005, our aggregate monthly commitment for the minimum guaranteed payment pursuant to these contracts for the four managed
Indian-owned facilities now open, which extend for periods of up to 80 months from March 31, 2005, is $1.2 million. The maximum exposure
for the minimum guaranteed payments to the tribes is unlikely to exceed $92.5 million.

We may guarantee all or part of the debt incurred by Indian tribes, with which we have entered into management contracts, to fund
development of casinos on the Indian lands. For all existing guarantees of Indian debt, we have obtained a first lien on certain personal
property (tangible and intangible) of the casino enterprise. There can be no assurance, however, that the value of such property would satisfy
our obligations in the event these guarantees were enforced. Additionally, we have received limited waivers from the Indian tribes of their
sovereign immunity to allow us to pursue our rights under the contracts between the parties and to enforce collection efforts as to any assets in
which a security interest is taken. The aggregate outstanding balance as of March 31, 2005, of Indian debt that we have guaranteed was $257.7
million. The outstanding balance of all of our debt guarantees, including Indian debt guarantees, at March 31, 2005, was $261.3 million. Our
maximum obligation under all of our debt guarantees is $289.7 million. Our obligations under these debt guarantees extend through
April 2009.

Some of our guarantees of the debt for casinos on Indian lands were modified during 2003, resulting in the requirement under FASB
Interpretation No. 45, �Guarantor�s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness
of Others,� to recognize a
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liability for the estimated fair value of those guarantees. Liabilities, representing the fair value of our guarantees, and corresponding assets,
representing the portion of our management fee receivable attributable to our agreements to provide the related guarantees, were recorded and
are being amortized over the lives of the related agreements. We estimate the fair value of the obligations by considering what premium would
have been required by us or by an unrelated party. The amounts recognized represent the present value of the premium in interest rates and
fees that would have been charged to the tribes if we had not provided the guarantees. The unamortized balance of the liability for the
guarantees and of the related assets at March 31, 2005, was $5.2 million.

In February 2005, we entered into an agreement with the State of Louisiana whereby we extended our guarantee of an annual payment
obligation of JCC, our wholly-owned subsidiary, of $60 million owed to the State of Louisiana. The guarantee was extended for one year to
end March 31, 2008.

Excluding the guarantees discussed above, as of March 31, 2005, we had commitments and contingencies of $576.0 million, including
construction-related commitments.

In accordance with previous agreements and as additional purchase price consideration, a payment of approximately $73 million, based
on a multiple of the calculated annual savings, was made to Iowa West Racing Association (�Iowa West�), the entity holding the pari-mutuel
and gaming license for the Bluffs Run Casino in Council Bluffs, Iowa, and with whom we have a management agreement to operate that
property. The additional payment to Iowa West increased goodwill attributed to the Bluffs Run property. The payment to Iowa West assumed
we will operate table games at Bluffs Run and pay a 24 percent tax rate; however, Iowa West has taken the position that the purchase price
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adjustment should be based on a tax rate of 22 percent, which would result in an additional $12 million payment to Iowa West. If an additional
payment is required, it will increase goodwill attributed to this property. We anticipate that the issue will be resolved by arbitration.

Severance Agreements

As of March 31, 2005, we have severance agreements with 28 of our senior executives, which provide for payments to the executives in
the event of their termination after a change in control, as defined. These agreements provide, among other things, for a compensation
payment of 1.5 to 3.0 times the executive�s average annual compensation, as defined, as well as for accelerated payment or accelerated
vesting of any compensation or awards payable to the executive under any of our incentive plans. The estimated amount, computed as of
March 31, 2005, that would be payable under the agreements to these executives based on the compensation payments and stock awards
aggregated approximately $142.7 million. The estimated amount that would be payable to these executives does not include an estimate for
the tax gross-up payment, provided for in the agreements, that would be payable to the executive if the executive becomes entitled to
severance payments which are subject to federal excise tax imposed on the executive.

Self-Insurance

We are self-insured for various levels of general liability, workers� compensation and employee medical coverage. Insurance claims and
reserves include accruals of estimated settlements for known claims, as well as accruals of actuarial estimates of incurred but not reported
claims.

Note 9��Litigation

We are involved in various inquiries, administrative proceedings and litigation relating to contracts, sales of property and other matters
arising in the normal course of business. While any proceeding or litigation has an element of uncertainty, we believe that the final outcome of
these matters will not have a material adverse effect upon our consolidated financial position or our results of operations.
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Note 10��Discontinued Operations

In September 2004, we entered into an agreement to sell the assets and certain related liabilities of Harrah�s East Chicago and Harrah�s
Tunica to an unrelated third party. The sale was completed April 26, 2005. We believe that the sale of these two properties may help facilitate
the closing of the Caesars transaction.

Harrah�s East Chicago and Harrah�s Tunica are classified in Assets/Liabilities held for sale in our Consolidated Condensed Balance
Sheets, and we ceased depreciating their assets in September 2004. 2005 results for Harrah�s East Chicago and Harrah�s Tunica are presented
as discontinued operations and 2004 results have been reclassified to conform to the 2005 presentation. We expect to report a gain on the sale
of these two properties in the second quarter of 2005.

Summary operating results for the discontinued operations are as follows:

First Quarter Ended March 31,
2005 2004

(In millions)
Net revenues $ 95.9 $ 96.8
Pretax income from discontinued operations $ 18.7 $ 11.8
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax $ 10.4 $ 6.9

Assets held for sale and liabilities related to assets held for sale for Harrah�s East Chicago and Harrah�s Tunica are as follows:

March 31,
2005

December 31,
2004

(In millions)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12.0 $ 12.0
Receivables 1.1 �
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Inventories 0.7 0.9
Property and equipment, net 271.2 271.4
Goodwill 206.5 206.5
Investments in and advances to nonconsolidated affiliates 1.2 1.2
Deferred costs and other 0.2 0.2

Total assets held for sale $ 492.9 $ 492.2
Accrued expenses $ 0.1 $ 0.3

Total liabilities related to assets held for sale $ 0.1 $ 0.3
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Item 2. Management��s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of the financial position and operating results of Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc. (referred to in this
discussion, together with its consolidated subsidiaries where appropriate, as �Harrah�s Entertainment,� the �Company,� �we,� �our� and
�us�) for first quarter 2005 and 2004, updates, and should be read in conjunction with, Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations presented in our 2004 Annual Report.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

Caesars Entertainment

On July 14, 2004, we signed a definitive agreement to acquire Caesars Entertainment, Inc. (�Caesars�). Under the terms of the
agreement, Caesars shareholders will receive either $17.75 in cash or 0.3247 shares of Harrah�s Entertainment�s common stock for each
outstanding share of Caesars� common stock, subject to limitations on the aggregate amount of cash to be paid and shares of stock to be
issued. Caesars shareholders will be able to elect to receive solely shares of Harrah�s Entertainment�s common stock or cash, to the extent
available pursuant to the terms of the agreement. The aggregate estimated purchase price, calculated as of July 14, 2004, was approximately
$9.4 billion. The purchase price will fluctuate until closing due to changes in the number of outstanding shares of Caesars� stock and the
balance of Caesars� outstanding debt. Caesars operates 24 casinos with about 1.8 million square feet of gaming space and approximately
24,650 hotel rooms and has significant presence in Las Vegas, Atlantic City and Mississippi. At separate meetings held on March 11, 2005,
stockholders of Harrah�s Entertainment and Caesars approved the agreement. The transaction is subject to regulatory approvals and is
expected to close during the second quarter of 2005.

In anticipation of the Caesars acquisition, we have engaged consultants and dedicated internal resources to plan for the merger and
integration of Caesars into Harrah�s Entertainment. These costs are reflected in Merger and integration costs for Caesars acquisition in our
Consolidated Condensed Statements of Income.

Harrah��s East Chicago and Harrah��s Tunica

On April 26, 2005, we completed the sale of the assets and certain related liabilities of Harrah�s East Chicago and Harrah�s Tunica to
another gaming company. At March 31, 2005, these properties were presented as Assets/Liabilities held for sale and as part of our
discontinued operations in our Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements. The carrying value of the net assets of these properties at
March 31, 2005, is $492.8 million, and they contributed $10.4 million, net of taxes of $8.3 million, to our first quarter 2005 net income. We
ceased depreciation of their assets in September 2004. We expect to report a gain on the sale of these two properties in second quarter 2005.
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OPERATING RESULTS AND DEVELOPMENT PLANS

Overall

First Quarter

Percentage

Increase/

2005 2004 (Decrease)

(In millions, except earnings per share)

Casino revenues $ 1,136.0 $ 897.8 26.5%
Total revenues 1,257.2 1,012.4 24.2%
Income from operations 232.8 176.3 32.0%
Income from continuing operations 93.4 74.8 24.9%
Net income 103.8 81.7 27.1%
Earnings per share�diluted

From continuing operations 0.81 0.67 20.9%
Net income 0.90 0.73 23.3%

Operating margin 18.5% 17.4% 1.1 pts

First quarter 2005 revenues and income from continuing operations increased over first quarter 2004, driven by our acquisition of
Horseshoe Gaming Holding Corp. (�Horseshoe Gaming�) on July 1, 2004, and higher results at most of our properties, particularly in
Southern Nevada and New Orleans.

The executive officers of our Company review operating results, assess performance and make decisions related to the allocation of
resources on a property-by-property basis. We, therefore, believe that each property is an operating segment and that it is appropriate to
aggregate and present the operations of our Company as one reportable segment. In order to provide more detail in a more understandable
manner than would be possible on a consolidated basis, our properties have been grouped as follows to facilitate discussion of our operating
results:

West East North Central South Central Managed/Other

Harrah�s Reno Harrah�s Atlantic Harrah�s Joliet Harrah�s Lake Harrah�s Ak-Chin
Harrah�s/Harveys City Harrah�s North Kansas Charles Harrah�s Cherokee

Lake Tahoe Showboat Atlantic City Harrah�s New Harrah�s Prairie
Bill�s City Harrah�s Council Bluffs Orleans Band
Harrah�s Las Vegas Bluffs Run Harrah�s Louisiana Harrah�s Rincon
Rio Harrah�s St. Louis Downs
Harrah�s Laughlin Harrah�s Metropolis Horseshoe Bossier

Horseshoe Hammond City
Horseshoe Tunica

West Results

First Quarter

Percentage

Increase/

2005 2004 (Decrease)

(In millions)

Casino revenues $ 266.3 $ 247.4 7.6%
Total revenues 387.5 364.1 6.4%
Income from operations 85.3 74.1 15.1%
Operating margin 22.0% 20.4% 1.6 pts

Record first quarter revenues and income from operations in 2005 were driven by results from our Southern Nevada properties where
strong cross-market play at our two Las Vegas properties and room pricing trends in Las Vegas helped Southern Nevada revenues increase by
11.6% over 2004 levels. Income
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from operations for our Southern Nevada properties was 22.8% higher than in first quarter 2004 as a result of the higher revenues and
effective cost management. First quarter 2005 revenues and income from operations from our Northern Nevada properties were down 6.2%
and 42.5%, respectively, from first quarter 2004. This was due to weather conditions in January 2005 that disrupted visitation and increased
marketing expenses to stimulate demand in response to competition from Native American gaming facilities in Northern California.

East Results

First Quarter

Percentage

Increase/

2005 2004 (Decrease)

(In millions)

Casino revenues $ 192.0 $ 197.4 (2.7)%
Total revenues 183.2 181.8 0.8 %
Income from operations 42.9 44.6 (3.8)%
Operating margin 23.4% 24.5% (1.1)pts

Although first quarter 2005 gaming revenues for our Atlantic City properties were below first quarter 2004 levels, savings in promotional
allowances caused total revenues to increase 0.8% over first quarter last year. Income from operations was 3.8% lower than in first quarter
2004. Aggressive competition and poor weather early in the quarter impacted 2005 results.

Construction began in fourth quarter 2004 on a House of Blues Club at our Showboat property in Atlantic City. This approximate
$61 million project will add a range of amenities to the property, including a concert hall, nightclub and restaurant, and a private member
�Foundation Room.� The project is scheduled for completion in late June 2005. As of March 31, 2005, $16.1 million had been spent on this
project.

North Central Results

First Quarter

Percentage

Increase/

2005 2004 (Decrease)

(In millions)

Casino revenues $ 396.3 $ 272.7 45.3%
Total revenues 388.7 268.0 45.0%
Income from operations 74.9 42.3 77.1%
Operating margin 19.3% 15.8% 3.5 pts

Harrah�s East Chicago was sold in April 2005. Due to our decision to sell this property, results of Harrah�s East Chicago are classified as
discontinued operations; therefore this property is not included in our North Central grouping.

Chicagoland/Illinois�Combined first quarter 2005 revenues and income from operations at Harrah�s Joliet, Harrah�s Metropolis and
Horseshoe Hammond more than doubled last year�s first quarter revenues and income from operations due primarily to results from
Horseshoe Hammond, which was acquired on July 1, 2004. Horseshoe Hammond contributed $102.0 million in revenues and $21.8 million in
income from operations in first quarter 2005.

Construction is underway on a 258-room hotel and event center at Harrah�s Metropolis. This project is expected to cost approximately
$70 million and completion is targeted for second quarter 2006. As of March 31, 2005, $7.1 million had been spent on this project.
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Missouri�Combined first quarter 2005 revenues and income from operations at our Missouri properties increased 10.5% and 13.4%,
respectively, over last year�s first quarter, driven by gains at our St. Louis property due to recent capital investments, including a 210-room
hotel tower that opened in third quarter 2004.

A $126 million expansion and property enhancement project at Harrah�s North Kansas City broke ground in second quarter 2004. This
project, which will add a 206-room hotel addition, new restaurants and other amenities, is scheduled for completion in the third quarter of
2005. As of March 31, 2005, $54.0 million had been spent on this project.

Iowa�Revenues for first quarter 2005 from our Iowa properties were 4.6% higher than first quarter 2004 revenues, and income from
operations was 57.5% above first quarter 2004 due to lower gaming taxes in 2005 following the resolution of the gaming tax rate issues
discussed below.

Casinos at racetracks in Iowa historically had been taxed at a higher rate (36% in 2004) than the casinos on riverboats operating in Iowa
(20%). The Iowa Supreme Court issued an opinion in June 2002 that this disparity was unconstitutional. The State appealed the Iowa Supreme
Court�s decision to the United States Supreme Court and in June 2003, the United States Supreme Court overturned the ruling and remanded
the case back to the Iowa Supreme Court for further consideration. In February 2004, the Iowa Supreme Court ruled that the disparity violates
the Iowa Constitution, a ruling the State appealed to the United States Supreme Court in April 2004. The United States Supreme Court
declined to hear this case.

In April 2004, the Iowa legislature passed legislation to effectively settle the issues regarding the gaming tax rates. The new legislation
provides for a tax rate of 22% for both riverboats and racetracks effective July 1, 2004. However, racetracks have the option to conduct table
games and video games that simulate table games by paying a $10 million fee to the State and a gaming tax rate of 24%. Twenty percent of
the $10 million fee could be used to offset wagering taxes for each of the five fiscal years beginning July 1, 2008. We plan to add table games
to the Bluffs Run facility in conjunction with the rebranding, renovation and expansion of that facility (see discussion below).

In accordance with previous agreements and as additional purchase price consideration, a payment of approximately $73 million was
made to Iowa West Racing Association (�Iowa West�), the entity holding the pari-mutuel and gaming license for the Bluffs Run Casino and
with whom we have a management agreement to operate that property. The additional payment to Iowa West increased goodwill attributed to
the Bluffs Run property. The payment to Iowa West assumed we will operate table games at Bluffs Run and pay a 24% tax rate; however,
Iowa West has taken the position that the purchase price adjustment should be based on a tax rate of 22%, which would result in an additional
$12 million payment to Iowa West. If an additional payment is required, it will increase goodwill attributed to this property. We anticipate that
the issue will be resolved by arbitration during 2005.

In fourth quarter 2004, we announced plans to rebrand the Bluffs Run Casino under the Horseshoe brand as part of an $85 million
renovation and expansion of that property. The property�s greyhound racetrack will remain in operation and retain the Bluffs Run brand.
Construction began in February 2005 with completion scheduled for the first quarter of 2006. As of March 31, 2005, $7.6 million had been
spent on this project.
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South Central Results

First Quarter

Percentage

Increase/

2005 2004 (Decrease)

(In millions)

Casino revenues $ 281.2 $ 180.2 56.0%
Total revenues 275.8 180.8 52.5%
Income from operations 47.0 27.2 72.8%
Operating margin 17.0% 15.0% 2.0 pts

Harrah�s Tunica was sold in April 2005. Due to our decision to sell this property, results of Harrah�s Tunica are classified as
discontinued operations; therefore this property is not included in our South Central grouping.

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


Combined first quarter 2005 revenues from our South Central properties were 52.5% higher than in first quarter 2004, and income from
operations was 72.8% higher than last year�s first quarter. The increases are due to results from Horseshoe Bossier City and Horseshoe
Tunica, which were acquired on July 1, 2004, and higher results from Harrah�s New Orleans and Harrah�s Louisiana Downs, where the
permanent facility opened in second quarter 2004 with 1,400 slot machines compared to the 900 that were in service in first quarter 2004.
Increases were partially offset by the loss of revenues and income from operations from Harrah�s Shreveport, which was sold in second
quarter 2004.

Horseshoe Bossier City and Horseshoe Tunica contributed $120.6 million in revenues and $21.7 million in income from operations in
first quarter 2005.

Construction began in second quarter 2004 on a 26-story, 450-room, $150 million hotel tower at Harrah�s New Orleans. The property
does not currently operate a hotel, although it does utilize rooms at third-party hotels. The hotel is expected to open in the first quarter of 2006.
$35.4 million had been spent on this project as of March 31, 2005.

Managed Casinos and Other

Our managed and other results were higher than in first quarter 2004 primarily due to increased business volumes at managed properties
following the completion of expansion projects.

Construction began in January 2004 on a $60 million expansion of Harrah�s Cherokee Smoky Mountains Casino in Cherokee, North
Carolina, that will add a 15-story, hotel tower with approximately 320 rooms, which is scheduled for completion in second quarter 2005.

Construction costs of Indian casinos and hotels have been funded by the tribes or by the tribes� debt, some of which we guarantee. See
DEBT AND LIQUIDITY for further discussion of our guarantees of debt related to Indian projects.
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Other Factors Affecting Net Income

First Quarter
Percentage
Increase/

2005 2004 (Decrease)
(In millions)
(Income)/expense
Development costs $ 5.8 $ 3.3 75.8 %
Write-downs, reserves and recoveries 2.7 3.3 (18.2)%
Project opening costs 1.9 2.0 (5.0)%
Corporate expense 16.4 14.7 11.6 %
Merger and integration costs for Caesars acquisition 4.0 � N/M
Amortization of intangible assets 3.5 1.2 N/M
Interest expense, net 79.1 58.2 35.9 %
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 2.2 � N/M
Other expense/(income) 0.1 (2.2) N/M
Effective tax rate 36.7% 36.0% 0.7 pt
Minority interests $ 2.5 $ 2.1 19.0 %
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes 10.4 6.9 50.7 %
N/M = Not Meaningful

Development costs for first quarter 2005 were higher than in first quarter last year due to increased development activities in many
jurisdictions, including international jurisdictions, considering allowing development and operation of casinos or casino-like operations.

Write-downs, reserves and recoveries include various pretax charges to record asset impairments, project write-offs, demolition costs,
and other nonroutine transactions.
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Project opening costs include costs incurred in connection with the integration of acquired properties into Harrah�s Entertainment�s
systems and technology and costs incurred in connection with expansion and renovation projects at various properties.

Corporate expense increased 11.6% in first quarter 2005 from the prior year due primarily to higher executive compensation costs.

Merger and integration costs for the Caesars acquisition include costs for consultants and dedicated internal resources to plan for the
merger and integration of Caesars into Harrah�s Entertainment.

Amortization of intangible assets was higher in first quarter 2005 than in the first quarter last year due to amortization of intangible assets
acquired from Horseshoe Gaming on July 1, 2004, based on the preliminary purchase price allocation.

Interest expense increased in first quarter 2005 from 2004 due to increased borrowings related to our acquisition of Horseshoe Gaming
and to higher interest rates on our variable rate debt. For our fixed-rate debt subject to interest rate swap agreements, the average interest rate
received was 7.6% at March 31, 2005, compared to 7.8% average interest rate paid on the swaps. At March 31, 2004, the average interest rate
received was 7.6% compared to 6.3% average interest rate paid on the swaps. The average interest rate on our variable-rate debt, excluding the
impact of our swap agreements, was 3.7% and 2.2% at March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. A change in interest rates will impact our
financial results. For example, assuming a constant outstanding balance for our variable-rate debt for the next twelve months, a hypothetical 1%
change in corresponding interest rates would change interest expense for the next twelve months by approximately $21.7 million, or $5.4 million
per quarter. Our variable-rate debt, including $500 million of fixed-rate debt for which we have entered into interest rate swap agreements,
represents approximately 43% of our total debt, while our fixed-rate debt is approximately 57% of our total debt. (For
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discussion of our interest rate swap agreements, see DEBT AND LIQUIDITY, Derivative Instruments, Interest Rate Swap Agreements.)

The 2005 Loss on early extinguishment of debt represents premiums paid and the write-off of unamortized deferred financing costs
associated with the portion of our 7.875% Senior Subordinated Notes due in December 2005 that were retired in February 2005.

Other expense/(income) was lower in first quarter 2005 than in first quarter last year due primarily to lower interest income on the cash
surrender value of life insurance policies.

The effective tax rates for both periods are higher than the federal statutory rate due primarily to state income taxes. Our effective tax rate
was higher in first quarter 2005 than in first quarter last year due to changes in the expected permanent differences arising from company-
owned life insurance policies.

Minority interests reflect minority owners� shares of income from our majority owned subsidiaries.

Discontinued operations reflect the results of Harrah�s East Chicago and Harrah�s Tunica, which were sold in April 2005.

CAPITAL SPENDING AND DEVELOPMENT

In addition to the specific development and expansion projects discussed in the OPERATING RESULTS AND DEVELOPMENT
PLANS section, we perform on-going refurbishment and maintenance at our casino entertainment facilities to maintain our quality standards.
We also continue to pursue development and acquisition opportunities for additional casino entertainment facilities that meet our strategic and
return on investment criteria. Prior to the receipt of necessary regulatory approvals, the costs of pursuing development projects are expensed
as incurred. Construction-related costs incurred after the receipt of necessary approvals are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated
useful life of the resulting asset. Project opening costs are expensed as incurred.

Our planned development projects, if they go forward, will require, individually and in the aggregate, significant capital commitments
and, if completed, may result in significant additional revenues. The commitment of capital, the timing of completion and the commencement
of operations of casino entertainment development projects are contingent upon, among other things, negotiation of final agreements and
receipt of approvals from the appropriate political and regulatory bodies. Cash needed to finance projects currently under development as well
as additional projects pursued is expected to be made available from operating cash flows, bank borrowings (see DEBT AND LIQUIDITY),
joint venture partners, specific project financing, guarantees of third-party debt and, if necessary, additional debt and/or equity offerings. Our
capital spending for the first three months of 2005 totaled approximately $223.7 million. Estimated total capital expenditures for 2005 are

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


expected to be between $800 million and $900 million, excluding estimated expenditures for our announced acquisition of Caesars or for
development opportunities that we have not yet identified.

DEBT AND LIQUIDITY

We generate substantial cash flows from operating activities, as reflected on the Consolidated Condensed Statements of Cash Flows.
These cash flows reflect the impact on our consolidated operations of the success of our marketing programs, our strategic acquisitions and
on-going cost containment focus. For the first three months of 2005 and 2004, we reported cash flows from operating activities of
$254.9 million and $253.3 million, respectively.

We use the cash flows generated by the Company to fund reinvestment in existing properties for both refurbishment and expansion
projects, pursue additional growth opportunities via strategic acquisitions of existing companies or properties and new development
opportunities and return capital to our
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shareholders in the form of stock repurchase programs and dividends. When necessary, we supplement the cash flows generated by our
operations with funds provided by financing activities to balance our cash requirements.

Our cash and cash equivalents totaled approximately $436.3 million at March 31, 2005, compared to $345.1 million at March 31, 2004.

At March 31, 2005, $532.2 million, face amount, of our 7.875% Senior Subordinated Notes due December 2005, are classified as long-
term in our Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet because the Company has both the intent and the ability to refinance these notes. The
majority of the remaining balance of our debt is due in the year 2007 and beyond. Payments of short-term debt obligations and other
commitments are expected to be made from operating cash flows. Long-term obligations are expected to be paid through operating cash flows,
refinancing of debt, joint venture partners or, if necessary, additional debt and/or equity offerings.

With the planned acquisition of Caesars, we anticipate that we will assume approximately $4.1 billion of Caesars� outstanding debt and
incur approximately $1.9 billion in additional debt to fund the acquisition. We plan to secure the funds for the acquisition by borrowing under
our amended credit facilities.

Credit Agreement

Our current credit facilities (the �Credit Agreement�) provide for up to $2.5 billion in borrowings, maturing on April 23, 2009. The
Credit Agreement contains a provision that would allow an increase in the borrowing capacity to $3.0 billion, if mutually acceptable to the
Company and the lenders. Interest on the Credit Agreement is based on our debt ratings and leverage ratio and is subject to change. As of
March 31, 2005, the Credit Agreement bore interest based upon 90 basis points over LIBOR and bore a facility fee for borrowed and
unborrowed amounts of 20 basis points, a combined 110 basis points. At our option, we may borrow at the prime rate under the Credit
Agreement. As of March 31, 2005, $1.36 billion in borrowings was outstanding under the Credit Agreement with an additional $58.7 million
committed to back letters of credit. After consideration of these borrowings, but before consideration of amounts borrowed under the
commercial paper program, $1.08 billion of additional borrowing capacity was available to the Company as of March 31, 2005.

In January 2005, an agreement was reached to amend the Credit Agreement, which will increase our borrowing capacity from $2.5
billion to $4.0 billion. The amendment also contains a provision that will allow a further increase in the borrowing capacity to $5.0 billion, if
mutually acceptable to the Company and the lenders, and lowers the combined interest spread from LIBOR plus 110 basis points to LIBOR
plus 87.5 basis points. The amended agreement becomes effective upon the satisfaction of various closing conditions, including the closing of
our acquisition of Caesars. Other significant terms and conditions of the Credit Agreement, including the maturity date of April 2009, did not
change.

Derivative Instruments

We account for derivative instruments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 133, �Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,� and all amendments thereto. SFAS No. 133 requires that all derivative instruments be
recognized in the financial statements at fair value. Any changes in fair value are recorded in the income statement or in other comprehensive
income, depending on whether the derivative is designated and qualifies for hedge accounting, the type of hedge transaction and the
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effectiveness of the hedge. The estimated fair values of our derivative instruments are based on market prices obtained from dealer quotes.
Such quotes represent the estimated amounts we would receive or pay to terminate the contracts.
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Our derivative instruments contain a credit risk that the counterparties may be unable to meet the terms of the agreements. We minimize
that risk by evaluating the creditworthiness of our counterparties, which are limited to major banks and financial institutions, and we do not
anticipate nonperformance by the counterparties.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements�We use interest rate swaps to manage the mix of our debt between fixed and variable rate instruments.
As of March 31, 2005, we were a party to four interest rate swaps for a total notional amount of $500 million. These interest rate swaps serve
to manage the mix of our debt between fixed and variable rate instruments by effectively converting fixed rates associated with long-term debt
obligations to floating rates. The differences to be paid or received under the terms of interest rate swap agreements are accrued as interest
rates change and recognized as an adjustment to interest expense for the related debt. Changes in the variable interest rates to be paid or
received pursuant to the terms of interest rate swap agreements will have a corresponding effect on future cash flows. The major terms of the
interest rate swaps are as follows.

Effective Date
Notional Amount

(In millions)
Fixed Rate
Received

Variable Rate
Paid as of

Mar. 31, 2005
Next Reset

Date
Maturity

Date

Dec. 29, 2003 $ 50 7.875% 8.433% June 15, 2005 Dec. 15, 2005
Dec. 29, 2003 150 7.875% 8.437% June 15, 2005 Dec. 15, 2005
Jan. 30, 2004 200 7.125% 6.853% June 1, 2005 June 1, 2007
Feb. 2, 2004 100 7.875% 8.455% June 15, 2005 Dec. 15, 2005

The Company�s interest rate swaps qualify for the �shortcut� method allowed under SFAS No. 133, which allows for an assumption of
no ineffectiveness. As such, there is no income statement impact from changes in the fair value of the hedging instruments. The net effect of
the above swaps increased our first quarter 2005 interest expense by $0.3 million and reduced first quarter 2004 interest expense by
$1.2 million.

Treasury Rate Lock Agreements�In anticipation of issuing new debt in the first half of 2005 and to partially hedge the risk of future
increases to the treasury rate, we entered into agreements in the fourth quarter of 2004 and the first quarter of 2005 to lock in existing ten-year
rates to hedge against such increases. The major terms of the treasury rate lock agreements are as follows.

Effective Date
Type of
Hedge

Treasury
Lock
Rate

Notional
Amount

(In millions)
Termination

Date

Nov. 22, 2004 Cash flow 4.373% $ 200 May 20, 2005
Dec. 16, 2004 Cash flow 4.239% 50 May 20, 2005
Dec. 16, 2004 Cash flow 4.239% 50 May 20, 2005
Dec. 16, 2004 Cash flow 4.239% 100 May 23, 2005
Jan. 24, 2005 Cash flow 4.242% 100 May 20, 2005

The Company has determined that the treasury rate lock agreements qualify for hedge accounting and are perfectly effective. As such,
there is no income statement impact from changes in the fair value of the hedging instruments. The fair values of our treasury rate lock
agreements are carried as assets or liabilities in our Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheets, and changes in the fair values are recorded as a
component of other comprehensive income and will be reclassified to earnings over the life of the debt after issuance.
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Commercial Paper

To provide the Company with cost-effective borrowing flexibility, we have a $200 million commercial paper program that is used to
borrow funds for general corporate purposes. At March 31, 2005, $65.0 million was outstanding under this program.

Senior Floating Rate Notes

In February 2005, we issued $250 million of Senior Floating Rate Notes due in 2008 in a Rule 144A private placement. We agreed to,
upon the request by holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Senior Floating Rate Notes then outstanding, exchange the
private placement offering with fully registered Senior Floating Rate Notes. If the exchange offer does not provide the holders of the Senior
Floating Rate Notes freely transferable securities, we may be required to file a shelf registration statement that would allow them to resell the
Senior Floating Rate Notes in the open market, subject to certain restrictions. At March 31, 2005, the interest rate on these notes was 3.37%.

Debt Repurchase Program

In July 2003, our Board of Directors authorized the Company to retire, from time to time through cash purchases, portions of our
outstanding debt in open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions or otherwise. These repurchases will be funded through available
cash from operations and borrowings from our established debt programs. Such repurchases will depend on prevailing market conditions, the
Company�s liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions and other factors. In first quarter 2005, we retired $58.3 million of our 7.875%
Senior Subordinated Notes due in December 2005, bringing the total retired under this authorization to $217.8 million of our 7.875% Senior
Subordinated Notes.

Equity Repurchase Program

In November 2004, our Board of Directors authorized the purchase of 3.5 million shares of common stock in the open market and
negotiated purchases through the end of 2005. As of March 31, 2005, no shares have been repurchased under this authorization.

Cash Dividends

In January 2005, the Company declared a cash dividend of 33 cents per share, which was paid on February 23, 2005, to shareholders of
record as of the close of business on February 9, 2005. The Company has paid quarterly cash dividends since third quarter 2003. Subsequent
to the end of first quarter 2005, we declared a regular quarterly cash dividend of 33 cents per share, payable on May 25, 2005, to shareholders
of record as of the close of business on May 11, 2005.
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Guarantees of Third-Party Debt and Other Obligations and Commitments

The table below summarizes total material additions to or changes in our contractual obligations and other commitments, which were
disclosed in Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations presented in our 2004 Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

Increase/(Decrease) Total
(In millions)
Contractual Obligations

Debt $ (125.9) $ 5,027.0
Operating lease obligations 385.1 952.7
Purchase order obligations (15.3) 2.9
Guaranteed payments to State of Louisiana 45.2 180.0
Construction commitments 25.4 349.0
Other contractual obligations 13.7 63.5

The agreements pursuant to which we manage casinos on Indian lands contain provisions required by law that provide that a minimum
monthly payment be made to the tribe. That obligation has priority over scheduled repayments of borrowings for development costs and over
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the management fee earned and paid to the manager. In the event that insufficient cash flow is generated by the operations to fund this
payment, we must pay the shortfall to the tribe. Subject to certain limitations as to time, such advances, if any, would be repaid to us in future
periods in which operations generate cash flow in excess of the required minimum payment. These commitments will terminate upon the
occurrence of certain defined events, including termination of the management contract. Our aggregate monthly commitment for the minimum
guaranteed payments, pursuant to these contracts for the four managed Indian-owned facilities now open, which extend for periods of up to 80
months from March 31, 2005, is $1.2 million. Each of these casinos currently generates sufficient cash flows to cover all of its obligations,
including its debt service.

We may guarantee all or part of the debt incurred by Indian tribes, with which we have entered management contracts, to fund
development of casinos on the Indian lands. For all existing guarantees of Indian debt, we have obtained a first lien on certain personal
property (tangible and intangible) of the casino enterprise. There can be no assurance, however, that the value of such property would satisfy
our obligations in the event these guarantees were enforced. Additionally, we have received limited waivers from the Indian tribes of their
sovereign immunity to allow us to pursue our rights under the contracts between the parties and to enforce collection efforts as to any assets in
which a security interest is taken. The aggregate outstanding balance of such debt as of March 31, 2005, was $257.7 million.

EFFECTS OF CURRENT ECONOMIC AND POLITICAL CONDITIONS

Competitive Pressures

Many casino operators are reinvesting in existing markets in an effort to attract new customers, thereby increasing competition in those
markets. As companies have completed expansion projects, supply has sometimes grown at a faster pace than demand in certain markets and
competition has increased significantly. Furthermore, several operators, including Harrah�s Entertainment, have announced plans for
additional developments or expansions in some markets.

Some states are considering legislation enabling the development and operation of casinos or casino-like businesses.

Although, historically, the short-term effect of such competitive developments on our Company generally has been negative, we are not
able to determine the long-term impact, whether favorable or unfavorable, that development and expansion trends and events will have on
current or future markets. We believe that the geographic diversity of our operations; our focus on multi-market customer relationships;
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our service training, our rewards and customer loyalty programs; and our continuing efforts to establish our brands as premier brands upon
which we have built strong customer loyalty have well-positioned us to face the challenges present within our industry. We utilize the unique
capabilities of WINet, a sophisticated nationwide customer database, and Total Rewards, a nationwide loyalty program that allows our
customers to earn cash, comps and other benefits for playing at our casinos. We believe these sophisticated marketing tools provide us with
competitive advantages, particularly with players who visit more than one market.

Political Uncertainties

The casino entertainment industry is subject to political and regulatory uncertainty. From time to time, individual jurisdictions have also
considered legislation or referendums that could adversely impact our operations. The likelihood or outcome of similar legislation and
referendums in the future is difficult to predict.

The casino entertainment industry represents a significant source of tax revenues to the various jurisdictions in which casinos operate.
From time to time, various state and federal legislators and officials have proposed changes in tax laws, or in the administration of such laws,
that would affect the industry. It is not possible to determine with certainty the scope or likelihood of possible future changes in tax laws or in
the administration of such laws. If adopted, such changes could have a material adverse effect on our financial results.

Addition of International Operations

The planned acquisition of Caesars will include certain properties located in countries outside the United States. International operations
are subject to inherent risks including variation in local economies, currency fluctuation, greater difficulty in accounts receivable collection,
trade barriers, burden of complying with a variety of international laws and political and economic instability.
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In addition, Caesars has announced plans to develop and operate a casino in the United Kingdom, partnering with Quintain Estates and
Development Group, at the Wembley National Soccer Stadium. The statutory gaming laws of the United Kingdom were reformed in April
2005. The legislation authorized one �regional� casino, which is anticipated to have approximately 1,250 U.S. style slot machines. The
location of the regional casino has not been determined. Published reports have indicated that the location will be determined based on
regeneration benefits, principally in towns such as Blackpool.

Harrah�s Entertainment and Keppel Land Ltd., a Singapore property developer, plan to submit joint proposals to the Singapore Tourism
Board for the development of two integrated resorts in the Republic of Singapore.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

We prepare our Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States. Certain of our accounting policies, including the estimated lives assigned to our assets, the determination of bad debt, asset impairment,
fair value of guarantees and self-insurance reserves, the purchase price allocations made in connection with our acquisitions and the
calculation of our income tax liabilities, require that we apply significant judgment in defining the appropriate assumptions for calculating
financial estimates. By their nature, these judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. Our judgments are based on our
historical experience, terms of existing contracts, our observance of trends in the industry, information provided by our customers and
information available from other outside sources, as appropriate. There can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from our
estimates. For a discussion of our significant accounting policies and estimates, please refer to Management�s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial
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Condition and Results of Operations and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements presented in our 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
There were no newly identified significant accounting estimates in first quarter 2005, nor were there any material changes to the critical
accounting policies and estimates discussed in our 2004 Annual Report.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), �Share-Based Payment.� SFAS No. 123(R) requires that we
recognize an expense for our equity-based compensation programs, including stock options. In second quarter 2005, the application of SFAS
No. 123(R) was changed from the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005, to the first annual reporting period
that begins after June 15, 2005. Based on the new guidance, we will apply SFAS No. 123(R) in our first quarter 2006 reporting period. We are
currently evaluating the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) to determine its impact on our future financial statements.

In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 47, �Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations�an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143� (�FIN 47�), to address diverse accounting practices with respect to the timing of liability
recognition for legal obligations associated with the retirement of a tangible long-lived asset when the timing or method of settlement of the
obligation are conditional on a future event. FIN 47 is effective no later than December 31, 2005, for calendar-year companies. We are
currently evaluating the provisions of FIN 47 to determine the impact, if any, to our Company.

PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains �forward-looking statements� intended to qualify for the safe harbor from liability
established by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. You can identify these statements by the fact that they do not relate
strictly to historical or current facts. These statements contain words such as �may,� �will,� �project,� �might,� �expect,� �believe,�
�anticipate,� �intend,� �could,� �would,� �estimate,� �continue� or �pursue,� or the negative or other variations thereof or comparable
terminology. In particular, they include statements relating to, among other things, future actions, new projects, strategies, future performance,
the outcome of contingencies such as legal proceedings and future financial results. We have based these forward-looking statements on our
current expectations and projections about future events.

We caution the reader that forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that cannot be predicted or quantified and,
consequently, actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such risks and
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uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the following factors as well as other factors described from time to time in our reports filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission:

· the effect of economic, credit and capital market conditions on the economy in general, and on gaming and hotel companies in
particular;

· construction factors, including delays, zoning issues, environmental restrictions, soil and water conditions, weather and other hazards,
site access matters and building permit issues;

· the effects of environmental and structural building conditions relating to the Company�s properties;

· our ability to complete acquisitions and to timely and cost-effectively integrate into our operations the companies that we acquire,
including with respect to our previously announced acquisition of Caesars;
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· access to available and feasible financing, including financing for our acquisition of Caesars;

· changes in laws (including increased tax rates), regulations or accounting standards, third-party relations and approvals, and decisions
of courts, regulators and governmental bodies;

· litigation outcomes and judicial actions, including gaming legislative action, referenda and taxation;

· ability of our customer-tracking, customer loyalty and yield-management programs to continue to increase customer loyalty and same-
store sales;

· our ability to recoup costs of capital investments through higher revenues;

· acts of war or terrorist incidents;

· abnormal gaming holds; and

· the effects of competition, including locations of competitors and operating and market competition.

Any forward-looking statements are made pursuant to the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and, as such, speak only as of
the date made. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates and commodity prices. Our primary exposure to market risk is interest rate risk associated with our debt. We attempt to limit our
exposure to interest rate risk by managing the mix of our debt between fixed-rate and variable-rate obligations. Of our approximate
$5.0 billion total debt at March 31, 2005, $2.2 billion, including $500 million of fixed-rate debt for which we have entered into interest rate
swap agreements, is subject to variable interest rates. For our fixed-rate debt subject to interest rate swap agreements, the average interest rate
received was 7.6% at March 31, 2005, compared to 7.8% average interest rate paid on the swaps. The average interest rate on our variable-rate
debt, excluding the impact of our swap agreements, was 3.7% at March 31, 2005. Assuming a constant outstanding balance for our variable
rate debt for the next twelve months, a hypothetical 1% change in interest rates would change interest expense for the next twelve months by
approximately $21.7 million.

We use interest rate swaps to manage the mix of our debt between fixed and variable rate instruments. We also utilize treasury rate locks
to hedge the risk of future treasury rate increases for certain forecasted debt issuances. We do not purchase or hold any derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes.

Foreign currency translation gains and losses were not material to our results of operations for first quarter 2005. Although we are
pursuing development opportunities in foreign countries, we currently have no material ownership interests in businesses in foreign countries.
Accordingly, we are not currently subject to material foreign currency exchange rate risk from the effects that exchange rate movements of
foreign currencies would have on our future operating results or cash flows.

From time to time, we hold investments in various available-for-sale equity securities; however, our exposure to price risk arising from
the ownership of these investments is not material to our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

Our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities
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Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the �Exchange Act�)), as of a date within 90 days of the filing date of this Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q. Based on such evaluation, they have concluded that as of such date, our disclosure controls and procedures are effective and designed to
ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in applicable SEC rules and forms.

(b) Changes in internal controls.

There were no significant changes in our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to
the date of evaluation by our principal executive officer and principal financial officer.
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PART II��OTHER INFORMATION

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

At a Special Meeting of Stockholders of Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc. held on March 11, 2005, the following matters set forth in a Joint
Proxy/Prospectus dated January 24, 2005, were voted upon with the results indicated below.

(1) A proposal to approve the issuance of shares of the Company�s common stock, pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated
as of July 14, 2004, by and among Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc., Harrah�s Operating Company, Inc., and Caesars
Entertainment, Inc. was approved, with 85,913,398 votes cast FOR, 185,154 votes cast AGAINST, and 639,279 abstentions.

(2) A proposal to approve an amendment to the Company�s certificate of incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of
Harrah�s common stock from 360,000,000 to 720,000,000 was approved, with 94,375,663 votes cast FOR, 7,605,463 votes cast
AGAINST, and 652,623 abstentions.

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) Exhibits

*EX�4.1 Indenture, dated as of February 9, 2005 between Harrah�s Operating Company, Inc. as Issuer,
Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc. as Guarantor and U.S. Bank National Association as Trustee.

*EX�4.2 Registration Rights Agreement dated February 9, 2005 among Harrah�s Operating
Company, Inc., Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc., as Guarantor, and Goldman Sachs & Co., as Initial
Purchaser relating to the $250,000,000 principal amount Senior Floating Rate Notes due 2008.

*EX�10.1 Purchase Agreement, dated February 4, 2005, among Harrah�s Operating Company, Inc.,
Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc., as Guarantor, and Goldman Sachs & Co., as Initial Purchaser
relating to the $250,000,000 principal amount Senior Floating Rate Notes due 2008.

*EX�31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, dated May 6, 2005.

*EX�31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, dated May 6, 2005.

*EX�32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, dated May 6, 2005.
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*EX�32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, dated May 6, 2005.

* Filed herewith.

(b) The following reports on Form 8-K were filed by the Company during first quarter 2005 and thereafter through May 3, 2005.

(i) Form 8-K filed January 19, 2005 reporting that the Company and Caesars Entertainment, Inc.
have certified that they have provided substantially all the information requested by the Federal
Trade Commission in connection with the Company�s acquisition of Caesars.

(ii) Form 8-K filed January 20, 2005 reporting the declaration of a cash dividend.

32

(iii) Form 8-K filed February 2, 2005 furnishing the press release reporting fourth quarter and full-
year results for 2004.

(iv) Form 8-K filed February 4, 2005 reporting the entering of a Second Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, dated January 31, 2005 that increases the Registrant�s borrowing capacity of its bank
credit facilities.

(v) Form 8-K filed February 7, 2005 reporting the pricing of a private placement of Senior Floating
Rate Notes by Harrah�s Operating Company, Inc.

(vi) Form 8-K filed February 18, 2005 reporting the expiration of the waiting period under the Hart-
Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 in connection with the acquisition of Caesars
Entertainment, Inc.

(vii) Form 8-K filed March 3, 2005 furnishing selected unaudited historical financial information for
Harrah�s East Chicago and Harrah�s Tunica in connection with the sale of each property to an
affiliate of Colony Capital, LLC.

(viii) Form 8-K filed March 7, 2005 disclosing the unaudited proforma condensed combined financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2004 giving effect to the
Registrant�s acquisition of Caesars Entertainment, Inc.

(ix) Form 8-K filed March 11, 2005 announcing that the Registrant plans to appoint Stephen F.
Bollenbach and William Barron Hilton to its Board of Directors upon the completion of the
Registrant�s acquisition of Caesars Entertainment, Inc. and that the stockholders of both the
Registrant and Caesars Entertainment, Inc. separately approved the merger of Caesars into
Harrah�s Operating Company, Inc.

(x) Form 8-K filed April 7, 2005 furnishing the press release reporting the Registrant�s anticipated
financial results for the first quarter 2005.

(xi) Form 8-K filed April 20, 2005 furnishing the press release reporting first quarter 2005 results.

(xii) Form 8-K filed April 27, 2005 reporting the completion of the Company�s disposition of its
Harrah�s Tunica and Harrah�s East Chicago properties to an affiliate of Colony Capital, LLC and
the disposition by Caesars Entertainment, Inc. of its Atlantic City Hilton and Bally�s Tunica
properties.

(xiii) Form 8-K filed May 2, 2005 reporting the declaration of a cash dividend.
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(xiv) Form 8-K filed May 3, 2005 reporting approval by the Company�s Human Resources Committee
of the Board of Directors of an increase in the bonus target range for executive officers under the
Annual Management Bonus Plan.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

HARRAH�S ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

May 6, 2005 By: /s/ ANTHONY D. MCDUFFIE
Anthony D. McDuffie
Vice President, Controller and
Chief Accounting Officer
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*EX�4.2 Registration Rights Agreement dated February 9, 2005 among Harrah�s Operating
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Rate Notes due 2008.

*EX�10.1 Purchase Agreement, dated February 4, 2005, among Harrah�s Operating
Company, Inc., Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc., as Guarantor, and Goldman Sachs &
Co., as Initial Purchaser relating to the $250,000,000 principal amount Senior Floating
Rate Notes due 2008.

*EX�31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, dated May 6, 2005.

*EX�31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, dated May 6, 2005.

*EX�32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, dated May 6, 2005.

*EX�32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, dated May 6, 2005.
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Exhibit 4.1

EXECUTION COPY

HARRAH��S OPERATING COMPANY, INC.

Issuer

HARRAH��S ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

Guarantor

INDENTURE

Dated as of February 9, 2005

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

Trustee

1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS AND INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

Section 1.1 Definitions
Section 1.2 Incorporation by Reference of Trust Indenture Act
Section 1.3 Rules of Construction

ARTICLE II. THE NOTES

Section 2.1 Terms of the Notes
Section 2.2 Execution and Authentication
Section 2.3 Registrar and Paying Agent
Section 2.4 Paying Agent to Hold Money in Trust
Section 2.5 Noteholder Lists
Section 2.6 Intentionally Omitted
Section 2.7 Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost and Stolen Notes
Section 2.8 Outstanding Notes
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Section 2.9 Treasury Notes
Section 2.10 Temporary Notes
Section 2.11 Cancellation
Section 2.12 Defaulted Interest
Section 2.13 Global Notes
Section 2.14 Transfer and Exchange
Section 2.15 Payments
Section 2.16 CUSIP Numbers
Section 2.17 Mandatory Disposition of Notes Pursuant to Gaming Laws
Section 2.18 Additional Notes
Section 2.19 Additional Interest Under Registration Rights Agreements

ARTICLE III. REDEMPTION

Section 3.1 Optional Redemption
Section 3.2 Notice to Trustee
Section 3.3 Selection of Notes to be Redeemed
Section 3.4 Notice of Redemption
Section 3.5 Effect of Notice of Redemption
Section 3.6 Deposit of Redemption Price
Section 3.7 Notes Redeemed in Part

ARTICLE IV. COVENANTS

Section 4.1 Payment of Principal and Interest
Section 4.2 SEC Reports
Section 4.3 Compliance Certificate
Section 4.4 Stay, Extension and Usury Laws
Section 4.5 Corporate Existence

i

Section 4.6 Taxes
Section 4.7 Limitation on Liens
Section 4.8 Limitation on Sale and Lease-Back Transactions

ARTICLE V. SUCCESSORS

Section 5.1 When Company May Merge, Etc
Section 5.2 Successor Corporation Substituted

ARTICLE VI. DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

Section 6.1 Events of Default
Section 6.2 Acceleration of Maturity; Rescission and Annulment
Section 6.3 Collection of Indebtedness and Suits for Enforcement by Trustee
Section 6.4 Trustee May File Proofs of Claim
Section 6.5 Trustee May Enforce Claims Without Possession of Notes
Section 6.6 Application of Money Collected
Section 6.7 Limitation on Suits

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section2_15_160810
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section2_15_160810
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section2_16_160812
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section2_16_160812
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section2_17_160814
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section2_17_160814
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section2_18_160816
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section2_18_160816
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section2_19_160822
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section2_19_160822
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Articleiii_160827
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section3_1_160830
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section3_1_160830
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section3_2_160836
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section3_2_160836
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section3_3_160838
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section3_3_160838
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section3_4_160841
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section3_4_160841
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section3_5_160846
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section3_5_160846
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section3_6_160848
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section3_6_160848
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section3_7_160852
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section3_7_160852
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Articleiv_160917
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_1_160921
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_1_160921
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_2_160923
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_2_160923
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_3_160927
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_3_160927
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_4_160933
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_4_160933
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_5_160948
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_5_160948
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_6_160950
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_6_160950
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_7_160954
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_7_160954
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_8_160958
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section4_8_160958
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Articlev_161006
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section5_1_161011
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section5_1_161011
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section5_2_161015
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section5_2_161015
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Articlevi_161019
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section6_1_161026
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section6_1_161026
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section6_2_161031
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section6_2_161031
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section6_3_161036
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section6_3_161036
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section6_4_161040
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section6_4_161040
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section6_5_161044
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section6_5_161044
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section6_6_161047
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section6_6_161047
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section6_7_161051
http://edgar.secdatabase.com/1583/110465905021161/a05-8670_1ex4d1.htm#Section6_7_161051
http://www.secdatabase.com


Section 6.8 Unconditional Right of Holders to Receive Principal and Interest
Section 6.9 Restoration of Rights and Remedies
Section 6.10 Rights and Remedies Cumulative
Section 6.11 Delay or Omission Not Waiver
Section 6.12 Control by Holders
Section 6.13 Waiver of Past Defaults
Section 6.14 Undertaking for Costs

ARTICLE VII. TRUSTEE

Section 7.1 Duties of Trustee
Section 7.2 Rights of Trustee
Section 7.3 Individual Rights of Trustee
Section 7.4 Trustee�s Disclaimer
Section 7.5 Notice of Defaults
Section 7.6 Reports by Trustee to Holders
Section 7.7 Compensation and Indemnity
Section 7.8 Replacement of Trustee
Section 7.9 Successor Trustee by Merger, etc
Section 7.10 Eligibility; Disqualification
Section 7.11 Preferential Collection of Claims Against Company

ARTICLE VIII. SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE; DEFEASANCE

Section 8.1 Satisfaction and Discharge of Indenture
Section 8.2 Application of Trust Funds; Indemnification
Section 8.3 Legal Defeasance of Notes
Section 8.4 Covenant Defeasance

ii

Section 8.5 Repayment to Company

ARTICLE IX. AMENDMENTS AND WAIVERS

Section 9.1 Without Consent of Holders
Section 9.2 With Consent of Holders
Section 9.3 Limitations
Section 9.4 Compliance with Trust Indenture Act
Section 9.5 Revocation and Effect of Consents
Section 9.6 Notation on or Exchange of Notes
Section 9.7 Trustee Protected

ARTICLE X. MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10.1 Trust Indenture Act Controls
Section 10.2 Notices
Section 10.3 Communication by Holders with Other Holders
Section 10.4 Certificate and Opinion as to Conditions Precedent
Section 10.5 Statements Required in Certificate or Opinion
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Section 10.6 Rules by Trustee and Agents
Section 10.7 Legal Holidays
Section 10.8 No Recourse Against Others
Section 10.9 Counterparts
Section 10.10 Governing Laws
Section 10.11 No Adverse Interpretation of Other Agreements
Section 10.12 Successors
Section 10.13 Severability
Section 10.14 Table of Contents, Headings, Etc
Section 10.15 Judgment Currency

ARTICLE XI. SINKING FUNDS

Section 11.1 No Sinking Funds

ARTICLE XII. GUARANTEE

Section 12.1 Guarantee
Section 12.2 Execution and Delivery of Guarantee
Section 12.3 Release of Guarantor
Section 12.4 When Guarantor May Merge, etc

iii

HARRAH��S OPERATING COMPANY, INC.

Reconciliation and tie between Trust Indenture Act of 1939 and
Indenture, dated as of February 9, 2005

§ 310(a)(1) 7.10
(a)(2) 7.10
(a)(3) Not Applicable
(a)(4) Not Applicable
(a)(5) 7.10

(b) 7.10
§ 311(a) 7.11

(b) 7.11
(c) Not Applicable

§ 312(a) 2.5
(b) 10.3
(c) 10.3

§ 313(a) 7.6
(b)(1) 7.6
(b)(2) 7.6
(c)(1) 7.6

(d) 7.6
§ 314(a) 4.2, 10.5

(b) Not Applicable
(c)(1) 10.4
(c)(2) 10.4
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(c)(3) Not Applicable
(d) Not Applicable
(e) 10.5
(f) Not Applicable

§ 315(a) 7.1
(b) 7.5
(c) 7.1
(d) 7.1
(e) 6.14

§ 316(a) 2.9
(a)(1)(A) 6.12
(a)(1)(B) 6.13

(b) 6.8
§ 317(a)(1) 6.3

(a)(2) 6.4
(b) 2.4

§ 318(a) 10.1

Note: This reconciliation and tie shall not, for any purpose, be deemed to be part of the Indenture.

iv

Indenture dated as of February 9, 2005 between Harrah�s Operating Company, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the
�Company�), Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the �Guarantor�), and U.S. Bank National Association, a national
banking association (the �Trustee�).

Each party agrees as follows for the benefit of the other party and for the equal and ratable benefit of the Holders of the
Senior Floating Rate Notes due 2008 (the �Notes�):

ARTICLE I.
DEFINITIONS AND INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

Section 1.1 Definitions.

�Additional Interest� means all additional interest then owing pursuant to Section 5 of the Registration Rights Agreement.

�Additional Notes� means an unlimited additional aggregate principal amount of Notes (other than Initial Notes) issued
after the date hereof pursuant to Section 2.18 as part of the same series as the Initial Notes.

�Additional Note Board Resolutions� means resolutions duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company and
delivered to the Trustee in an Officer�s Certificate providing for the issuance of Additional Notes.

�Additional Note Supplemental Indenture� means a supplement to this Indenture duly executed and delivered by the
Company and the Trustee pursuant to Article IX hereof providing for the issuance of Additional Notes.

�Affiliate� of any specified Person means any other Person directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by or under direct
or indirect common control with such specified Person. For the purposes of this definition, �control� (including, with correlative meanings,
the terms �controlled by� and �under common control with�), as used with respect to any Person, shall mean the possession, directly or
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indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management or policies of such Person, whether through the ownership of voting
securities or by agreement or otherwise.

�Agent� means any Registrar, Paying Agent or Service Agent.

�Applicable Procedures� means, with respect to any transfer or exchange of or for beneficial interests in any Global Note,
the rules and procedures of the Depositary, Euroclear and Clearstream that apply to such transfer or exchange.

�Bankruptcy Law� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6.1.

�Board of Directors� means the Board of Directors of the Company or any duly authorized committee thereof.

�Board Resolution� means a copy of a resolution certified by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Company to
have been adopted by the Board of Directors or pursuant to authorization by the Board of Directors and to be in full force and effect on the
date of the certificate and delivered to the Trustee.

�Business Day� means, unless otherwise provided by Board Resolution, Officers� Certificate or supplemental indenture
hereto, any day except a Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday in the City of New York on which banking institutions are authorized or required
by law, regulation or executive order to close.

�Calculation Agent� means U.S. Bank National Association.

�Certificated Note� means a certificated Note registered in the name of the Holder thereof and issued in accordance with
Section 2.14.3 hereof, substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto except that such note shall not bear the Global Notes Legend and shall not
have the �Schedule of Interests in the Global Note� attached thereto.

�Clearstream� means Clearstream Banking, societé anonyme.

�Company� means the party named as such above until a successor replaces it and thereafter means the successor.

�Company Order� means a written order signed in the name of the Company by an Officer.

�Company Request� means a written request signed in the name of the Company by an Officer.

�Consolidated Net Tangible Assets� means the total amount of assets (including investments in Joint Ventures) of the
Company and its subsidiaries (less applicable depreciation, amortization and other valuation reserves) after deduction therefrom of (a) all
current liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries (excluding (i) the current portion of long-term indebtedness, (ii) intercompany liabilities
and (iii) any liabilities which are by their terms renewable or extendible at the option of the obligor thereon to a time more than 12 months
from the time as of which the amount thereof is being computed) and (b) all goodwill, trade names, trademarks, patents, unamortized debt
discount and any other like intangibles, all as set forth on the consolidated balance sheet of the Company for the most recently completed
fiscal quarter for which financial statements are available and computed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

�Consolidated Property� means any property of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

2
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�Corporate Trust Office� means the office of the Trustee at which at any particular time this Indenture shall be principally
administered, which initially shall be 60 Livingston Avenue, St. Paul, MN 55107, Mailcode EP-MN-WS3C, Attention: Corporate Trust
Services.

�Custodian� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6.1.

�Default� means any event which is, or after notice or passage of time would be, an Event of Default.

�Depositary� means, with respect to the Notes issuable or issued in whole or in part in the form of one or more Global
Notes, the person designated as Depositary by the Company, which Depositary shall be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act;
and if at any time there is more than one such person, �Depositary� as used with respect to the Notes shall mean the Depositary with respect to
the Notes.

�Dollars� means the currency of the United States of America.

�DTC� means The Depository Trust Company.

�Euroclear� means Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., as operator of the Euroclear Clearance System.

�Event of Default� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6.1.

�Exchange Act� means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

�Exchange Offer Registration Statement� has the meaning set forth in the Registration Rights Agreement.

�Foreign Currency� means any currency or currency unit issued by a government other than the government of the United
States of America.

�Foreign Government Obligations� means with respect to Notes that are denominated in a Foreign Currency, (i) direct
obligations of the government that issued or caused to be issued such currency for the payment of which obligations its full faith and credit is
pledged or (ii) obligations of a Person controlled or supervised by or acting as an agency or instrumentality of such government the timely
payment of which is unconditionally guaranteed as a full faith and credit obligation by such government, which, in either case under clauses
(i) or (ii), are not callable or redeemable at the option of the issuer thereof.

�Funded Debt� means all Indebtedness of the Company which (i) matures by its terms on, or is renewable at the option of
any obligor thereon to, a date more than one year after the date of original issuance of such Indebtedness and (ii) ranks at least pari passu with
the notes.

3

�Gaming Laws� means the gaming laws of a jurisdiction or jurisdictions to which the Company or a subsidiary of the
Company is, or may at any time after the date of this Indenture be, subject.

�Gaming Authority� means the Nevada Gaming Commission, the Nevada State Gaming Control Board, the New Jersey
Casino Control Commission or any similar commission or agency which has, or may at any time after the date of this Indenture have,
jurisdiction over the gaming activities of the Company or a subsidiary of the Company or any successor thereto.

�Global Note� or �Global Notes� means a Note or Notes, as the case may be, in the form established pursuant to
Section 2.13 evidencing all or part of the Notes, issued to the Depositary or its nominee, and registered in the name of such Depositary or
nominee.
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�Global Notes Legend� means the legend set forth in Section 2.13.2, which is required to be placed on all Global Notes
issued under this Indenture.

�Guarantee� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 12.1 hereof.

�Guarantor� means the party named as such above until a successor replaces it and thereafter means the successor.

�Holder� or �Noteholder� means a Person in whose name a Note is registered.

�Indebtedness� of any Person means (a) any indebtedness of such Person, contingent or otherwise, in respect of borrowed
money (whether or not the recourse of the lender is to the whole of the assets of such Person or only to a portion thereof), or evidenced by
notes, bonds, debentures or similar instruments or letters of credit, or representing the balance deferred and unpaid of the purchase price of any
property, including any such indebtedness incurred in connection with the acquisition by such Person or any of its Subsidiaries of any other
business or entity, if and to the extent such indebtedness would appear as a liability upon a balance sheet of such Person prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, including for such purpose obligations under capitalized leases, and (b) any
guarantee, endorsement (other than for collection or deposit in the ordinary course of business), discount with recourse, agreement (contingent
or otherwise) to purchase, repurchase or otherwise acquire or to supply or advance funds with respect to, or to become liable with respect to
(directly or indirectly) any indebtedness, obligation, liability or dividend of any Person, but shall not include indebtedness or amounts owed
for compensation to employees, or for goods or materials purchased, or services utilized, in the ordinary course of business of such Person.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing, �Indebtedness� shall not include (i) any contracts providing for the completion of
construction or other payment or performance with respect to the construction, maintenance or improvement of, or payment of taxes, revenue
share payments or other fees to governmental entities with respect to, property or equipment of the Company or its Affiliates or (ii) any
contracts providing for the obligation to advance funds, property or services on behalf of an Affiliate of the Company in order to maintain the
financial condition of such Affiliate. For purposes of this definition of Indebtedness, a �capitalized lease� shall be deemed to mean a lease
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of real or personal property which, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, is required to be capitalized.

�Indenture� means this Indenture as amended from time to time and shall include the form and terms of the Notes
established as contemplated hereunder.

�Initial Notes� means the first $250,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Notes issued under this Indenture on the date
hereof.

�Initial Purchaser� shall have the meaning set forth in the purchase agreement dated as of February 4, 2005 among the
Company, the Guarantor, and the Initial Purchaser listed therein.

�Institutional Accredited Investor� means an institution that is an �accredited investor� as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (2),
(3) or (7) under the Securities Act, who are not also QIBs.

�Interest Payment Date,� when used with respect to any Notes, means the date an installment of interest is due and payable
on such Notes.

�Joint Venture� means any partnership, corporation or other entity, in which up to and including 50% of the partnership
interests, outstanding voting stock or other equity interests is owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company and/or one or more of its
subsidiaries.

�Judgment Currency� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 10.15.

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


�Legal Holiday� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 10.7.

�LIBOR� means the London interbank offered rates, calculated as set forth in the Form of Note contained in Exhibit A.

�Lien� means any mortgage, pledge, hypothecation, assignment, deposit, arrangement, encumbrance, security interest, lien
(statutory or otherwise), or preference, priority or other security or similar agreement or preferential arrangement of any kind or nature
whatsoever (including, without limitation, any conditional sale or other title retention agreement having substantially the same economic
effect as any of the foregoing).

�Maturity� means the date on which the principal of the Notes becomes due and payable as therein or herein provided,
whether at the Stated Maturity or by declaration of acceleration, call for redemption, notice of option to elect repayment or otherwise.

�Maturity Date� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.1.

�New Notes� means the Notes issued in the Registered Exchange Offer pursuant to Section 2.14.4 hereof.
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�New York Banking Day� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 10.15.

�Non-recourse Indebtedness� means indebtedness with terms providing that the lender�s claim for repayment of such
indebtedness is limited solely to a claim against the property which secures the indebtedness.

�Non-U.S. Person� means a Person who is not a U.S. Person as defined in Rule 902(k) under the Securities Act.

�Notes� has the meaning assigned to it in the preamble to this Indenture. The Initial Notes and the Additional Notes shall
be treated as a single class for all purposes under this Indenture.

�Obligations� means any principal, interest, premium, if any, penalties, fees, indemnifications, reimbursements, damages or
other liabilities or amounts payable under the documentation governing or otherwise in respect of any Indebtedness.

�Officer� means the Chairman of the Board, any President, any Vice-President, the Treasurer, the Secretary, any Assistant
Treasurer or any Assistant Secretary of the Company.

�Officer�s Certificate� means a certificate signed by an Officer.

�Opinion of Counsel� means a written opinion of legal counsel who is acceptable to the Trustee. The counsel may be an
employee of or counsel to the Company.

�Paying Agent� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.3.

�Person� means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, limited liability company, joint-stock
company, trust, unincorporated organization or government or any agency or political subdivision thereof.

�Private Placement Legend� means the legend set forth in Section 2.14.5(a) to be placed on all Notes issued under this
Indenture except where otherwise permitted by the provisions of this Indenture.

�QIB� means a �qualified institutional buyer� as defined in Rule 144A.
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�Redemption Date� means the date of redemption of the Notes.

�Registered Exchange Offer� has the meaning set forth in the Registration Rights Agreement.

�Registrar� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.3.

�Registration Rights Agreement� means the Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2005, by and among the
Company, the Guarantor and the other parties named on the signature pages thereof, as such agreement may be amended, modified or
supplemented
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from time to time, and, with respect to any Additional Notes, one or more registration rights agreements between the Company and the other
parties thereto, as such agreement(s) may be amended, modified or supplemented from time to time, relating to rights given by the Company
to the purchasers of Additional Notes to register such Additional Notes under the Securities Act.

�Regular Record Date� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.3.

�Regulation S� means Regulation S promulgated under the Securities Act.

�Regulation S Global Note� means a Global Note bearing the Private Placement Legend and deposited with or on behalf of
the Depositary and registered in the name of the Depositary or its nominee, issued in a denomination equal to the outstanding principal amount
of the Notes initially sold in reliance on Rule 903 of Regulation S.

�Required Currency� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 10.15.

�Responsible Officer� means any officer of the Trustee assigned to administer corporate trust matters and also means, with
respect to a particular corporate trust matter, any other officer to whom any corporate trust matter is referred because of his or her knowledge
of and familiarity with a particular subject.

�Restricted Certificated Note� means a Certificated Note bearing the Private Placement Legend.

�Restricted Global Note� means a Global Note bearing the Private Placement Legend.

�Restricted Period� means the 40-day distribution compliance period as defined in Regulation S.

�Rule 144� means Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act.

�Rule 144A� means Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act.

�Rule 144A Global Note� means a Global Note bearing the Private Placement Legend and deposited with or on behalf of
the Depositary and registered in the name of the Depositary or its nominee, issued in a denomination equal to the outstanding principal amount
of the Notes initially sold in reliance on Rule 144A.

�Rule 903� means Rule 903 promulgated under the Securities Act.

�Rule 904� means Rule 904 promulgated under the Securities Act.
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�Sale and Lease-Back Transaction� means any arrangement with a Person (other than the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries), or to which any such Person is a party, providing for the leasing to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries for a period of more
than three years of
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any Consolidated Property which has been or is to be sold or transferred by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to such Person or to any
other Person (other than the Company of any of its Subsidiaries), to which funds have been or are to be advanced by such Person on the
security of the leased property.

�SEC� means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

�Securities Act� means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

�Service Agent� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.3.

�Significant Subsidiary� means (i) any direct or indirect Subsidiary of the Company that would be a �significant subsidiary�
as defined in Article 1, Rule 1-02 of Regulation S-X, promulgated pursuant to the Securities Act, as such regulation is in effect on the date
hereof, or (ii) any group of direct or indirect Subsidiaries of the Company that, taken together as a group, would be a �significant subsidiary�
as defined in Article 1, Rule 1-02 of Regulation S-X, promulgated pursuant to the Securities Act, as such regulation is in effect on the date
hereof.

�Stated Maturity� means, when used with respect to the Notes or any installment of interest thereon, the date specified in the
Notes as the fixed date on which the principal of the Notes or such installment of principal or interest is due and payable.

�Subsidiary� of any specified Person means any corporation of which at least a majority of the outstanding stock having by
the terms thereof ordinary voting power for the election of directors of such corporation (irrespective of whether or not at the time stock of any
other class or classes of such corporation shall have or might have voting power by reason of the happening of any contingency) is at the time
directly or indirectly owned by such Person, or by one or more other Subsidiaries, or by such Person and one or more other Subsidiaries.

�successor person� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.1.

�TIA� means the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (15 U.S. Code §§ 77aaa-77bbbb) as in effect on the date of this Indenture;
provided, however, that in the event the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 is amended after such date, �TIA� means, to the extent required by any
such amendment, the Trust Indenture Act as so amended.

�Trustee� means the Person named as the �Trustee� in the first paragraph of this instrument until a successor Trustee shall
have become such pursuant to the applicable provisions of this Indenture, and thereafter �Trustee� shall mean or include each Person who is
then a Trustee hereunder.

�Unrestricted Certificated Note� means one or more Certificated Notes that do not bear and are not required to bear the
Private Placement Legend.
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�Unrestricted Global Note� means a permanent Global Note substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto that bears the
Global Notes Legend and that has the �Schedule of Exchanges of Interests in the Global Note� attached thereto, and that is deposited with or
on behalf of and registered in the name of the Depositary, representing a series of Notes that do not bear the Private Placement Legend.
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�U.S. Government Obligations� means securities which are (i) direct obligations of the United States of America for the
payment of which its full faith and credit is pledged or (ii) obligations of a Person controlled or supervised by and acting as an agency or
instrumentality of the United States of America the payment of which is unconditionally guaranteed as a full faith and credit obligation by the
United States of America, and which in the case of (i) and (ii) are not callable or redeemable at the option of the issuer thereof, and shall also
include a depositary receipt issued by a bank or trust company as custodian with respect to any such U.S. Government Obligation or a specific
payment of interest on or principal of any such U.S. Government Obligation held by such custodian for the account of the holder of a
depositary receipt, provided that (except as required by law) such custodian is not authorized to make any deduction from the amount payable
to the holder of such depositary receipt from any amount received by the custodian in respect of the U.S. Government Obligation evidenced
by such depositary receipt.

�Value� means, with respect to a Sale and Lease-Back Transaction, as of any particular time, the amount equal to the
greater of (i) the net proceeds of the sale or transfer of property leased pursuant to such Sale and Lease-Back Transaction or (ii) the fair value,
in the opinion of the Board of Directors as evidenced by a board resolution, of such property at the time of entering into such Sale and Lease-
Back Transaction.

Section 1.2 Incorporation by Reference of Trust Indenture Act.

Whenever this Indenture refers to a provision of the TIA, the provision is incorporated by reference in and made a part of
this Indenture. The following TIA terms correspond to the following terms used in this Indenture:

�indenture securities� means the Notes.

�indenture security holder� means a Noteholder.

�indenture to be qualified� means this Indenture.

�indenture trustee� or �institutional trustee� means the Trustee.

�obligor� on the indenture securities means the Company and any successor obligor upon the Notes.

All other terms used in this Indenture that are defined by the TIA, defined by TIA reference to another statute or defined by
SEC rule under the TIA and not otherwise defined herein are used herein as so defined.
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Section 1.3 Rules of Construction.

Unless the context otherwise requires:
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(a) a term has the meaning assigned to it;

(b) an accounting term not otherwise defined has the meaning assigned to it in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c) references to �generally accepted accounting principles� shall mean generally accepted accounting principles in
effect as of the time when and for the period as to which such accounting principles are to be applied;

(d) �or� is not exclusive;

(e) words in the singular include the plural, and in the plural include the singular; and

(f) provisions apply to successive events and transactions.

ARTICLE II.
THE NOTES

Section 2.1 Terms of the Notes.

The following terms relating to the Notes are hereby established:

2.1.1 The entire outstanding principal of the Notes will mature on February 8, 2008 (the �Maturity Date�).

2.1.2 The Notes shall be in denominations of $1,000 and any integral multiple thereof. The Notes shall be denominated
in U.S. dollars and all payments of principal and interest on the Notes shall be made in U.S. dollars.

2.1.3 The Notes shall bear interest at a floating rate based on LIBOR, determined by the Calculation Agent as set forth in
the Form of Note in Exhibit A. The date from which interest shall accrue shall be February 9, 2005; the Interest Payment Dates for the Notes
on which interest shall be payable shall be February 8, May 8, August 8 and November 8 of each year, beginning May 8, 2005; the Regular
Record Dates for the interest payable on the Notes on any Interest Payment Date shall be the January 22, April 22, July 22 or October 22
(whether or not a Business Day), as the case may be, immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date (each a �Regular Record Date�).
Interest shall accrue on the basis of a 360-day year, consisting of twelve 30-day months. Interest on any Note shall be payable only to the
Person in whose name that Note is registered at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for such interest payment. If any Interest
Payment Date, Redemption Date or Maturity Date of any of the Notes is not a Business Day, then payment of principal and interest will be
made on
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the next succeeding Business Day. No interest will accrue on the amount so payable for the period from such Interest Payment Date,

Redemption Date or Maturity Date, as the case may be, to the date payment is made.

2.1.4 The place of payment where the principal of and interest on the Notes shall be payable and the Notes may be
surrendered for the registration of transfer or exchange shall be the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee. The place where notices or
demands to or upon the Company in respect of the Notes and this Indenture may be served shall be the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee.

2.1.5 The Notes shall not be redeemable at the option of any Holder thereof, whether upon the occurrence of any
particular circumstances or otherwise. The Notes will be redeemable, in whole or in part, at any time or from time to time on or after
February 8, 2007, at the option of the Company, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed,
plus accrued and unpaid interest on the principal amount being redeemed to such Redemption Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
installments of interest on the Notes that are due and payable on Interest Payment Dates falling on or prior to a Redemption Date will be
payable on the Interest Payment Date to the Person in whose name the Notes are registered at the close of business on the Regular Record
Date for such interest payment.

Notice of any redemption by the Company shall be mailed at least 30 days but not more than 60 days before any
Redemption Date to each holder of Notes to be redeemed. If the Company elects to partially redeem the Notes, the Trustee shall select, in
such manner as it shall deem fair and appropriate, the Notes to be redeemed.

Section 2.2 Execution and Authentication.

An Officer shall sign the Notes for the Company by manual or facsimile signature.

If an Officer whose signature is on a Note no longer holds that office at the time the Note is authenticated, the Note shall
nevertheless be valid.

A Note shall not be valid until authenticated by the manual signature of the Trustee or an authenticating agent. The
signature shall be conclusive evidence that the Note has been authenticated under this Indenture.

Subject to the provisions of this Section 2.2, the Trustee shall, at any time, and from time to time, authenticate Notes for
original issue upon receipt by the Trustee of a Company Order. Such Company Order may authorize authentication pursuant to written or
electronic instructions from the Company or its duly authorized agent or agents and shall contain the amount of Notes to be authenticated, to
whom the Notes are to be registered and where the notes are to be delivered.

Prior to the issuance of the Notes, the Trustee shall have received and (subject to Section 7.1) shall be fully protected in
relying on: (a) a Board Resolution, supplemental indenture hereto or Officer�s Certificate establishing the form and terms of the Notes, (b) an
Officer�s
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Certificate complying with Section 10.4, and (c) an Opinion of Counsel complying with Section 10.4.

The Trustee may appoint an authenticating agent acceptable to the Company to authenticate Notes. An authenticating agent
may authenticate Notes whenever the Trustee may do so. Each reference in this Indenture to authentication by the Trustee includes
authentication by such agent. An authenticating agent has the same rights as an Agent to deal with the Company or an Affiliate of the
Company.
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Section 2.3 Registrar and Paying Agent.

The Company shall maintain, with respect to the Notes, at the place or places specified pursuant to Section 2.1.4, an office
or agency where the Notes may be presented or surrendered for payment (�Paying Agent�), where the Notes may be surrendered for
registration of transfer or exchange (�Registrar�) and where notices and demands to or upon the Company in respect of the Notes and this
Indenture may be served (�Service Agent�). The Registrar shall keep a register with respect to the Notes and to their transfer and exchange.
The Company will give prompt written notice to the Trustee of the name and address, and any change in the name or address, of each
Registrar, Paying Agent or Service Agent. If at any time the Company shall fail to maintain any such required Registrar, Paying Agent or
Service Agent or shall fail to furnish the Trustee with the name and address thereof, such presentations, surrenders, notices and demands may
be made or served at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, and the Company hereby appoints the Trustee as its agent to receive all such
presentations, surrenders, notices and demands.

The Company may also from time to time designate one or more co-registrars, additional paying agents or additional service
agents and may from time to time rescind such designations; provided, however, that no such designation or rescission shall in any manner
relieve the Company of its obligations to maintain a Registrar, Paying Agent and Service Agent in each place so specified pursuant to
Section 2.1.4 for the Notes for such purposes. The Company will give prompt written notice to the Trustee of any such designation or
rescission and of any change in the name or address of any such co-registrar, additional paying agent or additional service agent. The term
�Registrar� includes any co-registrar; the term �Paying Agent� includes any additional paying agent; and the term �Service Agent� includes
any additional service agent.

The Company hereby appoints the Trustee as the initial Registrar, Paying Agent and Service Agent for the Notes. The
Company hereby appoints DTC to act as Depositary with respect to the Global Notes.

Section 2.4 Paying Agent to Hold Money in Trust.

The Company shall require each Paying Agent other than the Trustee to agree in writing that the Paying Agent will hold in
trust, for the benefit of Noteholders, or the Trustee, all money held by the Paying Agent for the payment of principal of or interest on the
Notes, and will
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notify the Trustee of any default by the Company in making any such payment. While any such default continues, the Trustee may require a
Paying Agent to pay all money held by it to the Trustee. The Company at any time may require a Paying Agent to pay all money held by it to
the Trustee. Upon payment over to the Trustee, the Paying Agent (if other than the Company or a Subsidiary) shall have no further liability
for the money. If the Company or a Subsidiary acts as Paying Agent, it shall segregate and hold in a separate trust fund for the benefit of
Noteholders all money held by it as Paying Agent.

Section 2.5 Noteholder Lists.

The Trustee shall preserve in as current a form as is reasonably practicable the most recent list available to it of the names
and addresses of Noteholders and shall otherwise comply with TIA § 312(a). If the Trustee is not the Registrar, the Company shall furnish to
the Trustee at least ten days before each interest payment date and at such other times as the Trustee may request in writing a list, in such form
and as of such date as the Trustee may reasonably require, of the names and addresses of Noteholders.
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Section 2.6 Intentionally Omitted.

Section 2.7 Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost and Stolen Notes.

If any mutilated Note is surrendered to the Trustee, the Company shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver
in exchange therefor a new Note of like tenor and principal amount and bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding.

If there shall be delivered to the Company and the Trustee (i) evidence to their satisfaction of the destruction, loss or theft of
any Note and (ii) such security or indemnity as may be required by them to save each of them and any agent of either of them harmless, then,
in the absence of notice to the Company or the Trustee that such Note has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, the Company shall execute
and upon its request the Trustee shall authenticate and make available for delivery, in lieu of any such destroyed, lost or stolen Note, a new
Note of like tenor and principal amount and bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding.

In case any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Note has become or is about to become due and payable, the Company
in its discretion may, instead of issuing a new Note, pay such Note.

Upon the issuance of any new Note under this Section, the Company may require the payment of a sum sufficient to cover
any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses (including the fees and expenses of the
Trustee) connected therewith.

Every new Note issued pursuant to this Section in lieu of any destroyed, lost or stolen Note shall constitute an original
additional contractual obligation of the Company, whether or not the destroyed, lost or stolen Note shall be at any time enforceable by anyone,
and shall be
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entitled to all the benefits of this Indenture equally and proportionately with any and all other Notes duly issued hereunder.

The provisions of this Section are exclusive and shall preclude (to the extent lawful) all other rights and remedies with
respect to the replacement or payment of mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Notes.

Section 2.8 Outstanding Notes.

The Notes outstanding at any time are all the Notes authenticated by the Trustee except for those canceled by it, those
delivered to it for cancellation, those reductions in the interest on a Global Note effected by the Trustee in accordance with the provisions
hereof and those described in this Section as not outstanding.

If a Note is replaced pursuant to Section 2.7, it ceases to be outstanding until the Trustee receives proof satisfactory to it that
the replaced Note is held by a bona fide purchaser.

If the Paying Agent (other than the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate of any thereof) holds on the Maturity Date money
sufficient to pay such Notes payable on that date, then on and after that date such Notes cease to be outstanding and interest on them ceases to
accrue.

A Note does not cease to be outstanding because the Company or an Affiliate holds the Note.
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Section 2.9 Treasury Notes.

In determining whether the Holders of the required principal amount of Notes have concurred in any request, demand,
authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver Notes owned by the Company or an Affiliate shall be disregarded, except that for the
purposes of determining whether the Trustee shall be protected in relying on any such request, demand, authorization, direction, notice,
consent or waiver only Notes that the Trustee knows are so owned shall be so disregarded.

Section 2.10 Temporary Notes.

Until definitive Notes are ready for delivery, the Company may prepare and the Trustee shall, subject to Section 2.2, (in the
case of original issuance), authenticate temporary Notes upon a Company Order. Temporary Notes shall be substantially in the form of
definitive Notes but may have variations that the Company considers appropriate for temporary Notes. Without unreasonable delay, the
Company shall prepare and the Trustee upon request shall authenticate definitive Notes and date of maturity in exchange for temporary
Notes. Until so exchanged, temporary securities shall have the same rights under this Indenture as the definitive Notes.
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Section 2.11 Cancellation.

The Company at any time may deliver Notes to the Trustee for cancellation. The Registrar and the Paying Agent shall
forward to the Trustee any Notes surrendered to them for registration of transfer, exchange or payment. The Trustee shall cancel all Notes
surrendered for transfer, exchange, payment, replacement or cancellation and shall destroy such canceled Notes (subject to the record retention
requirement of the Exchange Act) and deliver a certificate of such destruction to the Company, unless the Company otherwise directs. The
Company may not issue new Notes to replace Notes that it has paid or delivered to the Trustee for cancellation.

Section 2.12 Defaulted Interest.

If the Company defaults in a payment of interest on the Notes, it shall pay the defaulted interest, plus, to the extent permitted
by law, any interest payable on the defaulted interest, to the Persons who are Noteholders on a subsequent special record date. The Company
shall fix the record date and payment date. At least 30 days before the record date, the Company shall mail to the Trustee and to each
Noteholder a notice that states the record date, the payment date and the amount of interest to be paid. The Company may pay defaulted
interest in any other lawful manner.

Section 2.13 Global Notes.

2.13.1 Form of Notes. Notes shall be issued in global form substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto.

2.13.2 Legend. Any Global Note issued hereunder shall bear a legend in substantially the following form:

��This Note is a Global Note within the meaning of the Indenture hereinafter referred to and is registered in the name
of the Depositary or a nominee of the Depositary. This Note is exchangeable for Notes registered in the name of a Person other than
the Depositary or its nominee only in the limited circumstances described in the Indenture, and may not be transferred except as a
whole by the Depositary to a nominee of the Depositary, by a nominee of the Depositary to the Depositary or another nominee of the
Depositary or by the Depositary or any such nominee to a successor Depositary or a nominee of such a successor Depositary.��
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2.13.3 Acts of Holders. The Depositary, as a Holder, may appoint agents and otherwise authorize participants to give or
take any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent, waiver or other action which a Holder is entitled to give or take under the
Indenture.

2.13.4 Consents, Declaration and Directions. Except as provided in Section 2.15, the Company, the Trustee and any
Agent shall treat a person as the Holder of such principal amount of outstanding Notes represented by a Global Note as shall be specified in a
written statement of the Depositary with respect to such Global Note, for purposes of obtaining any

15

consents, declarations, waivers or directions required to be given by the Holders pursuant to this Indenture.

Section 2.14 Transfer and Exchange.

2.14.1 Transfer and Exchange of Global Notes. A Global Note may not be transferred as a whole except by the
Depositary to a nominee of the Depositary, by a nominee of the Depositary to the Depositary or to another nominee of the Depositary, or by
the Depositary or any such nominee to a successor Depositary or a nominee of such successor Depositary. All Global Notes will be
exchanged by the Company for Certificated Notes if (i) the Company delivers to the Trustee notice from the Depositary that it is unwilling or
unable to continue to act as Depositary or that it is no longer a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act and, in either case, a
successor Depositary is not appointed by the Company within 120 days after the date of such notice from the Depositary or (ii) the Company
in its sole discretion determines that the Global Notes (in whole but not in part) should be exchanged for Certificated Notes and delivers a
written notice to such effect to the Trustee. Upon the occurrence of either of the preceding events in (i) or (ii) above, Certificated Notes shall
be issued in such names as the Depositary shall instruct the Trustee. Global Notes also may be exchanged or replaced, in whole or in part, as
provided in Sections 2.7 and 2.10 hereof. Every Note authenticated and delivered in exchange for, or in lieu of, a Global Note or any portion
thereof, pursuant to this Section 2.14 or Section 2.7 or 2.10 hereof, shall be authenticated and delivered in the form of, and shall be, a Global
Note. A Global Note may not be exchanged for another Note other than as provided in this Section 2.14.1, however, beneficial interests in a
Global Note may be transferred and exchanged as provided in Section 2.14.2, 2.14.3, and 2.14.4 hereof.

2.14.2 Transfer and Exchange of Beneficial Interests in the Global Notes. The transfer and exchange of beneficial
interests in the Global Notes shall be effected through the Depositary, in accordance with the provisions of this Indenture and the Applicable
Procedures. Beneficial interests in the Restricted Global Notes shall be subject to restrictions on transfer comparable to those set forth herein
to the extent required by the Securities Act. Transfers of beneficial interests in the Global Notes also shall require compliance with either
subparagraph (a) or (b) below, as applicable, as well as one or more of the other following subparagraphs, as applicable:

(a) Transfer of Beneficial Interests in the Same Global Note. Beneficial interests in any Restricted Global Note may be
transferred to Persons who take delivery thereof in the form of a beneficial interest in the same Restricted Global Note in accordance
with the transfer restrictions set forth in the Private Placement Legend; provided, however, that prior to the expiration of the
Restricted Period, transfers of beneficial interests in the Regulation S Global Note may not be made to a U.S. Person or for the
account or benefit of a U.S. Person (other than an Initial Purchaser). Beneficial interests in any Unrestricted Global Note may be
transferred to Persons who take delivery thereof in the form of a beneficial interest in an Unrestricted Global Note. No written orders
or instructions shall be required to be delivered to the Registrar to effect the transfers described in this Section 2.14.2(a).
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(b) All Other Transfers and Exchanges of Beneficial Interests in Global Notes. In connection with all transfers and
exchanges of beneficial interests that are not subject to Section 2.14.2(a) above, the transferor of such beneficial interest must deliver
to the Registrar either (A) (1) a written order from a participant or an indirect participant in the Depositary given to the Depositary in
accordance with the Applicable Procedures directing the Depositary to credit or cause to be credited a beneficial interest in another
Global Note in an amount equal to the beneficial interest to be transferred or exchanged and (2) instructions given in accordance with
the Applicable Procedures containing information regarding the participant account to be credited with such increase or (B) (1) a
written order from a participant or an indirect participant given to the Depositary in accordance with the Applicable Procedures
directing the Depositary to cause to be issued a Certificated Note in an amount equal to the beneficial interest to be transferred or
exchanged and (2) instructions given by the Depositary to the Registrar containing information regarding the Person in whose name
such Certificated Note shall be registered to effect the transfer or exchange referred to in (1) above. Upon consummation of a
Registered Exchange Offer by the Company in accordance with Section 2.14.4 hereof, the requirements of this
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Section 2.14.2(b) shall be deemed to have been satisfied upon receipt by the Registrar of the instructions contained in the Letter of
Transmittal delivered by the Holder of such beneficial interests in the Restricted Global Notes. Upon satisfaction of all of the
requirements for transfer or exchange of beneficial interests in Global Notes contained in this Indenture and the Notes or otherwise
applicable under the Securities Act, the Trustee shall adjust the principal amount of the relevant Global Note(s) pursuant to
Section 2.14.6 hereof.

(c) Transfer of Beneficial Interests to Another Restricted Global Note. A beneficial interest in any Restricted Global
Note may be transferred to a Person who takes delivery thereof in the form of a beneficial interest in another Restricted Global Note
if the transfer complies with the requirements of Section 2.14.2(b) above and the Registrar receives the following:

(i) if the transferee will take delivery in the form of a beneficial interest in the Rule 144A Global Note, then
the transferor must deliver a certificate in the form of Exhibit C hereto; and

(ii) if the transferee will take delivery in the form of a beneficial interest in the Regulation S Global Note, then
the transferor must deliver a certificate in the form of Exhibit D hereto.

(d) Transfer and Exchange of Beneficial Interests in a Restricted Global Note for Beneficial Interests in the
Unrestricted Global Note. A beneficial interest in any Restricted Global Note may be exchanged by any holder thereof for a
beneficial interest in an Unrestricted Global Note or transferred to a Person who takes delivery thereof in the form of a beneficial
interest in an Unrestricted Global Note if the exchange or transfer complies with the requirements of Section 2.14.2(b) above and:
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(i) such exchange or transfer is effected pursuant to the Registered Exchange Offer in accordance with the
Registration Rights Agreement and the holder of the beneficial interest to be transferred, in the case of an exchange, or the
transferee, in the case of a transfer, certifies in the applicable Letter of Transmittal that it is not (1) a broker-dealer, (2) a
Person participating in the distribution of the New Notes or (3) a Person who is an affiliate (as defined in Rule 144) of the
Company;

(ii) such transfer is effected pursuant to the Shelf Registration Statement in accordance with the Registration
Rights Agreement;

(iii) such transfer is effected by a Broker-Dealer pursuant to the Exchange Offer Registration Statement in
accordance with the Registration Rights Agreement; or

(iv) the Registrar receives a certificate and/or any other information reasonably required by and satisfactory to
it in order to ensure compliance with the Securities Act and, if the Registrar so requests or if the Applicable Procedures so
require, an Opinion of Counsel in form reasonably acceptable to the Registrar to the effect that such exchange or transfer is
in compliance with the Securities Act and that the restrictions on transfer contained herein and in the Private Placement
Legend are no longer required in order to maintain compliance with the Securities Act.

If any such transfer is effected pursuant to subparagraph (ii) or (iv) above at a time when an Unrestricted Global Note has
not yet been issued, the Company shall issue and, upon receipt of a Company Order in accordance with Section 2.2 hereof, the Trustee shall
authenticate one or more Unrestricted Global Notes in an aggregate principal amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of beneficial
interests transferred pursuant to subparagraph (ii) or (iv) above.

Beneficial interests in an Unrestricted Global Note cannot be exchanged for, or transferred to Persons who take delivery
thereof in the form of, a beneficial interest in a Restricted Global Note.
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2.14.3 Transfer or Exchange of Beneficial Interests for Certificated Notes.

(a) Beneficial Interests in Restricted Global Notes to Restricted Certificated Notes. If any holder of a beneficial
interest in a Restricted Global Note proposes to exchange such beneficial interest for a Restricted Certificated Note or to transfer such
beneficial interest to a Person who takes delivery thereof in the form of a Restricted Certificated Note, then, upon receipt by the
Registrar of an Opinion of Counsel and/or a certificate and/or any other information reasonably required by and satisfactory to it in
order to ensure compliance with the Securities Act, the Trustee shall cause the aggregate principal amount of the applicable Global
Note to be reduced accordingly pursuant to Section 2.14.6 hereof, and the Company shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate
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and deliver to the Person designated in the instructions a Certificated Note in the appropriate principal amount. Any Certificated
Note issued in exchange for a beneficial interest in a Restricted Global Note pursuant to this Section 2.14.3 shall be registered in such
name or names and in such authorized denomination or denominations as the holder of such beneficial interest shall instruct the
Registrar through instructions from the Depositary and the participant or indirect participant in the Depositary. The Trustee shall
deliver such Certificated Notes to the Persons in whose names such Notes are so registered. Any Certificated Note issued in
exchange for a beneficial interest in a Restricted Global Note pursuant to this Section 2.14.3(a) shall bear the Private Placement
Legend and shall be subject to all restrictions on transfer contained therein.

(b) Beneficial Interests in Restricted Global Notes to Unrestricted Certificated Notes. A holder of a beneficial interest
in a Restricted Global Note may exchange such beneficial interest for an Unrestricted Certificated Note or may transfer such
beneficial interest to a Person who takes delivery thereof in the form of an Unrestricted Certificated Note only if:

(i) such exchange or transfer is effected pursuant to the Registered Exchange Offer in accordance with the
Registration Rights Agreement and the holder of such beneficial interest, in the case of an exchange, or the transferee, in the
case of a transfer, certifies in the applicable Letter of Transmittal that it is not (1) a broker-dealer, (2) a Person participating
in the distribution of the New Notes or (3) a Person who is an affiliate (as defined in Rule 144) of the Company;

(ii) such transfer is effected pursuant to the Shelf Registration Statement in accordance with the Registration
Rights Agreement;

(iii) such transfer is effected by a Broker-Dealer pursuant to the Exchange Offer Registration Statement in
accordance with the Registration Rights Agreement; or

(iv) the Registrar receives an Opinion of Counsel and/or a certificate and/or any other information reasonably
required by and satisfactory to it in order to maintain compliance with the Securities Act and to ensure that the restrictions
on transfer contained herein and in the Private Placement Legend are no longer required.

(c) Beneficial Interests in Unrestricted Global Notes to Unrestricted Certificated Notes. If any holder of a beneficial
interest in an Unrestricted Global Note proposes to exchange such beneficial interest for a Certificated Note or to transfer such
beneficial interest to a Person who takes delivery thereof in the form of a Certificated Note, then, upon satisfaction of the conditions
set forth in Section 2.14.2(b) hereof, the Trustee shall cause the aggregate principal amount of the applicable Global Note to be
reduced accordingly pursuant to Section 2.14.6 hereof, and the Company shall execute
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and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to the Person designated in the instructions a Certificated Note in the appropriate
principal amount. Any Certificated Note issued in exchange for a beneficial interest pursuant to this Section 2.14.3(c) shall be
registered in such name or names and in such authorized denomination or denominations as the holder of such beneficial interest
shall instruct the Registrar through instructions from the Depositary and the participant or indirect participant in the Depositary. The
Trustee shall deliver such Certificated Notes to the Persons in whose names such Notes are so registered. Any Certificated Note
issued in exchange for a beneficial interest pursuant to this Section 2.14.3(c) shall not bear the Private Placement Legend.

2.14.4 Registered Exchange Offer. Upon the occurrence of the Registered Exchange Offer in accordance with the
Registration Rights Agreement, the Company shall issue and, upon receipt of a Company Order in accordance with Section 2.2, the Trustee
shall authenticate (i) one or more Unrestricted Global Notes in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of the beneficial
interests in the Restricted Global Notes tendered for acceptance by Persons that certify in the applicable letters of transmittal that (x) they are
not broker-dealers, (y) they are not participating in a distribution of the New Notes and (z) they are not affiliates (as defined in Rule 144) of
the Company, and accepted for exchange in the Registered Exchange Offer and (ii) Certificated Notes in an aggregate principal amount equal
to the principal amount of the Restricted Certificated Notes accepted for exchange in the Registered Exchange Offer. Concurrently with the
issuance of such Notes, the Trustee shall cause the aggregate principal amount of the applicable Restricted Global Notes to be reduced
accordingly, and the Company shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to the Persons designated by the Holders of
Certificated Notes so accepted Unrestricted Certificated Notes in the appropriate principal amount.

2.14.5 Legends. The following legends shall appear on the face of all Global Notes and Certificated Notes issued under
this Indenture unless specifically stated otherwise in the applicable provisions of this Indenture.

(a) Private Placement Legend. Except as permitted by subparagraph (b) below, each Global Note and each Certificated
Note (and all Notes issued in exchange therefor or substitution thereof) shall bear the legend in substantially the following form:

��THE NOTES EVIDENCED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES
ACT OF 1933 (THE ��SECURITIES ACT��) AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED EXCEPT (A) BY THE INITIAL INVESTOR (1) TO A PERSON WHO THE SELLER REASONABLY
BELIEVES IS A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER WITHIN THE MEANING OF RULE 144A UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT PURCHASING FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF A QUALIFIED
INSTITUTIONAL BUYER IN A TRANSACTION MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 144A, (2) IN AN
OFFSHORE TRANSACTION COMPLYING WITH RULE 903
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OR RULE 904 OF REGULATIONS UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR (3) PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT PROVIDED BY RULE 144 THEREUNDER (IF AVAILABLE) OR
(4) PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND (B) BY
SUBSEQUENT INVESTORS, AS SET FORTH IN (A) ABOVE, AND, IN ADDITION, TO AN INSTITUTIONAL
INVESTOR THAT IS AN ACCREDITED INVESTOR WITHIN THE MEANING OF RULE 501 OF REGULATION D
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT AND, IN THE CASE OF EACH OF CLAUSES (A) AND (B), IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL
APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS OF THE STATES OF THE UNITED STATES AND OTHER JURISDICTIONS. IN
CONNECTION WITH ANY TRANSFER OF THIS NOTE WITHIN TWO YEARS AFTER THE ORIGINAL ISSUANCE
OF THIS NOTE, THE HOLDER MUST, PRIOR TO SUCH TRANSFER, FURNISH TO THE TRUSTEE AND THE
ISSUER SUCH CERTIFICATIONS, LEGAL OPINIONS OR OTHER INFORMATION AS MAY BE REQUIRED
PURSUANT TO THE INDENTURE TO CONFIRM THAT SUCH TRANSFER IS BEING MADE PURSUANT TO AN
EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE
SECURITIES ACT.��

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Global Note or Certificated Note issued pursuant to Sections 2.14.2(d),
2.14.3(b), 2.14.3(c), 2.14.4 (and all Notes issued in exchange therefor or substitution thereof) shall not bear the Private Placement
Legend.

(c) Global Notes Legend. Each Global Note shall bear the Global Notes Legend in addition to the Private Placement
Legend.

2.14.6 Cancellation and/or Adjustment of Global Notes. At such time as all beneficial interests in a particular Global
Note have been exchanged for Certificated Notes or a particular Global Note has been redeemed, repurchased or canceled in whole and not in
part, each such Global Note shall be returned to or retained and canceled by the Trustee in accordance with Section 2.11 hereof. At any time
prior to such cancellation, if any beneficial interest in a Global Note is exchanged for or transferred to a Person who will take delivery thereof
in the form of a beneficial interest in another Global Note or for Certificated Notes, the principal amount of Notes represented by such Global
Note shall be reduced accordingly and an endorsement shall be made on such Global Note by the Trustee or by the Depositary at the direction
of the Trustee to reflect such reduction; and if the beneficial interest is being exchanged for or transferred to a Person who will take delivery
thereof in the form of a beneficial interest in another Global Note, such other Global Note shall be increased accordingly and an endorsement
shall be made on such Global Note by the Trustee or by the Depositary at the direction of the Trustee to reflect such increase.
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2.14.7 General Provisions Relating to Transfers and Exchanges.

(a) To permit registrations of transfers and exchanges, the Company shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate
Global Notes and Certificated Notes upon receipt of a Company Order or at the Registrar�s request.

(b) No service charge shall be made to a Holder of a beneficial interest in a Global Note or to a Holder of a Certificated
Note for any registration of transfer or exchange, but the Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any transfer tax
or similar governmental charge payable in connection therewith (other than any such transfer taxes or similar governmental charge
payable upon exchange or transfer pursuant to Sections 2.10, 3.7, and 9.6 hereof).

(c) The Registrar shall not be required to register the transfer of or exchange any Note selected for redemption in whole
or in part, except the unredeemed portion of any Note being redeemed in part.

(d) All Global Notes and Certificated Notes issued upon any registration of transfer or exchange of Global Notes or
Certificated Notes shall be the valid obligations of the Company, evidencing the same debt, and entitled to the same benefits under
this Indenture, as the Global Notes or Certificated Notes surrendered upon such registration of transfer or exchange.

(e) Neither the Company nor the Registrar shall be required (A) to issue, to register the transfer of or to exchange any
Notes during a period beginning at the opening of business 15 days before the day of any selection of Notes for redemption under
Section 3.2 hereof and ending at the close of business on the day of selection, (B) to register the transfer of or to exchange any Note
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so selected for redemption in whole or in part, except the unredeemed portion of any Note being redeemed in part or (C) to register
the transfer of or to exchange a Note between a record date and the next succeeding Interest Payment Date.

(f) Prior to due presentment for the registration of a transfer of any Note, the Trustee, any Agent and the Company
may deem and treat the Person in whose name any Note is registered as the absolute owner of such Note for the purpose of receiving
payment of principal of and interest on such Notes and for all other purposes, and none of the Trustee, any Agent or the Company
shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

(g) The Trustee shall authenticate Global Notes and Certificated Notes in accordance with the provisions of Section 2.2
hereof.

(h) All certifications, certificates and Opinions of Counsel required to be submitted to the Registrar pursuant to this
Section 2.14 to effect a registration of transfer or exchange may be submitted by facsimile.
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Section 2.15 Payments.

Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Indenture, unless otherwise specified, payment of the principal of and interest,
if any, on any Global Note shall be made to the Holder thereof.

Section 2.16 CUSIP Numbers.

The Company in issuing the Notes may use �CUSIP� numbers (if then generally in use), and, if so, the Trustee shall use
�CUSIP� numbers in notices of redemption as a convenience to Holders; provided that any such notice may state that no representation is
made as to the correctness of such numbers either as printed on the Notes or as contained in any notice of a redemption and that reliance may
be placed only on the other elements of identification printed on the Notes, and any such redemption shall not be affected by any defect in or
omission of such numbers.

Section 2.17 Mandatory Disposition of Notes Pursuant to Gaming Laws.

Each Holder and beneficial owner, by accepting or otherwise acquiring an interest in the Notes, shall be deemed to have
agreed that if the Gaming Authority of any jurisdiction in which the Company or any of its subsidiaries conducts or proposes to conduct
gaming requires that a Person who is a Holder or beneficial owner must be licensed, qualified or found suitable under the applicable Gaming
Laws, such Holder or beneficial owner shall apply for a license, qualification or a finding of suitability within the required time period. If
such Person fails to apply or become licensed or qualified or is found unsuitable, then the Company shall have the right, at its option, (i) to
require such Person to dispose of its Notes or beneficial interest therein within 30 days of receipt of notice of the Company�s election or such
earlier date as may be requested or prescribed by such Gaming Authority or (ii) to redeem such Notes at a redemption price equal to the lesser
of (a) such Person�s cost or (b) 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the earlier of the redemption date
and the date of the finding of unsuitability, which may be less than 30 days following the notice of redemption if so requested or prescribed by
the Gaming Authority. The Company shall notify the Trustee in writing of any such redemption as soon as practicable. The Company shall
not be responsible for any costs or expenses any such Holder or beneficial owner may incur in connection with its application for a license,
qualification or a finding of suitability.

Section 2.18 Additional Notes.

The Company may, from time to time, subject to compliance with any other applicable provisions of this Indenture, without
the consent of the Holders, create and issue pursuant to this Indenture Additional Notes having terms and conditions identical to those of the
Initial Notes, except that Additional Notes:
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(i) may have a different issue date from the Initial Notes;

(ii) may have a different amount of interest payable than is payable on the Initial Notes;
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(iii) may have terms specified in the Additional Note Board Resolution or Additional Note Supplemental Indenture for such
Additional Notes making appropriate adjustments applicable to such Additional Notes in order to conform to and ensure compliance
with the Securities Act (or other applicable securities laws) and any registration rights or similar agreement applicable to such
Additional Notes, which are not adverse in any material respect to the Holder of any Initial Notes; and

(iv) may be entitled to additional interest as contemplated in Section 2.19 not applicable to Initial Notes and may not be
entitled to such additional interest applicable to Initial Notes.

Section 2.19 Additional Interest Under Registration Rights Agreements

Under certain circumstances, the Company may be obligated to pay Additional Interest to Holders, all as and to the extent
set forth in the Registration Rights Agreement or any registration rights agreement applicable to Additional Notes. The terms thereof are
hereby incorporated herein by reference and such Additional Interest, if required to be paid, is deemed to be interest for purposes of this
Indenture.

ARTICLE III.
REDEMPTION

Section 3.1 Optional Redemption.

The Notes shall not be redeemable at the option of any Holder thereof, upon the occurrence of any particular circumstances
or otherwise. The Notes will be redeemable, in whole or in part, at any time or from time to time on or after February 8, 2007, at the option of
the Company, in principal amounts of $1,000 or any integral multiple of $1,000 at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount
of the Notes to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest on the principal amount being redeemed to such Redemption Date.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, installments of interest on the Notes that are due and payable on Interest Payment Dates falling on or prior to a
Redemption Date will be payable on the Interest Payment Date to the Person in whose name the Notes are registered at the close of business
on the Regular Record Date for such interest payment.

Section 3.2 Notice to Trustee.

If the Company elects to redeem Notes pursuant to the optional redemption provisions of Section 3.1, it shall notify the
Trustee of the Redemption Date and the principal amount of Notes to be redeemed.

Section 3.3 Selection of Notes to be Redeemed.

If less than all the Notes are to be redeemed, the Trustee shall select the Notes to be redeemed in any manner that the
Trustee deems fair and appropriate. The Trustee shall make the selection from Notes outstanding not previously called for redemption. The
Trustee may
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select for redemption portions of the principal of Notes that have denominations larger than $1,000. Notes and portions of them it selects shall
be in amounts of $1,000 or whole multiples of $1,000.

Section 3.4 Notice of Redemption.

At least 30 days but not more than 60 days before a redemption date, the Company shall mail a notice of redemption by
first-class mail to each Holder whose Notes are to be redeemed (and provide a copy of such notice to the Trustee).

The notice shall identify the Notes to be redeemed and shall state:

(a) the redemption date;

(b) the redemption price;

(c) if any Note is being redeemed in part, the portion of the principal amount of such Note to be redeemed and that
after the Redemption Date upon surrender of such Note a new Note or Notes in principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion
will be issued upon cancellation of the original Notes;

(d) the name and address of the Paying Agent;

(e) that Notes called for redemption must be surrendered to the Paying Agent to collect the redemption price;

(f) that interest on Notes called for redemption ceases to accrue on and after the redemption date; and

(g) that no representation is made as to the correctness or accuracy of the CUSIP number, if any, listed in such notice
or printed on the Notes.

At the Company�s request, the Trustee shall give the notice of redemption in the Company�s name and at its expense,
provided that the Company makes such request at least two Business Days (or such shorter time as is reasonably acceptable to the Trustee)
prior to the date by which such notice of redemption must be given to Holders in accordance with this Section 3.4 and provides the Trustee
with all information required for such notice of redemption.

If mailed in the manner provided for in this Section 3.4, the notice of redemption shall be conclusively presumed to have
been given whether or not the Holder receives such notice. Failure to give such notice or any defect in the notice to any Holder shall not
affect the validity of the notice or the redemption.

25

Section 3.5 Effect of Notice of Redemption.

Once notice of redemption is mailed as provided in Section 3.4, Notes called for redemption become due and payable on the
redemption date and at the redemption price. A notice of redemption may not be conditional. Upon surrender to the Paying Agent, such
Notes shall be paid at the redemption price plus accrued interest to the redemption date.

Section 3.6 Deposit of Redemption Price.

On or before the redemption date, the Company shall deposit with the Paying Agent money sufficient to pay the redemption
price of and accrued interest, if any, on all Notes to be redeemed on that date. If the Company complies with the provisions of this Section, on
and after the Redemption Date, interest will cease to accrue on the Note or the portions of the Notes called for redemption.

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


Section 3.7 Notes Redeemed in Part.

Upon surrender of a Note that is redeemed in part, the Trustee shall authenticate for the Holder a new Note and the same
maturity equal in principal amount to the unredeemed portion of the Note surrendered.

ARTICLE IV.
COVENANTS

Section 4.1 Payment of Principal and Interest.

The Company covenants and agrees for the benefit of the Holders of the Notes that it will duly and punctually pay the
principal of and interest, if any, on the Notes in accordance with the terms of the Notes and this Indenture.

Section 4.2 SEC Reports.

The Company shall deliver to the Trustee within 15 days after it files them with the SEC copies of the annual reports and the
information, documents, and other reports (or copies of such portions of any of the foregoing as the SEC may by rules and regulations
prescribe) which the Company is required to file with the SEC pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. The Company also shall
comply with the other provisions of TIA § 314(a). Delivery of reports, information and documents to the Trustee under this Section is for
informational purposes only and the Trustee�s receipt of the foregoing shall not constitute constructive notice of any information contained
therein or determinable from information contained therein.

Section 4.3 Compliance Certificate.

The Company shall deliver to the Trustee, within 90 days after the end of each fiscal year of the Company, an Officers�
Certificate stating that a review of the activities of the Company and its Subsidiaries during the preceding fiscal year has been made under the
supervision of the signing Officers with a view to determining whether the Company has kept,
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observed, performed and fulfilled its obligations under this Indenture, and further stating, as to each such Officer signing such certificate, that
to the best of his knowledge the Company has kept, observed, performed and fulfilled each and every covenant contained in this Indenture and
is not in default in the performance or observance of any of the terms, provisions and conditions hereof (or, if a Default or Event of Default
shall have occurred, describing all such Defaults or Events of Default of which he may have knowledge).

The Company will, so long as any of the Notes are outstanding, deliver to the Trustee, forthwith upon any Officer becoming
aware of any Default or Event of Default, an Officers� Certificate specifying such Default or Event of Default and what action the Company
is taking or proposes to take with respect thereto.

Section 4.4 Stay, Extension and Usury Laws.

The Company covenants (to the extent that it may lawfully do so) that it will not at any time insist upon, plead, or in any
manner whatsoever claim or take the benefit or advantage of, any stay, extension or usury law wherever enacted, now or at any time hereafter
in force, which may affect the covenants or the performance of this Indenture or the Notes; and the Company (to the extent it may lawfully do
so) hereby expressly waives all benefit or advantage of any such law and covenants that it will not, by resort to any such law, hinder, delay or
impede the execution of any power herein granted to the Trustee, but will suffer and permit the execution of every such power as though no
such law has been enacted.
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Section 4.5 Corporate Existence.

Subject to Article V hereof, the Company shall do or cause to be done all things necessary to preserve and keep in full force
and effect its corporate existence and the corporate, partnership or other existence of each Significant Subsidiary in accordance with the
respective organizational documents (as the same may be amended from time to time) of each Significant Subsidiary and the rights (charter
and statutory), licenses and franchises of the Company and its Significant Subsidiaries; provided, however, that the Company shall not be
required to preserve any such right, license or franchise, or the corporate, partnership or other existence of any Significant Subsidiary, if the
Board of Directors shall determine that the preservation thereof is no longer desirable in the conduct of the business of the Company and its
Subsidiaries taken as a whole and that the loss thereof is not adverse in any material respect to the Holders.

Section 4.6 Taxes.

The Company shall, and shall cause each of its Significant Subsidiaries to, pay prior to delinquency all material taxes,
assessments and governmental levies, except as contested in good faith and by appropriate proceedings or where the failure to effect such
payment is not adverse in any material respect to the Holder of the Notes.
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Section 4.7 Limitation on Liens.

Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries may issue, assume or guarantee any Indebtedness secured by a Lien upon
any Consolidated Property or on any Indebtedness or shares of capital stock of, or other ownership interests in, any Subsidiaries (regardless of
whether the Consolidated Property, Indebtedness, capital stock or ownership interests were acquired before or after the date of the Indenture)
without effectively providing that the Notes shall be secured equally and ratably with (or prior to) such Indebtedness so long as such
Indebtedness shall be so secured, except that this restriction will not apply to: (a) Liens existing on the date of original issuance of the Notes;
(b) Liens affecting property of a corporation or other entity existing at the time it becomes a Subsidiary of the Company or at the time it is
merged into or consolidated with the Company or a Subsidiary of the Company; (c) Liens on property existing at the time of acquisition
thereof or to secure Indebtedness incurred prior to, at the time of, or within 24 months after the acquisition for the purpose of financing all or
part of the purchase price thereof; (d) Liens on any property to secure all or part of the cost of improvements or construction thereon or
Indebtedness incurred to provide funds for such purpose in a principal amount not exceeding the cost of such improvements or construction;
(e) Liens which secure Indebtedness owing by a Subsidiary of the Company to the Company or to another Subsidiary of the Company;
(f) Liens securing Indebtedness of the Company the proceeds of which are used substantially simultaneously with the incurrence of such
Indebtedness to retire Funded Debt; (g) purchase money security Liens on personal property; (h) Liens securing Indebtedness of the Company
or any of its Subsidiaries the proceeds of which are used within 24 months of the incurrence of such Indebtedness for the cost of the
construction and development or improvement of property of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; (i) Liens on the stock, partnership or
other equity interest of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in any Joint Venture or any such Subsidiary which owns an equity interest in
such Joint Venture to secure Indebtedness, provided the amount of such Indebtedness is contributed and/or advanced solely to such Joint
Venture; (j) Liens to government entities, including pollution control or industrial revenue bond financing; (k) Liens required by any contract
or statute in order to permit the Company or a Subsidiary of the Company to perform any contract or subcontract made by it with or at the
request of a governmental entity; (l) mechanic�s, materialman�s, carrier�s or other like Liens, arising in the ordinary course of business; (m)
Liens for taxes or assessments and similar charges; (n) zoning restrictions, easements, licenses, covenants, reservations, restrictions on the use
of real property and certain other minor irregularities of title; and (o) any extension, renewal, replacement or refinancing of any Indebtedness
secured by a Lien permitted by any of the foregoing clauses (a) through (n). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company and any one or
more of its Subsidiaries may, without securing the Notes, issue, assume or guarantee Indebtedness which would otherwise be subject to the
foregoing restrictions in an aggregate principal amount which, together with all other such Indebtedness of the Company and its Subsidiaries
which would otherwise be subject to the foregoing restrictions (not including Indebtedness permitted by the preceding paragraph) and the
aggregate Value of Sale and Lease-Back Transactions (other than those in connection with which the Company has voluntarily retired Funded
Debt), does not at any one time exceed 15% of Consolidated Net Tangible Assets of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries.
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Section 4.8 Limitation on Sale and Lease-Back Transactions.

Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries shall enter into any Sale and Lease-Back Transaction unless either (a) the
Company or such Subsidiary would be entitled, pursuant to the above provisions, to incur Indebtedness in a principal amount equal to or
exceeding the Value of such Sale and Lease-Back Transaction, secured by a Lien on the property to be leased, without equally and ratably
securing the Notes or (b) the Company within 120 days after the effective date of such Sale and Lease-Back Transaction applies to the
voluntary retirement of its Funded Debt an amount equal to the Value of the Sale and Lease-Back Transaction (subject to credits for certain
voluntary retirements of Funded Debt).

ARTICLE V.
SUCCESSORS

Section 5.1 When Company May Merge, Etc.

The Company shall not consolidate with or merge with or into any other Person or, directly or indirectly, sell, lease or
convey all or substantially all of its assets to another Person, and may not permit any Person to, directly or indirectly, sell, lease or convey all
or substantially all of its assets to the Company, whether in a single transaction or a series of related transactions, unless:

(a) either the Company shall be the continuing person, or the Person (if other than the Company) formed by such
consolidation or into or with which the Company is merged or to which the assets of the Company are transferred shall be a
corporation organized and validly existing under the laws of the United States or any State thereof or the District of Columbia and
shall expressly assume, by an indenture supplemental hereto, executed and delivered to the Trustee, in form satisfactory to the
Trustee, all the obligations of the Company on the Notes and under this Indenture;

(b) immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no Event of Default, and no event or condition which, after
notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event of Default, shall have occurred and be continuing; and

(c) the Company has delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each stating that such
consolidation, merger, sale, conveyance or lease and such supplemental indenture comply with this Section 5.1 and that all conditions
precedent herein provided for relating to such transaction have been complied with.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the restrictions set forth in this Section 5.1 shall not apply to the proposed merger with Caesars
Entertainment, Inc. and the proposed sale of Harrah�s East Chicago and Harrah�s Tunica and the Atlantic City Hilton and Bally�s Tunica by
Caesars Entertainment, Inc., if applicable, to an affiliate of Colony Capital, LLC.
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Section 5.2 Successor Corporation Substituted.

Upon any consolidation or merger, or any sale, lease, conveyance or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets
of the Company in accordance with Section 5.1, the successor corporation formed by such consolidation or into or with which the Company is
merged or to which such sale, lease, conveyance or other disposition is made shall succeed to, and be substituted for (so that from and after the
date of such consolidation, merger, sale, lease, conveyance or other disposition, the provisions of this Indenture referring to the �Company�
shall refer instead to the successor corporation and not to the Company), and may exercise every right and power of, the Company under this
Indenture with the same effect as if such successor person has been named as the Company herein; provided, however, that the predecessor
Company in the case of a sale, lease, conveyance or other disposition shall not be released from the obligation to pay the principal of and
interest, if any, on the Notes.
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ARTICLE VI.
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

Section 6.1 Events of Default.

�Event of Default,� wherever used herein with respect to the Notes, means any one of the following events:

(a) default in the payment of any interest on any Note when it becomes due and payable, and continuance of such
default for a period of 30 days (unless the entire amount of such payment is deposited by the Company with the Trustee or with a
Paying Agent prior to the expiration of such period of 30 days); or

(b) default in the payment of the principal of any Note at its Maturity, upon redemption or otherwise; or

(c) default in the performance or breach of any covenant or warranty of the Company or the Guarantor in this
Indenture, which default continues uncured for a period of 60 days after there has been given, by registered or certified mail, to the
Company or the Guarantor by the Trustee or to the Company, the Guarantor and the Trustee by the Holders of at least 25% in
principal amount of the outstanding Notes (including Additional Notes, if any) a written notice specifying such default or breach and
requiring it to be remedied and stating that such notice is a �Notice of Default� hereunder; or

(d) the acceleration of the maturity of any Indebtedness of the Company (other than Non-recourse Indebtedness), at any
one time, in an amount in excess of the greater of (i) $25 million and (ii) 5% of Consolidated Net Tangible Assets, if such
acceleration is not annulled within 30 days after written notice to the Company by the Trustee and the Holders of at least 25% in
principal amount of the outstanding Notes (including Additional Notes, if any); or
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(e) the Company or any of its Significant Subsidiaries pursuant to or within the meaning of any Bankruptcy Law:

(i) commences a voluntary case,

(ii) consents to the entry of an order for relief against it in an involuntary case,

(iii) consents to the appointment of a Custodian of it or for all or substantially all of its property,

(iv) makes a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or

(v) generally is not paying its debts as the same become due; or

(f) a court of competent jurisdiction enters an order or decree under any Bankruptcy Law that:

(i) is for relief against the Company or any of its Significant Subsidiaries in an involuntary case,

(ii) appoints a Custodian of the Company or any of its Significant Subsidiaries or for all or substantially all of
its property, or

(iii) orders the liquidation of the Company or any of its Significant Subsidiaries, and the order or decree
remains unstayed and in effect for 60 consecutive days.

The term �Bankruptcy Law� means Title 11, U.S. Code or any similar Federal or State law for the relief of debtors. The
term �Custodian� means any receiver, trustee, assignee, liquidator or similar official under any Bankruptcy Law.
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Section 6.2 Acceleration of Maturity; Rescission and Annulment.

If an Event of Default with respect to the Notes at the time outstanding occurs and is continuing (other than an Event of
Default referred to in Section 6.1(e) or (f)) then in every such case the Trustee or the Holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of the
outstanding Notes (including Additional Notes, if any) may declare the principal amount of and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on all of
the Notes to be due and payable immediately, by a notice in writing to the Company (and to the Trustee if given by Holders), and upon any
such declaration such principal amount (or specified amount) and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, shall become immediately due and
payable. If an Event of Default specified in Section 6.1(e) or (f) shall occur, the principal amount (or specified amount) of and accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, on all outstanding Notes shall ipso facto become and be immediately due and payable without any declaration or other
act on the part of the Trustee or any Holder.
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At any time after such a declaration of acceleration with respect to the Notes has been made and before a judgment or decree
for payment of the money due has been obtained by the Trustee as hereinafter in this Article provided, the Holders of a majority in aggregate
principal amount of the then outstanding Notes, by written notice to the Company and the Trustee, may, on behalf of all the Holders, rescind
and annul such declaration and its consequences if:

(a) the Company has paid or deposited with the Trustee a sum sufficient to pay

(i) all overdue interest, if any, on all Notes,

(ii) the principal of any Notes which have become due otherwise than by such declaration of acceleration and
interest thereon,

(iii) to the extent that payment of such interest is lawful, interest upon any overdue principal and overdue
interest at the rate or rates prescribed therefor in such Notes, and

(iv) all sums paid or advanced by the Trustee hereunder and the reasonable compensation, expenses,
disbursements and advances of the Trustee, its agents and counsel; and

(b) all Events of Default with respect to the Notes, other than the non-payment of the principal of the Notes which have
become due solely by such declaration of acceleration, have been cured or waived as provided in Section 6.13.

No such rescission shall affect any subsequent Default or impair any right consequent thereon.

Section 6.3 Collection of Indebtedness and Suits for Enforcement by Trustee.

The Company covenants that if:

(a) default is made in the payment of any interest on any Note when such interest becomes due and payable and such
default continues for a period of 30 days, or

(b) default is made in the payment of principal of any Note at the Maturity thereof,

then, the Company will, upon demand of the Trustee, pay to it, for the benefit of the Holders of the Notes, the whole amount then due and
payable on the Notes for principal and interest and, to the extent that payment of such interest shall be legally enforceable, interest on any
overdue principal or any overdue interest, at the rate or rates prescribed therefor in the Notes, and, in addition thereto, such further amount as
shall be sufficient to cover the costs and expenses of
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collection, including the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances of the Trustee, its agents and counsel.

If the Company fails to pay such amounts forthwith upon such demand, the Trustee, in its own name and as trustee of an
express trust, may institute a judicial proceeding for the collection of the sums so due and unpaid, may prosecute such proceeding to judgment
or final decree and may enforce the same against the Company or any other obligor upon such Notes and collect the moneys adjudged or
deemed to be payable in the manner provided by law out of the property of the Company or any other obligor upon the Notes, wherever
situated.

If an Event of Default with respect to any Note occurs and is continuing, the Trustee may in its discretion proceed to protect
and enforce its rights and the rights of the Holders of the Notes by such appropriate judicial proceedings as the Trustee shall deem most
effectual to protect and enforce any such rights, whether for the specific enforcement of any covenant or agreement in this Indenture or in aid
of the exercise of any power granted herein, or to enforce any other proper remedy.

Section 6.4 Trustee May File Proofs of Claim.

In case of the pendency of any receivership, insolvency, liquidation, bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, adjustment,
composition or other judicial proceeding relative to the Company or any other obligor upon the Notes or the property of the Company or of
such other obligor or their creditors, the Trustee (irrespective of whether the principal of the Notes shall then be due and payable as therein
expressed or by declaration or otherwise and irrespective of whether the Trustee shall have made any demand on the Company for the
payment of overdue principal or interest) shall be entitled and empowered, by intervention in such proceeding or otherwise,

(a) to file and prove a claim for the whole amount of principal and interest owing and unpaid in respect of the Notes
and to file such other papers or documents as may be necessary or advisable in order to have the claims of the Trustee (including any
claim for the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances of the Trustee, its agents and counsel) and of the
Holders allowed in such judicial proceeding, and

(b) to collect and receive any moneys or other property payable or deliverable on any such claims and to distribute the
same,

and any custodian, receiver, assignee, trustee, liquidator, sequestrator or other similar official in any such judicial proceeding is hereby
authorized by each Holder to make such payments to the Trustee and, in the event that the Trustee shall consent to the making of such
payments directly to the Holders, to pay to the Trustee any amount due it for the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and
advances of the Trustee, its agents and counsel, and any other amounts due the Trustee under Section 7.7.
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Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to authorize the Trustee to authorize or consent to or accept or adopt on behalf of
any Holder any plan of reorganization, arrangement, adjustment or composition affecting the Notes or the rights of any Holder thereof or to
authorize the Trustee to vote in respect of the claim of any Holder in any such proceeding.

Section 6.5 Trustee May Enforce Claims Without Possession of Notes.

All rights of action and claims under this Indenture or the Notes may be prosecuted and enforced by the Trustee without the
possession of any of the Notes or the production thereof in any proceeding relating thereto, and any such proceeding instituted by the Trustee
shall be brought in its own name as trustee of an express trust, and any recovery of judgment shall, after provision for the payment of the
reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances of the Trustee, its agents and counsel, be for the ratable benefit of the
Holders of the Notes in respect of which such judgment has been recovered.
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Section 6.6 Application of Money Collected.

Any money collected by the Trustee pursuant to this Article shall be applied in the following order, at the date or dates fixed
by the Trustee and, in case of the distribution of such money on account of principal or interest, upon presentation of the Notes and the
notation thereon of the payment if only partially paid and upon surrender thereof if fully paid:

First: To the payment of all amounts due the Trustee under Section 7.7; and

Second: To the payment of the amounts then due and unpaid for principal of and interest on the Notes in respect of
which or for the benefit of which such money has been collected, ratably, without preference or priority of any kind, according to the amounts
due and payable on such Notes for principal and interest, respectively; and

Third: To the Company.

Section 6.7 Limitation on Suits.

No Holder of any Note shall have any right to institute any proceeding, judicial or otherwise, with respect to this Indenture,
or for the appointment of a receiver or trustee, or for any other remedy hereunder, unless

(a) such Holder has previously given written notice to the Trustee of a continuing Event of Default with respect to the
Notes;

(b) the Holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of the outstanding Notes shall have made written request to
the Trustee to institute proceedings in respect of such Event of Default in its own name as Trustee hereunder;
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(c) such Holder or Holders have offered to the Trustee reasonable indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities
to be incurred in compliance with such request;

(d) the Trustee for 60 days after its receipt of such notice, request and offer of indemnity has failed to institute any such
proceeding; and

(e) no direction inconsistent with such written request has been given to the Trustee during such 60-day period by the
Holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding Notes;

it being understood and intended that no one or more of such Holders shall have any right in any manner whatever by virtue of, or by availing
of, any provision of this Indenture to affect, disturb or prejudice the rights of any other of such Holders, or to obtain or to seek to obtain
priority or preference over any other of such Holders or to enforce any right under this Indenture, except in the manner herein provided and for
the equal and ratable benefit of all such Holders.

Section 6.8 Unconditional Right of Holders to Receive Principal and Interest.

Notwithstanding any other provision in this Indenture, the Holder of any Notes shall have the right, which is absolute and
unconditional, to receive payment of the principal of and interest, if any, on the Notes on the Stated Maturity (or, in the case of redemption, on
the Redemption Date) and to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment, and such rights shall not be impaired without the consent
of such Holder.
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Section 6.9 Restoration of Rights and Remedies.

If the Trustee or any Holder has instituted any proceeding to enforce any right or remedy under this Indenture and such
proceeding has been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or has been determined adversely to the Trustee or to such Holder, then and in
every such case, subject to any determination in such proceeding, the Company, the Trustee and the Holders shall be restored severally and
respectively to their former positions hereunder and thereafter all rights and remedies of the Trustee and the Holders shall continue as though
no such proceeding had been instituted.

Section 6.10 Rights and Remedies Cumulative.

Except as otherwise provided with respect to the replacement or payment of mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Notes in
Section 2.7, no right or remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee or to the Holders is intended to be exclusive of any other right
or remedy, and every right and remedy shall, to the extent permitted by law, be cumulative and in addition to every other right and remedy
given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or otherwise. The assertion or employment of any right or remedy hereunder,
or otherwise, shall not prevent the concurrent assertion or employment of any other appropriate right or remedy.
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Section 6.11 Delay or Omission Not Waiver.

No delay or omission of the Trustee or of any Holder of any Notes to exercise any right or remedy accruing upon any Event
of Default shall impair any such right or remedy or constitute a waiver of any such Event of Default or an acquiescence therein. Every right
and remedy given by this Article or by law to the Trustee or to the Holders may be exercised from time to time, and as often as may be
deemed expedient, by the Trustee or by the Holders, as the case may be.

Section 6.12 Control by Holders.

The Holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding Notes shall have the right to direct the time, method and
place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred on the Trustee, with
respect to the Notes, provided that:

(a) such direction shall not be in conflict with any rule of law or with this Indenture,

(b) the Trustee may take any other action deemed proper by the Trustee which is not inconsistent with such direction,
and

(c) subject to the provisions of Section 6.1, the Trustee shall have the right to decline to follow any such direction if the
Trustee in good faith shall, by a Responsible Officer of the Trustee, determine that the proceeding so directed would involve the
Trustee in personal liability.

Section 6.13 Waiver of Past Defaults.

The Holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of the outstanding Notes may on behalf of the Holders of all the
Notes waive any past Default hereunder with respect to the Notes and its consequences, except a Default in the payment of the principal of or
interest on any Notes (provided, however, that the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding Notes may rescind an
acceleration and its consequences, including any related payment default that resulted from such acceleration). Upon any such waiver, such
Default shall cease to exist, and any Event of Default arising therefrom shall be deemed to have been cured, for every purpose of this
Indenture; but no such waiver shall extend to any subsequent or other Default or impair any right consequent thereon.
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Section 6.14 Undertaking for Costs.

All parties to this Indenture agree, and each Holder of any Notes by his acceptance thereof shall be deemed to have agreed,
that any court may in its discretion require, in any suit for the enforcement of any right or remedy under this Indenture, or in any suit against
the Trustee for any action taken, suffered or omitted by it as Trustee, the filing by any party litigant in such suit of an undertaking to pay the
costs of such suit, and that such court may in its discretion assess reasonable costs, including reasonable attorneys� fees, against any party
litigant in such suit, having due regard to the merits and good faith of the claims or defenses made by such party
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litigant; but the provisions of this Section shall not apply to any suit instituted by the Company, to any suit instituted by the Trustee, to any
suit instituted by any Holder, or group of Holders, holding in the aggregate more than 10% in principal amount of the outstanding Notes, or to
any suit instituted by any Holder for the enforcement of the payment of the principal of or interest on any Notes on or after the Stated Maturity
or Stated Maturities expressed in such Note (or, in the case of redemption, on the redemption date).

ARTICLE VII.
TRUSTEE

Section 7.1 Duties of Trustee.

(a) If an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Trustee shall exercise the rights and powers vested in it
by this Indenture and use the same degree of care and skill in its exercise as a prudent Person would exercise or use under the
circumstances in the conduct of such Person�s own affairs.

(b) Except during the continuance of an Event of Default:

(i) The Trustee need perform only those duties that are specifically set forth in this Indenture and no others.

(ii) In the absence of bad faith on its part, the Trustee may conclusively rely, as to the truth of the statements
and the correctness of the opinions expressed therein, upon Officers� Certificates or Opinions of Counsel furnished to the
Trustee and conforming to the requirements of this Indenture; however, in the case of any such Officers� Certificates or
Opinions of Counsel which by any provisions hereof are specifically required to be furnished to the Trustee, the Trustee
shall examine such Officers� Certificates and Opinions of Counsel to determine whether or not they conform to the
requirements of this Indenture.

(c) The Trustee may not be relieved from liability for its own negligent action, its own negligent failure to act or its
own willful misconduct, except that:

(i) This paragraph does not limit the effect of paragraph (b) of this Section.

(ii) The Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a Responsible Officer,
unless it is proved that the Trustee was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts.

(iii) The Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken, suffered or omitted to be taken by it with
respect to the Notes in good faith in accordance with the direction of the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the
outstanding Notes relating to the time, method and
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place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred upon
the Trustee, under this Indenture with respect to the Notes.

(d) Every provision of this Indenture that in any way relates to the Trustee is subject to paragraph (a), (b) and (c) of this
Section.

(e) The Trustee may refuse to perform any duty or exercise any right or power unless it receives indemnity satisfactory
to it against any loss, liability or expense.

(f) The Trustee shall not be liable for interest on any money received by it except as the Trustee may agree in writing
with the Company. Money held in trust by the Trustee need not be segregated from other funds except to the extent required by law.

(g) No provision of this Indenture shall require the Trustee to risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial
liability in the performance of any of its duties, or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers, if it shall have reasonable grounds for
believing that repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity against such risk is not reasonably assured to it.

(h) The Paying Agent, the Registrar and any authenticating agent shall be entitled to the protections, immunities and
standard of care as are set forth in paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) of this Section with respect to the Trustee.

Section 7.2 Rights of Trustee.

(a) The Trustee may rely on and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon any document believed by it
to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper Person. The Trustee need not investigate any fact or matter stated
in the document.

(b) Before the Trustee acts or refrains from acting, it may require an Officers� Certificate or an Opinion of Counsel.
The Trustee shall not be liable for any action it takes or omits to take in good faith in reliance on such Officers� Certificate or
Opinion of Counsel.

(c) The Trustee may act through agents and shall not be responsible for the misconduct or negligence of any agent
appointed with due care. No Depositary shall be deemed an agent of the Trustee and the Trustee shall not be responsible for any act
or omission by any Depositary.

(d) The Trustee shall not be liable for any action it takes or omits to take in good faith which it believes to be
authorized or within its rights or powers.

(e) The Trustee may consult with counsel and the advice of such counsel or any Opinion of Counsel shall be full and
complete authorization and protection in respect
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of any action taken, suffered or omitted by it hereunder in good faith and in reliance thereon.

(f) The Trustee shall be under no obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers vested in it by this Indenture at the
request or direction of any of the Holders of Notes unless such Holders shall have offered to the Trustee reasonable security or
indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities which might be incurred by it in compliance with such request or direction.

(g) The Trustee shall be entitled to rely on faxed or telecopy documents in the same manner and to the same extent that
it may rely on original, manually signed documents.

(h) The Trustee shall not be deemed to have notice of any Default or Event of Default unless a trust officer of the
Trustee has actual knowledge thereof or unless written notice of any event which is in fact such a default is received by the Trustee at
the Corporate Trust Office, and such notice references the Notes and this Indenture.

(i) Except with respect to Section 4.1, the Trustee shall have no duty to inquire as to the performance of the Company
with respect to the covenants in Article IV or Article V.

Section 7.3 Individual Rights of Trustee.

The Trustee in its individual or any other capacity may become the owner or pledgee of Notes and may otherwise deal with
the Company or an Affiliate of the Company with the same rights it would have if it were not Trustee. Any Agent may do the same with like
rights. The Trustee is also subject to Sections 7.10 and 7.11.

Section 7.4 Trustee�s Disclaimer.

The Trustee makes no representation as to the validity or adequacy of this Indenture or the Notes, it shall not be accountable
for the Company�s use of the proceeds from the Notes, and it shall not be responsible for any statement in the Notes other than its
authentication.

Section 7.5 Notice of Defaults.

If a Default or Event of Default occurs and is continuing with respect to the Notes and if it is known to a Responsible
Officer of the Trustee, the Trustee shall mail to each Noteholder, notice of a Default or Event of Default within 90 days after it occurs or, if
later, after a Responsible Officer of the Trustee has knowledge of such Default or Event of Default. Except in the case of a Default or Event
of Default in payment of principal of or interest on the Notes, the Trustee may withhold the notice if and so long as its corporate trust
committee or a committee of its Responsible Officers in good faith determines that withholding the notice is in the interests of Noteholders.
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Section 7.6 Reports by Trustee to Holders.

Within 60 days after May 15 in each year, the Trustee shall transmit by mail to all Noteholders, as their names and addresses
appear on the register kept by the Registrar, a brief report dated as of such May 15, in accordance with, and to the extent required under, TIA
§ 313.

A copy of each report at the time of its mailing to Noteholders shall be filed with the SEC and each stock exchange on
which the Notes are listed. The Company shall promptly notify the Trustee when the Notes are listed on any stock exchange.
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Section 7.7 Compensation and Indemnity.

The Company shall pay to the Trustee from time to time reasonable compensation for its services as shall be agreed upon
pursuant to a separate agreement dated not later than the date hereof. The Trustee�s compensation shall not be limited by any law on
compensation of a trustee of an express trust. The Company shall reimburse the Trustee upon request for all reasonable out-of-pocket
expenses incurred by it. Such expenses shall include the reasonable compensation and expenses of the Trustee�s agents and counsel.

The Company shall indemnify the Trustee (including the cost of defending itself) against any loss, liability or expense
incurred by it except as set forth in the next paragraph in the performance of its duties under this Indenture as Trustee or Agent. The Trustee
shall notify the Company promptly of any claim for which it may seek indemnity. The Company shall defend the claim and the Trustee shall
cooperate in the defense. The Trustee may have separate counsel and the Company shall pay the reasonable fees and expenses of such
counsel. The Company need not pay for any settlement made without its consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. This
indemnification shall apply to officers, directors, employees, shareholders and agents of the Trustee.

The Company need not reimburse any expense or indemnify against any loss or liability incurred by the Trustee or by any
officer, director, employee, shareholder or agent of the Trustee through gross negligence or bad faith.

To secure the Company�s payment obligations in this Section, the Trustee shall have a lien prior to the Notes on all money
or property held or collected by the Trustee, except that held in trust to pay principal and interest on particular Notes.

When the Trustee incurs expenses or renders services after an Event of Default specified in Section 6.1(e) or (f) occurs, the
expenses and the compensation for the services are intended to constitute expenses of administration under any Bankruptcy Law.

The obligations of the Company pursuant to this Section 7.7 shall survive the resignation or removal of the Trustee and the
termination of this Indenture.
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Section 7.8 Replacement of Trustee.

A resignation or removal of the Trustee and appointment of a successor Trustee shall become effective only upon the
successor Trustee�s acceptance of appointment as provided in this Section.

The Trustee may resign with respect to the Notes by so notifying the Company. The Holders of a majority in principal
amount of the Notes may remove the Trustee with respect to the Notes by so notifying the Trustee and the Company. The Company may
remove the Trustee with respect to Notes if:

(a) the Trustee fails to comply with Section 7.10;

(b) the Trustee is adjudged a bankrupt or an insolvent or an order for relief is entered with respect to the Trustee under
any Bankruptcy Law;

(c) a Custodian or public officer takes charge of the Trustee or its property; or

(d) the Trustee becomes incapable of acting.

If the Trustee resigns or is removed or if a vacancy exists in the office of Trustee for any reason, the Company shall
promptly appoint a successor Trustee. Within one year after the successor Trustee takes office, the Holders of a majority in principal amount
of the then outstanding Notes may appoint a successor Trustee to replace the successor Trustee appointed by the Company.
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If a successor Trustee with respect to the Notes does not take office within 60 days after the retiring Trustee resigns or is
removed, the retiring Trustee, the Company or the Holders of at least 10% in principal amount of the Notes may petition any court of
competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor Trustee.

If the Trustee with respect to the Notes fails to comply with Section 7.10, any Noteholder may petition any court of
competent jurisdiction for the removal of the Trustee and the appointment of a successor Trustee.

A successor Trustee shall deliver a written acceptance of its appointment to the retiring Trustee and to the Company.
Immediately after that, the retiring Trustee shall transfer all property held by it as Trustee to the successor Trustee subject to the lien provided
for in Section 7.7, the resignation or removal of the retiring Trustee shall become effective, and the successor Trustee shall have all the rights,
powers and duties of the Trustee with respect to the Notes. A successor Trustee shall mail a notice of its succession to each Noteholder.
Notwithstanding replacement of the Trustee pursuant to this Section 7.8, the Company�s obligations under Section 7.7 hereof shall continue
for the benefit of the retiring trustee with respect to expenses and liabilities incurred by it prior to such replacement.
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Section 7.9 Successor Trustee by Merger, etc.

If the Trustee consolidates with, merges or converts into, or transfers all or substantially all of its corporate trust business to,
another corporation, the successor corporation without any further act shall be the successor Trustee.

Section 7.10 Eligibility; Disqualification.

This Indenture shall always have a Trustee who satisfies the requirements of TIA § 310(a)(1), (2) and (5). The Trustee shall
always have a combined capital and surplus of at least $50,000,000 as set forth in its most recent published annual report of condition. The
Trustee shall comply with TIA § 310(b).

Section 7.11 Preferential Collection of Claims Against Company.

The Trustee is subject to TIA § 311(a), excluding any creditor relationship listed in TIA § 311(b). A Trustee who has
resigned or been removed shall be subject to TIA § 311(a) to the extent indicated therein.

ARTICLE VIII.
SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE; DEFEASANCE

Section 8.1 Satisfaction and Discharge of Indenture.

This Indenture shall upon Company Order cease to be of further effect (except as hereinafter provided in this Section 8.1),
and the Trustee, at the expense of the Company, shall execute proper instruments acknowledging satisfaction and discharge of this Indenture,
when

(a) either

(i) all Notes theretofore authenticated and delivered (other than Notes that have been destroyed, lost or stolen
and that have been replaced or paid) have been delivered to the Trustee for cancellation; or

(ii) all such Notes not theretofore delivered to the Trustee for cancellation

(1) have become due and payable, or
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(2) will become due and payable at their Stated Maturity within one year, or

(3) are to be called for redemption within one year under arrangements satisfactory to the Trustee
for the giving of notice of redemption by the Trustee in the name, and at the expense, of the Company, or
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(4) are deemed paid and discharged pursuant to Section 8.3, as applicable;

and the Company, in the case of (1), (2) or (3) above, has deposited or caused to be deposited with the Trustee as trust funds in trust an amount
sufficient for the purpose of paying and discharging the entire indebtedness on such Notes not theretofore delivered to the Trustee for
cancellation, for principal and interest to the date of such deposit (in the case of Notes which have become due and payable on or prior to the
date of such deposit) or to the Stated Maturity or redemption date, as the case may be;

(b) the Company has paid or caused to be paid all other sums payable hereunder by the Company; and

(c) the Company has delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each stating that all
conditions precedent herein provided for relating to the satisfaction and discharge of this Indenture have been complied with.

Notwithstanding the satisfaction and discharge of this Indenture, the obligations of the Company to the Trustee under
Section 7.7, and, if money shall have been deposited with the Trustee pursuant to clause (a) of this Section, the provisions of Sections 2.3, 2.7,
2.14, 8.1, 8.2 and 8.5 shall survive.

Section 8.2 Application of Trust Funds; Indemnification.

(a) Subject to the provisions of Section 8.5, all money deposited with the Trustee pursuant to Section 8.1, all money
and U.S. Government Obligations or Foreign Government Obligations deposited with the Trustee pursuant to Section 8.3 or 8.4 and
all money received by the Trustee in respect of U.S. Government Obligations or Foreign Government Obligations deposited with the
Trustee pursuant to Section 8.3 or 8.4, shall be held in trust and applied by it, in accordance with the provisions of the Notes and this
Indenture, to the payment, either directly or through any Paying Agent (including the Company acting as its own Paying Agent) as
the Trustee may determine, to the persons entitled thereto, of the principal and interest for whose payment such money has been
deposited with or received by the Trustee or to make payments as contemplated by Sections 8.3 or 8.4.

(b) The Company shall pay and shall indemnify the Trustee against any tax, fee or other charge imposed on or assessed
against U.S. Government Obligations or Foreign Government Obligations deposited pursuant to Sections 8.3 or 8.4 or the interest
and principal received in respect of such obligations other than any payable by or on behalf of Holders.

(c) The Trustee shall deliver or pay to the Company from time to time upon Company Request any U.S. Government
Obligations or Foreign Government Obligations or money held by it as provided in Sections 8.3 or 8.4 which, in the opinion of a
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nationally recognized firm of independent certified public accountants expressed in a written certification thereof delivered to the
Trustee, are then in excess of the amount thereof which then would have been required to be deposited for the purpose for which such
U.S. Government Obligations or Foreign Government Obligations or money were deposited or received. This provision shall not
authorize the sale by the Trustee of any U.S. Government Obligations or Foreign Government Obligations held under this Indenture.

Section 8.3 Legal Defeasance of Notes.

The Company shall be deemed to have paid and discharged the entire indebtedness on all the outstanding Notes on the 91st
day after the date of the deposit referred to in subparagraph (d) hereof, and the provisions of this Indenture, as it relates to such outstanding
Notes, shall no longer be in effect (and the Trustee, at the expense of the Company, shall, at Company Request, execute proper instruments
acknowledging the same), except as to:

(a) the rights of Noteholders to receive, from the trust funds described in subparagraph (d) hereof, payment of the
principal of and each installment of principal of and interest on the outstanding Notes on the Stated Maturity of such principal or
installment of principal or interest;

(b) the provisions of Sections 2.3, 2.7, 2.14, 8.2, 8.3 and 8.5; and

(c) the rights, powers, trust and immunities of the Trustee hereunder;

provided that, the following conditions shall have been satisfied:

(d) the Company shall have deposited or caused to be deposited irrevocably with the Trustee as trust funds in trust for
the purpose of making the following payments, specifically pledged as security for and dedicated solely to the benefit of the
Noteholders, cash in Dollars (or such other money or currencies as shall then be legal tender in the United States) and/or U.S.
Government Obligations, which through the payment of interest and principal in respect thereof, in accordance with their terms, will
provide (and without reinvestment and assuming no tax liability will be imposed on such Trustee), not later than one day before the
due date of any payment of money, an amount in cash, sufficient, in the opinion of a nationally recognized firm of independent public
accountants expressed in a written certification thereof delivered to the Trustee, to pay and discharge each installment of principal of
and interest, if any, on all the Notes on the dates such installments of interest or principal are due;

(e) such deposit will not result in a breach or violation of, or constitute a default under, this Indenture or any other
agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which it is bound;
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(f) no Default or Event of Default with respect to the Notes shall have occurred and be continuing on the date of such
deposit or during the period ending on the 91st day after such date;

(g) the Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel to the effect
that (i) the Company has received from, or there has been published by, the Internal Revenue Service a ruling, or (ii) since the date of
execution of this Indenture, there has been a change in the applicable Federal income tax law, in either case to the effect that, and
based thereon such Opinion of Counsel shall confirm that, the Holders of the Notes will not recognize income, gain or loss for
Federal income tax purposes as a result of such deposit, defeasance and discharge and will be subject to Federal income tax on the
same amount and in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such deposit, defeasance and discharge
had not occurred;

(h) the Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate stating that the deposit was not made by
the Company with the intent of preferring the Holders of the Notes over any other creditors of the company or with the intent of
defeating, hindering, delaying or defrauding any other creditors of the Company;

(i) such deposit shall not result in the trust arising from such deposit constituting an investment company (as defined in
the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended), or such trust shall be qualified under such Act or exempt from regulation
thereunder; and

(j) the Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each stating
that all conditions precedent provided for relating to the defeasance contemplated by this Section have been complied with.

Section 8.4 Covenant Defeasance.

On and after the 91st day after the date of the deposit referred to in subparagraph (a) hereof, the Company may omit to
comply with any term, provision or condition set forth under Sections 4.2, 4.3, 4.4, 4.5, 4.6, 4.7, 4.8 and 5.1 (and the failure to comply with
any such covenants shall not constitute a Default or Event of Default under Section 6.1) and the occurrence of any event described in clause
(e) of Section 6.1 shall not constitute a Default or Event of Default hereunder, with respect to the Notes, provided that the following
conditions shall have been satisfied:

(a) With reference to this Section 8.4, the Company has deposited or caused to be irrevocably deposited (except as
provided in Section 8.2(c)) with the Trustee as trust funds in trust, specifically pledged as security for, and dedicated solely to, the
benefit of the Noteholders, cash in Dollars (or such other money or currencies as shall then be legal tender in the United States) and/
or U.S. Government Obligations, which through the payment of interest and principal in respect thereof, in accordance with their
terms, will
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provide (and without reinvestment and assuming no tax liability will be imposed on such Trustee), not later than one day before the
due date of any payment of money, an amount in cash, sufficient, in the opinion of a nationally recognized firm of independent
certified public accountants expressed in a written certification thereof delivered to the Trustee, to pay principal and interest, if any,
on the Notes on the dates such installments of interest or principal are due;

(b) Such deposit will not result in a breach or violation of, or constitute a default under, this Indenture or any other
agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which it is bound;

(c) No Default or Event of Default with respect to the Notes shall have occurred and be continuing on the date of such
deposit or during the period ending on the 91st day after such date;

(d) the Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Opinion of Counsel confirming that Holders of the Notes will
not recognize income, gain or loss for federal income tax purposes as a result of such deposit and defeasance and will be subject to
federal income tax on the same amounts, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such deposit and
defeasance had not occurred;

(e) the Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate stating the deposit was not made by the
Company with the intent of preferring the Holders of the Notes over any other creditors of the Company or with the intent of
defeating, hindering, delaying or defrauding any other creditors of the Company; and

(f) The Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each stating
that all conditions precedent herein provided for relating to the defeasance contemplated by this Section have been complied with.

Section 8.5 Repayment to Company.

The Trustee and the Paying Agent shall pay to the Company upon request any money held by them for the payment of
principal and interest that remains unclaimed for two years. After that, Noteholders entitled to the money must look to the Company for
payment as general creditors unless an applicable abandoned property law designates another Person.

ARTICLE IX.
AMENDMENTS AND WAIVERS

Section 9.1 Without Consent of Holders.

The Company and the Trustee may amend or supplement this Indenture or the Notes without the consent of any Noteholder:

(a) to cure any ambiguity, defect or inconsistency;
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(b) to comply with Article V;

(c) to make any change that does not adversely affect the rights of any Noteholder;

(d) to provide for the issuance of Additional Notes as permitted by this Indenture; or

(e) to comply with requirements of the SEC in order to effect or maintain the qualification of this Indenture under the
TIA.

The Company may also provide for the issuance of New Notes, which will have terms substantially identical to the other
outstanding Notes except that (i) a Private Placement Legend shall not be required and (ii) the related transfer restrictions under the Securities
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Act and this Indenture and the payment of Additional Interest shall not be applicable to such New Notes. The New Notes shall be treated,
together with any outstanding Notes, as a single issue of securities.

Section 9.2 With Consent of Holders.

The Company and the Trustee may enter into a supplemental indenture with the written consent of the Holders of at least a
majority in principal amount of the outstanding Notes affected by such supplemental indenture (including consents obtained in connection
with a tender offer or exchange offer for the Notes), for the purpose of adding any provisions to or changing in any manner or eliminating any
of the provisions of this Indenture or of any supplemental indenture or of modifying in any manner the rights of the Noteholders. Except as
provided in Section 6.13, the Holders of at least a majority in principal amount of the outstanding Notes by notice to the Trustee (including
consents obtained in connection with a tender offer or exchange offer for the Notes) may waive compliance by the Company with any
provision of this Indenture or the Notes.

It shall not be necessary for the consent of the Noteholders under this Section 9.2 to approve the particular form of any
proposed supplemental indenture or waiver, but it shall be sufficient if such consent approves the substance thereof. After a supplemental
indenture or waiver under this Article becomes effective, the Company shall mail to the Noteholders a notice briefly describing the
supplemental indenture or waiver. Any failure by the Company to mail such notice, or any defect therein, shall not, however, in any way
impair or affect the validity of any such supplemental indenture or waiver.

Section 9.3 Limitations.

Without the consent of each Noteholder affected, an amendment or waiver may not:

(a) reduce the amount of Notes whose Holders must consent to an amendment, supplement or waiver;
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(b) reduce the rate of or extend the time for payment of interest (including default interest) on the Notes;

(c) reduce the principal or change the Stated Maturity of the Notes or reduce the amount of, or postpone the date fixed
for, redemption;

(d) reduce the principal amount of discount securities payable upon acceleration of Maturity;

(e) waive a Default or Event of Default in the payment of the principal of or interest, if any, on the Notes (except a
rescission of acceleration of the Notes by the Holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the then outstanding
Notes and a waiver of the payment default that resulted from such acceleration);

(f) make the principal of or interest, if any, on the Notes payable in any currency other than that stated in the Note; or

(g) make any change in Sections 6.8, 6.13, 9.3 (this sentence), or 10.15.

Section 9.4 Compliance with Trust Indenture Act.

Every amendment to this Indenture or the Notes shall be set forth in a supplemental indenture hereto that complies with the
TIA as then in effect.
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Section 9.5 Revocation and Effect of Consents.

Until an amendment or waiver becomes effective, a consent to it by a Holder of a Note is a continuing consent by the Holder
and every subsequent Holder of a Note or portion of a Note that evidences the same debt as the consenting Holder�s Note, even if notation of
the consent is not made on any Note. However, any such Holder or subsequent Holder may revoke the consent as to his Note or portion of a
Note if the Trustee receives the notice of revocation before the date the amendment or waiver becomes effective.

Any amendment or waiver once effective shall bind every Noteholder unless it is of the type described in any of clauses
(a) through (f) of Section 9.3. In that case, the amendment or waiver shall bind each Holder of a Note who has consented to it and every
subsequent Holder of a Note or portion of a Note that evidences the same debt as the consenting Holder�s Note.

Section 9.6 Notation on or Exchange of Notes.

The Trustee may place an appropriate notation about an amendment or waiver on any Notes thereafter authenticated. The
Company in exchange for Notes may issue and the Trustee shall authenticate upon request new Notes that reflect the amendment or waiver.
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Section 9.7 Trustee Protected.

In executing, or accepting the additional trusts created by, any supplemental indenture permitted by this Article or the
modifications thereby of the trusts created by this Indenture, the Trustee shall be entitled to receive, and (subject to Section 7.1) shall be fully
protected in relying upon, an Officer�s Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel each stating that the execution of such supplemental indenture is
authorized or permitted by this Indenture. The Trustee shall sign all supplemental indentures, except that the Trustee need not sign any
supplemental indenture that adversely affects its rights.

ARTICLE X.
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10.1 Trust Indenture Act Controls.

If any provision of this Indenture limits, qualifies, or conflicts with another provision which is required or deemed to be
included in this Indenture by the TIA, such required or deemed provision shall control.

Section 10.2 Notices.

Any notice or communication by the Company or the Trustee to the other is duly given if in writing and delivered in person
or mailed by first-class mail, telecopier or overnight air carrier guaranteeing next day delivery:

if to the Company:

Harrah�s Operating Company, Inc.
One Harrah�s Court
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Telecopier No.: (702) 407-6022
Attention: General Counsel

with a copy to:
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Latham & Watkins LLP
650 Town Center Dr.
20th Floor
Costa Mesa, California 92626
Telecopier No.: (714) 755-8290
Attention: Charles Ruck, Esq.

if to the Trustee:

U.S. Bank National Association
60 Livingston Avenue
St. Paul, Minnesota 55107
Telecopier No.: (651) 495-8097
Attention: Corporate Trust Services
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All notices and communications (other than those sent to Holders) will be deemed to have been duly given: at the time delivered by hand, if
personally delivered; five Business Days after being deposited in the mail, postage prepaid, if mailed; when receipt acknowledged, if
telecopied; and the next Business Day after timely delivery to the courier, if sent by overnight air courier guaranteeing next day delivery.

The Company or the Trustee by notice to the other may designate additional or different addresses for subsequent notices or
communications.

Any notice or communication to a Noteholder shall be mailed by first-class mail overnight air courier guaranteeing next day
delivery to the Noteholder�s address shown on the register kept by the Registrar. Failure to mail a notice or communication to a Noteholder
or any defect in it shall not affect its sufficiency with respect to other Noteholders.

If a notice or communication is mailed in the manner provided above, within the time prescribed, it is duly given, whether or
not the Noteholder receives it.

If the Company mails a notice or communication to Noteholders, it shall mail a copy to the Trustee and each Agent at the
same time.

Section 10.3 Communication by Holders with Other Holders.

Noteholders may communicate pursuant to TIA § 312(b) with other Noteholders with respect to their rights under this
Indenture or the Notes. The Company, the Trustee, the Registrar and anyone else shall have the protection of TIA § 312(c).

Section 10.4 Certificate and Opinion as to Conditions Precedent.

Upon any request or application by the Company to the Trustee to take any action under this Indenture, the Company shall
furnish to the Trustee:
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(a) an Officers� Certificate stating that, in the opinion of the signers, all conditions precedent, if any, provided for in
this Indenture relating to the proposed action have been complied with; and

(b) an Opinion of Counsel stating that, in the opinion of such counsel, all such conditions precedent have been
complied with.

Section 10.5 Statements Required in Certificate or Opinion.

Each certificate or opinion with respect to compliance with a condition or covenant provided for in this Indenture (other than
a certificate provided pursuant to TIA § 314(a)(4)) shall comply with the provisions of TIA § 314(e) and shall include:
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(a) a statement that the Person making such certificate or opinion has read such covenant or condition;

(b) a brief statement as to the nature and scope of the examination or investigation upon which the statements or
opinions contained in such certificate or opinion are based;

(c) a statement that, in the opinion of such Person, he has made such examination or investigation as is necessary to
enable him to express an informed opinion as to whether or not such covenant or condition has been complied with; and

(d) a statement as to whether or not, in the opinion of such Person, such condition or covenant has been complied with.

Section 10.6 Rules by Trustee and Agents.

The Trustee may make reasonable rules for action by or a meeting of Noteholders. Any Agent may make reasonable
rules and set reasonable requirements for its functions.

Section 10.7 Legal Holidays.

A �Legal Holiday� is any day that is not a Business Day. If a payment date is a Legal Holiday at a place of payment,
payment may be made at that place on the next succeeding day that is not a Legal Holiday, and no interest shall accrue for the intervening
period.

Section 10.8 No Recourse Against Others.

A past, present or future director, officer, employee, incorporator or stockholder, as such, of the Company, the Guarantor, or
any of their Affiliates or successor corporations shall not have any liability for any obligations of the Company or the Guarantor under the
Notes or the Indenture or for any claim based on, in respect of or by reason of such obligations or their creation. Each Noteholder by
accepting a Note waives and releases all such liability. The waiver and release are part of the consideration for the issue of the Notes.

Section 10.9 Counterparts.

This Indenture may be executed in any number of counterparts and by the parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of
which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement.

Section 10.10 Governing Laws.

This Indenture and the Notes shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York applicable to agreements made
and to be performed in such State without regard to the conflict of laws provisions thereof.
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Section 10.11 No Adverse Interpretation of Other Agreements.

This Indenture may not be used to interpret another indenture, loan or debt agreement of the Company or a Subsidiary. Any
such indenture, loan or debt agreement may not be used to interpret this Indenture.

Section 10.12 Successors.

All agreements of the Company in this Indenture and the Notes shall bind its successor. All agreements of the Trustee in
this Indenture shall bind its successor.

Section 10.13 Severability.

In case any provision in this Indenture or in the Notes shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and
enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

Section 10.14 Table of Contents, Headings, Etc.

The Table of Contents, Cross-Reference Table, and headings of the Articles and Sections of this Indenture have been
inserted for convenience of reference only, are not to be considered a part hereof, and shall in no way modify or restrict any of the terms or
provisions hereof.

Section 10.15 Judgment Currency.

The Company agrees, to the fullest extent that it may effectively do so under applicable law, that (a) if for the purpose of
obtaining judgment in any court it is necessary to convert the sum due in respect of the principal of or interest or other amount on the Notes
(the �Required Currency�) into a currency in which a judgment will be rendered (the �Judgment Currency�), the rate of exchange used shall
be the rate at which in accordance with normal banking procedures the Trustee could purchase in The City of New York the Required
Currency with the Judgment Currency on the day on which final unappealable judgment is entered, unless such day is not a New York
Banking Day, then, the rate of exchange used shall be the rate at which in accordance with normal banking procedures the Trustee could
purchase in The City of New York the Required Currency with the Judgment Currency on the New York Banking Day preceding the day on
which final unappealable judgment is entered and (b) its obligations under this Indenture to make payments in the Required Currency (i) shall
not be discharged or satisfied by any tender, any recovery pursuant to any judgment (whether or not entered in accordance with
subsection (a)), in any currency other than the Required Currency, except to the extent that such tender or recovery shall result in the actual
receipt, by the payee, of the full amount of the Required Currency expressed to be payable in respect of such payments, (ii) shall be
enforceable as an alternative or additional cause of action for the purpose of recovering in the Required Currency the amount, if any, by which
such actual receipt shall fall short of the full amount of the Required Currency so expressed to be payable, and (iii) shall not be affected by
judgment being obtained for any other sum due under this Indenture. For purposes of the foregoing, �New York
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Banking Day� means any day except a Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday in The City of New York on which banking institutions are
authorized or required by law, regulation or executive order to close.
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ARTICLE XI.
SINKING FUNDS

Section 11.1 No Sinking Funds.

The Notes shall not be entitled to the benefit of any sinking fund.

ARTICLE XII.
GUARANTEE

Section 12.1 Guarantee.

12.1.1 Subject to Section 12.1.2, below, the Guarantor hereby irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees (such guarantee
being the �Guarantee�) to each Holder of a Note authenticated and delivered by the Trustee and to the Trustee and its successors and assigns,
irrespective of the validity and enforceability of this Indenture and the Notes hereunder, that: (i) the principal of, premium, if any, and interest
on the Notes promptly will be paid in full when due, whether at the Maturity, by acceleration, call for redemption or otherwise, and interest on
the overdue principal, premium, if any, and interest, if any, of the Notes, if lawful, and all other obligations of the Company to the Holders and
the Trustee hereunder or thereunder will be promptly paid in full or performed, all in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, and (ii) in
case of any extension of time of payment or renewal of any Notes or any of such other obligations, the same will be promptly paid in full
when due or performed in accordance with the terms of the extension or renewal, whether at Stated Maturity, by acceleration or otherwise.
Failing payment when due by the Company of any amount so guaranteed for whatever reason, the Guarantor shall be obligated to pay the
same immediately. The Guarantor hereby agrees that its obligations hereunder shall be unconditional, irrespective of the validity, regularity or
enforceability of the Notes or this Indenture, the absence of any action to enforce the same, any waiver or consent by any Holder of the Notes
with respect to any provisions hereof or thereof, the recovery of any judgment against the Company, any action to enforce the same or any
other circumstance which might otherwise constitute a legal or equitable discharge or defense of a guarantor. The Guarantor hereby waives
diligence, presentment, demand of payment, filing of claims with a court in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company, any right
to require a proceeding first against the Company, protest, notice and all demands whatsoever and covenants that this Guarantee shall not be
discharged except by complete performance of the obligations contained in the Notes and this Indenture. If any Holder or the Trustee is
required by any court or otherwise to return to the Company or any custodian, Trustee,
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liquidator or other similar official acting in relation to the Company, any amount paid by the Company to the Trustee or such Holder, this

Guarantee, to the extent theretofore discharged, shall be reinstated in full force and effect. The Guarantor agrees that it shall not be entitled to

any right of subrogation in relation to the Holders in respect of any obligations guaranteed hereby until payment in full of all obligations is

guaranteed hereby.

12.1.2 It is the intention of the Guarantor and the Company that the obligations of the Guarantor hereunder shall be, but
not in excess of, the maximum amount permitted by applicable law. Accordingly, if the obligations in respect of the Guarantee would be
annulled, avoided or subordinated to the creditors of the Guarantor by a court of competent jurisdiction in a proceeding actually pending
before such court as a result of a determination both that such Guarantee was made without fair consideration and, immediately after giving
effect thereto, the Guarantor was insolvent or unable to pay its debts as they mature or left with an unreasonably small capital, then the
obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee shall be reduced by such court if such reduction would result in the avoidance of such
annulment, avoidance or subordination; provided, however, that any reduction pursuant to this paragraph shall be made in the smallest amount
as is strictly necessary to reach such result. For purposes of this paragraph, �fair consideration,� �insolvency,� �unable to pay its debts as
they mature,� �unreasonably small capital� and the effective times of reductions, if any, required by this paragraph shall be determined in
accordance with applicable law.

12.1.3 The Guarantor shall be subrogated to all rights of the Holders against the Company in respect of any amounts paid
by Guarantor pursuant to the provisions of the Guarantee or this Indenture; provided, however, that the Guarantor shall not be entitled to
enforce or to receive any payments arising out of, or based upon, such right of subrogation until the principal of, premium, if any, and interest
on all Notes issued hereunder shall have been paid in full.

Section 12.2 Execution and Delivery of Guarantee.

To evidence the Guarantee set forth in Section 12.1, the Company and the Guarantor hereby agree that a notation of such
Guarantee shall be endorsed on each Note authenticated and delivered by the Trustee, that such notation of such Guarantee shall be in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit B, and shall be executed on behalf of the Guarantor by its Chairman of the Board, one of its Vice Chairmen of
the Board, its President or one of its Vice Presidents.

The Guarantor hereby agrees that the Guarantee set forth in Section 12.1 shall remain in full force and effect
notwithstanding any failure to endorse on each Note a notation of the Guarantee.
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If an officer whose signature is on this Indenture no longer holds that office at the time the Trustee authenticates the Note on
which the Guarantee is endorsed, the Guarantee shall be valid nevertheless.

The delivery of any Note by the Trustee, after the authentication thereof hereunder, shall constitute due delivery of the
Guarantee set forth in this Indenture on behalf of the Guarantor.

Section 12.3 Release of Guarantor.

The Guarantor shall be released from all of its obligations under the Guarantee and under this Indenture if:
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(a) the Company or the Guarantor has transferred all or substantially all of its properties and assets to any Person
(whether by sale, merger or consolidation or otherwise), or has merged into or consolidated with another Person, pursuant to a
transaction in compliance with this Indenture and:

(i) the corporation to whom all or substantially all of the properties and assets of the Company or the
Guarantor are transferred, or whom the Company or the Guarantor has merged into or consolidated with, has expressly
assumed, by an indenture supplemental hereto, executed and delivered to the Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, all
the obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee and this Indenture;

(ii) immediately before and immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no Event of Default, and no
event or condition which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event of Default, shall have occurred and
be continuing; and

(iii) the Guarantor has delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each
stating that such consolidation, merger or transfer and such supplemental indenture comply with this Section 12.3 and that
all conditions precedent herein provided for relating to such transaction have been complied with;

(b) the Guarantor liquidates (other than pursuant to any Bankruptcy Law) and complies, if applicable, with the
provisions of this Indenture; provided that if a Person and its Affiliates, if any, shall acquire all or substantially all of the assets of the
Guarantor upon such liquidation the Guarantor shall liquidate only if:

(i) the Person and each such Affiliate (or the common corporate parent of such Person and its Affiliates, if
such Person and its Affiliates are wholly owned by such parent) which acquire or will acquire
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all or a portion of the assets of the Guarantor shall expressly assume, by an indenture supplemental hereto, executed and
delivered to the Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, all the obligations of the Guarantor, under the Guarantee and
this Indenture and such Person or any of such Affiliates (or such parent) shall be a corporation organized and existing under
the laws of the United States or any State thereof or the District of Columbia;

(ii) immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no Event of Default, and no event or condition which,
after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event of Default, shall have occurred and be continuing; and

(iii) the Guarantor has delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each
stating that such liquidation and such supplemental indenture comply with this Section 12.3 and that all conditions precedent
herein provided for relating to such transaction have been complied with; or

(c) the Company ceases for any reason to be a �wholly owned subsidiary� of the Guarantor (as such term is defined in
Rule 1-02(z) of the Regulation S-X promulgated by the SEC).

Upon any assumption of the Guarantee by any Person pursuant to this Section 12.3, such Person may exercise every right
and power of the Guarantor under this Indenture with the same effect as if such successor corporation had been named as the Guarantor
herein, and all the obligations of the Guarantor, hereunder and under the Guarantee and the Indenture shall terminate.

Section 12.4 When Guarantor May Merge, etc.

The Guarantor shall not consolidate with or merge with or into any other Person or, directly or indirectly, sell, lease or
convey all or substantially all of its assets (computed on a consolidated basis) to another Person, and may not permit any Person to, directly or
indirectly, sell, lease or convey all or substantially all of its assets to the Guarantor, whether in a single transaction or a series of related
transactions, unless:

(a) either the Guarantor shall be the continuing person, or the Person (if other than the Guarantor) formed by such
consolidation or into or with which the Guarantor is merged or to which the assets of the Guarantor are transferred shall be a
corporation organized and validly existing under the laws of the United States or any State thereof or the District of Columbia and
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shall expressly assume, by an indenture supplemental hereto, executed and delivered to the Trustee, in form satisfactory to the
Trustee, all the obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee and this Indenture;
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(b) immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no Event of Default, and no event or condition which, after
notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event of Default, shall have occurred and be continuing; and

(c) the Guarantor has delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each stating that
such consolidation, merger, sale, conveyance or lease and such supplemental indenture comply with this Section 12.4 and that all
conditions precedent herein provided for relating to such transaction have been complied with.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the restrictions set forth in this Section 12.4 shall not apply to the proposed merger with Caesars
Entertainment, Inc. and the proposed sale of Harrah�s East Chicago and Harrah�s Tunica and the Atlantic City Hilton and Bally�s Tunica by
Caesars Entertainment, Inc., if applicable, to an affiliate of Colony Capital, LLC.

Upon any consolidation or merger, or any sale, conveyance or lease of all or substantially all of the assets of the Guarantor,
in accordance with this Section 12.4, the successor corporation formed by such consolidation or into or with which the Guarantor is merged or
to which such transfer is made shall succeed to, and be substituted for (so that from and after the date of such consolidation, merger, sale,
lease, conveyance or other disposition, the provisions of this Indenture referring to the �Guarantor� shall refer instead to the successor
corporation and not to the Guarantor), and may exercise every right and power of, the Guarantor under this Indenture with the same effect as if
such successor corporation had been named as the Guarantor herein, and all the obligations of the predecessor Guarantor hereunder and under
the Guarantee and the Indenture shall terminate.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Indenture to be duly executed as of the day and year first
above written.

HARRAH�S OPERATING COMPANY, INC.

By:
Name: Jonathan S. Halkyard
Title: Vice President and Treasurer

HARRAH�S ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

By:
Name: Jonathan S. Halkyard
Title: Vice President and Treasurer

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By:
Name:
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Title:

58

EXHIBIT A

FORM OF NOTE

[Insert Global Notes Legend, if applicable to the provisions of the Indenture]

[Insert Private Placement Legend, if applicable pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture]

No.:

CUSIP No.: 413627AR1 � for QIBs Principal Amount: $
413627AS9 � for Reg S

HARRAH�S OPERATING COMPANY, INC.

Senior Floating Rate Notes due 2008
Payment of principal, interest and premium, if any, unconditionally guaranteed by

HARRAH�S ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

Harrah�s Operating Company, Inc., a Delaware corporation (hereinafter called the �Company�, which term includes any
successor under the Indenture referred to below), for value received, hereby promises to pay to Cede & Co., or registered assigns, the principal
sum of DOLLARS ($ ) on February 8, 2008 (�Maturity�), and to pay interest thereon from February 9, 2005 or
from the most recent date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, quarterly on February 8, May 8, August 8 and November 8 of
each year (each, an �Interest Payment Date�), commencing May 8, 2005 and at Maturity until the principal hereof is paid or duly made
available for payment.

The Notes will bear interest for each Interest Period at a rate determined by the Calculation Agent. The period from
February 9, 2005 to but excluding the first payment date and each successive period from and including each payment date to but excluding
the following payment date is an ��Interest Period.�� The interest rate on the Notes for a particular Interest Period will be a per annum rate
equal to LIBOR as determined on the second London Business Day preceding the commencement of such Interest Period (the �Interest
Determination Date�) plus .60% (60 basis points). The Interest Determination Date for the Notes for the first Interest Period is February 7,
2005. Promptly upon determination of the rate, the Calculation Agent will inform the Trustee and the Company of the interest rate for the
next Interest Period. Absent manifest error, the determination of the interest rate by the Calculation Agent shall be binding and conclusive on
the Holders, the Trustee and the Company.

�LIBOR� means the London interbank offered rates. �London Business Day� is a day on which dealings in deposits in U.S.
dollars are transacted in the London interbank market.
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On any Interest Determination Date, LIBOR will be equal to the offered rate for deposits in U.S. dollars having an index
maturity of three months, in amounts of at least $1.0 million, as such rate appears on Telerate Page 3750 at approximately 11:00 a.m., London
time, on such Interest Determination Date. If Telerate Page 3750 is replaced by another service or ceases to exist, the Calculation Agent will
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use the replacing service or such other service that may be nominated by the British Bankers� Association for the purpose of displaying
LIBOR for U.S. dollar deposits.

If no offered rate appears on Telerate Page 3750 on an Interest Determination Date at approximately 11:00 a.m., London
time, then the Calculation Agent (after consultation with the Company) will select four major banks in the London interbank market and shall
request each of their principal London offices to provide a quotation of the rate at which three-month deposits in U.S. dollars in amounts of at
least $1.0 million are offered by it to prime banks in the London interbank market, on that date and at that time, that is representative of single
transactions at that time. If at least two quotations are provided, LIBOR will be the arithmetic average of the quotations provided. Otherwise,
the Calculation Agent will select three major banks in New York City and shall request each of them to provide a quotation of the rate offered
by them at approximately 11:00 a.m., New York City time, on the Interest Determination Date for loans in U.S. dollars to leading European
banks having an index maturity of three months for the applicable Interest Period in an amount of at least $1.0 million that is representative of
single transactions at that time. If three quotations are provided, LIBOR will be the arithmetic average of the quotations provided. Otherwise,
the rate of LIBOR for the next Interest Period will be set equal to the rate of LIBOR for the then-current Interest Period.

Upon request from any Holder, the Calculation Agent will provide notice of the interest rate in effect on the notes for the
current Interest Period and, if it has been determined, the interest rate to be in effect for the next Interest Period.

Interest on this Note shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The interest so
payable and punctually paid or duly provided for on any Interest Payment Date will, as provided in such Indenture, be paid to the Person in
whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be the January 22,
April 22, July 22 or October 22 (whether or not a Business Day), as the case may be, immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date. If
the Company defaults in a payment of interest on the Notes, it shall pay the defaulted interest plus, to the extent permitted by law, any interest
payable on the defaulted interest, to the Persons who are the registered Holders of the Notes on a subsequent special record date. The
Company shall fix the record date and the payment date. At least 30 days before the record date, the Company shall mail to the Trustee and to
each Holder a notice that states the record date, the payment date and the amount of interest to be paid. The Company may pay defaulted
interest in any other lawful manner.

If any Interest Payment Date, Redemption Date or Maturity Date of any of the Notes is not a Business Day, then payment of
principal and interest will be made on the next succeeding Business Day. No interest will accrue on the amount so payable for the period from

A-2

such Interest Payment Date, Redemption Date or Maturity Date, as the case may be, to the date payment is made.

Under certain circumstances the Company may be required to pay Additional Interest as provided in the Indenture.

Payment of the principal of and the interest on this Note will be made at the office or agency of the Company maintained for
that purpose in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York, in such coin or currency of the United States of America as at the time of
payment is legal tender for payment of public and private debts; provided, however, that, at the option of the Company, interest may be paid
by check mailed to the address of the Person entitled thereto as such address shall appear in the register or by wire transfer to an account
maintained by the payee located in the United States of America.

This Note is one of a duly authorized issue of Notes of the Company (herein called the �Notes�) issued and to be issued
under an Indenture dated as of February 9, 2005 (herein called, together with all indentures supplemental thereto, the �Indenture�) among, the
Company, Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (herein called the �Trustee�, which term includes any
successor trustee under the Indenture), to which the Indenture and all indentures supplemental thereto reference is hereby made for a statement
of the respective rights, limitations of rights, duties and immunities thereunder of the Company, the Trustee and the Holders of the Notes, and
the terms upon which the Notes are, and are to be, authenticated and delivered. This Note is one of the Notes of the series designated on the
face hereof, limited in aggregate principal amount to $250,000,000, subject to the Company�s ability to issue additional notes as provided in
the Indenture.
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The Notes are senior obligations of the Company. The Indenture imposes certain limitations on the ability of the Company
to, among other things, create or incur liens and make certain sale-leaseback transactions. The Indenture also imposes limitations on the
ability of the Company to consolidate or merge with or into any other Person or convey, transfer or lease substantially all of the property of
the Company.

The Notes are subject to redemption prior to the Maturity Date of the principal thereof as provided in the Indenture.

If an Event of Default with respect to the Notes shall occur and be continuing, the principal of the Notes may be declared
due and payable in the manner and with the effect provided in the Indenture.

The Indenture permits, with certain exceptions as therein provided, the amendment thereof and the modification of the rights
and obligations of the Company and the rights of the Holders of the Notes of each series issued under the Indenture at any time by the
Company and the Trustee with the consent of the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes at the time
outstanding of each series affected thereby. The Indenture also contains provisions permitting the Holders of specified percentages in
aggregate
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principal amount of the Notes of any series at the time outstanding, on behalf of the Holders of all Notes of such series, to waive compliance
by the Company with certain provisions of the Indenture and certain past defaults under the Indenture and their consequences. Any such
consent or waiver by the holder of this Note shall be conclusive and binding upon such Holder and upon all future Holders of this Note and of
any Notes issued upon the registration of transfer hereof or in exchange herefor or in lieu hereof, whether or not notation of such consent or
waiver is made upon this Note.

No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Note or of the Indenture shall alter or impair the obligation of
the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of and interest on this Note, at the time, place and rate, and in the coin
or currency, herein and in the Indenture prescribed.

As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations set forth therein, the transfer of this Note may be registered on
the register upon surrender of this Note for registration of transfer at the office or agency of the Company maintained for the purpose in any
place where the principal of and interest on this Note are payable, duly endorsed, or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form
satisfactory to the Company and the Registrar duly executed by the Holder hereof or by his attorney duly authorized in writing, and thereupon
one or more new Notes, of authorized denominations and for the same aggregate principal amount, will be issued to the designated transferee
or transferees. The Notes are issuable only in registered form without coupons in the denominations of $1,000 and integral multiples of
$1,000. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations set forth therein, the Notes are exchangeable for a like aggregate
principal amount of Notes of authorized denominations as requested by the Holders surrendering the same.

No service charge shall be made for any such registration of transfer or exchange, but the Company may require payment of
a sum sufficient to cover any transfer tax or similar governmental charge payable in connection therewith, other than in certain cases provided
in the Indenture.

Prior to due presentment of this Note for registration of transfer, the Company, the Trustee and any agent of the Company or
the Trustee may treat the Person in whose name this Note is registered as the owner hereof for all purposes, whether or not this Note be
overdue, and neither the Company, the Trustee nor any such agent shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

The indenture contains provisions whereby (i) the Company may be discharged from its obligations with respect to the
Notes (subject to certain exceptions) or (ii) the Company may be released from its obligations under specified covenants and agreements in the
Indenture, in each case if the Company irrevocably deposits with the Trustee money or U.S. Government Obligations sufficient to pay and
discharge the entire indebtedness on all Notes, and satisfies certain other conditions, all as more fully provided in the Indenture.
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This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of New York.
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Capitalized terms used in this Note which are not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture.

Unless the certificate of authentication hereon has been executed by or on behalf of the Trustee under the Indenture by the
manual signature of one of its authorized signatories, this Note shall not be entitled to any benefits under the Indenture or be valid or
obligatory for any purpose.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this instrument to be duly executed.

Dated:

HARRAH�S OPERATING COMPANY, INC.

Name:
Title:

TRUSTEE�S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION
This is one of the Notes of the series designated
therein referred to in the within-mentioned Indenture.

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Trustee

By:
Authorized Signatory
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ASSIGNMENT FORM

FOR, VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned registered holder hereby sell(s), assign(s) and transfer(s) unto

PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE
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PLEASE PRINT OR TYPEWRITE NAME AND ADDRESS OF ASSIGNEE

the within Note and all rights thereunder, hereby irrevocably constituting and appointing

Attorney to transfer said Note on the books of the Company with
full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

Notice: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as it appears upon the face of the Note in every
particular, without alteration or enlargement or any change whatever.

Signature must be guaranteed by a participant
in a recognized signature guaranty medallion
program or other signature guarantor
acceptable to the Trustee

Signature of Signature Guarantor
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ABBREVIATIONS

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this instrument, shall be construed as though they
were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations:

TEN COM�as tenants in common UNIF GIFT MIN ACT� Custodian

TEN ENT�as tenants by the entireties (Cust) (Minor)

JT TEN�as joint tenants with right of Under Uniform Gifts to Minors
survivorship and not as Act
tenants in common (State)

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list.
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SCHEDULE OF EXCHANGES OF INTERESTS IN THE GLOBAL NOTE

The following exchanges of a part of this Global Note for an interest in another Global Note or for a Certificated Note, or
exchanges of a part of another Global Note or Certificated Note for an interest in this Global Note, have been made:
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Date of Exchange

Amount of decrease in

Principal Amount

at maturity of

this Global Note

Amount of increase in

Principal Amount

at maturity of

this Global Note

Principal Amount

at maturity of this

Global Note following

such decrease

(or increase)

Signature of authorized

officer of Trustee or

Custodian

A-9

EXHIBIT B

FORM OF NOTATION OF GUARANTEE

NOTATION OF GUARANTEE OF HARRAH�S ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

For value received, the undersigned, Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc. (the �Guarantor�)(which term includes any successor
person under the Indenture), has unconditionally guaranteed, to the extent set forth in the Indenture and subject to the provisions in the
Indenture, dated as of February 9, 2005 (the �Indenture�), among Harrah�s Operating Company, Inc. (the �Company�), the Guarantor and
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the �Trustee�), (a) the due and punctual payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest
on, the Notes, whether at maturity, by acceleration, redemption or otherwise, the due and punctual payment of interest on overdue principal of
and interest on the Notes, if any, if lawful, and the due and punctual performance of all other obligations of the Company to the Holders or the
Trustee all in accordance with the terms of the Indenture and (b) in case of any extension of time of payment or renewal of any Notes or any
of such other obligations, that the same will be promptly paid in full when due or performed in accordance with the terms of the extension or
renewal, whether at stated maturity, by acceleration or otherwise. The obligations of the Guarantor to the Holders of Notes and to the Trustee
pursuant to the Guarantee and the Indenture are expressly set forth in Article 12 of the Indenture and reference is hereby made to the Indenture
for the precise terms of the Guarantee. Each Holder of a Note, by accepting the same, (a) agrees to and shall be bound by such provisions,
(b) authorizes and directs the Trustee, on behalf of such Holder, to take such action as may be necessary or appropriate to effectuate the
subordination as provided in the Indenture and (c) appoints the Trustee attorney-in-fact of such Holder for such purpose; provided, however,
that the Indebtedness evidenced by this Note Guarantee shall cease to be so subordinated and subject in right of payment upon any defeasance
of this Note in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture.

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings given to them in the Indenture.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this notation of Guarantee to be duly executed.

Date:

HARRAH�S ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

Name:
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Title:
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EXHIBIT C

FORM OF CERTIFICATE FOR TRANSFER PURSUANT TO RULE 144A

[Date]

U.S. Bank National Association
60 Livingston Avenue
St. Paul, Minnesota 55107

Re: Senior Floating Rate Notes due 2008

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is hereby made to the Indenture, dated as of February 9, 2005 (as amended and supplemented from time to time,
the �Indenture�), among Harrah�s Operating Company, Inc. (the �Company�), Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc. (the �Guarantor�) and U.S. Bank
National Association as trustee (the �Trustee�). Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings given them in the
Indenture.

This letter relates to $ aggregate principal amount of Notes, which represents an interest in a Regulation S
Global Note beneficially owned by the undersigned (the �Transferor�), to effect the transfer of such Notes in exchange for an equivalent
beneficial interest in the Rule 144A Global Note.

In connection with such request, and with respect to such Notes, the Transferor does hereby certify that such Notes are being
transferred in accordance with Rule 144A, to a transferee that the Transferor reasonably believes is purchasing the Notes for its own account
or an account with respect to which the transferee exercises sole investment discretion, and the transferee, as well as any such account, is a
�qualified institutional buyer� within the meaning of Rule 144A, in a transaction meeting the requirements of Rule 144A and in accordance
with applicable securities laws of any state of the United States or any other jurisdiction.

C-1

You, the Company and the Guarantor are entitled to rely upon this letter and are irrevocably authorized to produce this letter
or a copy hereof to any interested party in any administrative or legal proceedings or official inquiry with respect to the matters covered
hereby.

Very truly yours,

[Name of Transferor]

By:

Authorized Signature
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EXHIBIT D

FORM OF CERTIFICATE FOR TRANSFER PURSUANT TO REGULATION S

[Date]

U.S. Bank National Association
60 Livingston Avenue
St. Paul, Minnesota 55107

Re: Senior Floating Rate Notes due 2008

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is hereby made to the Indenture, dated as of February 9, 2005 (as amended and supplemented from time to time,
the �Indenture�), among Harrah�s Operating Company, Inc. (the �Company�), Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc. (the �Guarantor�) and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee (the �Trustee�). Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings given them in the
Indenture.

In connection with our proposed sale of $ aggregate principal amount of Notes, which represents an interest in the
Rule 144A Global Note beneficially owned by the undersigned (the �Transferor�), we confirm that such sale has been effected pursuant to
and in accordance with Regulation S, and, accordingly, we represent that:

(a) the offer of such Notes was not made to a person in the United States;

(b) either (i) at the time the buy order was originated, the transferee was outside the United States or we and any person
acting on our behalf reasonably believed that the transferee was outside the United States or (ii) the transaction was executed in, on or
through the facilities of a designated off-shore securities market and neither we nor any person acting on our behalf knows that the
transaction has been pre-arranged with a buyer in the United States;

(c) no directed selling efforts have been made in the United States in contravention of the requirements of Rule 903(b) or
Rule 904(b) of Regulation S, as applicable;

(d) the transaction is not part of a plan or scheme to evade the registration requirements of the Securities Act; and

(e) we are the beneficial owner of the principal amount of such Notes being transferred.

D-1

In addition, if the sale is made during the Restricted Period and the provisions of Rule 904(b)(1) or Rule 904(b)(2) of
Regulation S are applicable thereto, we confirm that such sale has been made in accordance with the applicable provisions of
Rule 904(b)(1) or Rule 904(b)(2), as the case may be.

You, the Company and the Guarantor are entitled to rely upon this letter and are irrevocably authorized to produce this letter
or a copy hereof to any interested party in any administrative or legal proceedings or official inquiry with respect to the matters covered
hereby. Terms used in this letter have the meanings set forth in Regulation S.
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Very truly yours,

[Name of Transferor]

By:

Authorized Signature

D-2
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Exhibit 4.2

HARRAH��S OPERATING COMPANY, INC.

$250,000,000

Senior Floating Rate Notes due 2008

REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT

New York, New York
February 9, 2005

Goldman, Sachs & Co.
80 Broad Street
New York, New York 10004

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Harrah�s Operating Company, Inc., a corporation organized under the laws of Delaware (the �Company�), proposes to issue
and sell to you (the �Initial Purchaser�), upon the terms set forth in a purchase agreement dated as of February 4, 2005 (the �Purchase
Agreement�), its Senior Floating Rate Notes due 2008 (the �Notes�) relating to the initial placement of the Notes (the �Initial Placement�),
which Notes are to be guaranteed by Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc., a corporation organized under the laws of Delaware (the �Guarantor�).
The Notes are to be issued under an indenture (the �Indenture�) to be dated as of February 9, 2005, between the Company, the Guarantor and
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the �Trustee�). To induce you to enter into the Purchase Agreement and to satisfy a condition of
your obligations thereunder, the Company and the Guarantor agree with you for your benefit and the benefit of the holders from time to time
of the Notes (including the Initial Purchaser) (each a �Holder� and, together, the �Holders�), as follows:

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have their respective meanings set forth in the
Purchase Agreement. As used in this Agreement, the following capitalized defined terms shall have the following meanings:

�Additional Interest� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5 hereto.

�Affiliate� of any specified Person shall mean any other Person that, directly or indirectly, is in control of, is controlled by,
or is under common control with, such specified Person. For purposes of this definition, control of a Person shall mean the power, direct or
indirect, to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such Person whether by contract or otherwise; and the terms
�controlling� and �controlled� shall have meanings correlative to the foregoing.

�Broker-Dealer� shall mean any broker or dealer registered as such under the Exchange Act.

�Business Day� shall mean any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a legal holiday or a day on which banking
institutions or trust companies are authorized or obligated by law to close in New York City.

�Commission� shall mean the Securities and Exchange Commission.

�Company� shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.
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�Exchange Act� shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations of the
Commission promulgated thereunder.

�Exchange Offer Registration Period� shall mean the 180-day period following the consummation of the Registered
Exchange Offer, exclusive of any period during which any stop order shall be in effect suspending the effectiveness of the Exchange Offer
Registration Statement.

�Exchange Offer Registration Statement� shall mean a registration statement of the Company on an appropriate form under

the Securities Act with respect to the Registered Exchange Offer, all amendments and supplements to such registration statement, including

post-effective amendments thereto, in each case including the Prospectus contained therein, all exhibits thereto and all material incorporated

by reference therein.

�Exchanging Dealer� shall mean any Holder (which may include the Initial Purchaser) that is a Broker-Dealer and elects to

exchange for New Notes any Notes that it acquired for its own account as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities (but

not directly from the Company or any Affiliate of the Company) for New Notes.

�Expiration Date� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(c)(ii) hereof.

�Guarantor� shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

�Holder� shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

�Indenture� shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

�Initial Placement� shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

�Initial Purchaser� shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

�Initiating Holders� shall mean any Holders who in the aggregate possess at least fifty percent (50%) of the aggregate
principal amount of outstanding Notes.

�Initiation Date� shall mean the later of (i) the date on which the Company receives a written request from Initiating
Holders to file an Exchange Offer Registration Statement and (ii) the date which is 275 days from the date of the original issuance of the
Notes, if the Company has received such a written request prior to such date.

�Losses� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(d) hereof.

2

�Managing Underwriters� shall mean the investment banker or investment bankers and manager or managers that shall

administer an underwritten offering.

�New Notes� shall mean debt securities of the Company, guaranteed by the Guarantor, identical in all material respects to

the Notes (except that the cash interest and interest rate step-up provisions and the transfer restrictions shall be modified or eliminated, as

appropriate) and to be issued under the Indenture or the New Notes Indenture.
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�New Notes Indenture� shall mean an indenture between the Company and the New Notes Trustee, identical in all material

respects to the Indenture (except that the cash interest and interest rate step-up provisions and the transfer restrictions shall be modified or

eliminated, as appropriate).

�New Notes Trustee� shall mean a bank or trust company reasonably satisfactory to the Initial Purchaser, as trustee with

respect to the New Notes under the New Notes Indenture.

�Notes� shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

�Offering Memorandum� shall have the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.

�Person� shall mean any individual, partnership, corporation, trust, or unincorporated organization, or a government or
agency or political subdivision thereof.

�Prospectus� shall mean the prospectus included in any Registration Statement (including, without limitation, a prospectus

that discloses information previously omitted from a prospectus filed as part of an effective registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A

under the Securities Act), as amended or supplemented by any prospectus supplement, with respect to the terms of the offering of any portion

of the Notes or the New Notes covered by such Registration Statement, and all amendments and supplements thereto and all material

incorporated by reference therein.

�Purchase Agreement� shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

�Registered Exchange Offer� shall mean an offer of the Company to issue and deliver to the Holders of the Notes (which

shall not be limited to the Initiating Holders) that are not prohibited by any law or policy of the Commission from participating in such offer,

in exchange for the Notes, a like aggregate principal amount of the New Notes.

�Registration Default� shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(a) hereof.

�Registration Statement� shall mean any Exchange Offer Registration Statement or Shelf Registration Statement that covers

any of the Notes or the New Notes pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, any amendments and supplements to such registration

statement, including post-effective amendments (in each case including the Prospectus contained therein), all exhibits thereto and all material

incorporated by reference therein.

3

�Securities Act� shall mean the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations of the Commission
promulgated thereunder.

�Shelf Registration� shall mean a registration effected pursuant to Section 3 hereof.

�Shelf Registration Period� has the meaning set forth in Section 3(b)(ii) hereof.

�Shelf Registration Statement� shall mean a �shelf� registration statement of the Company pursuant to the provisions of

Section 3 hereof which covers some or all of the Notes or New Notes, as applicable, on an appropriate form under Rule 415 under the

Securities Act, or any similar rule that may be adopted by the Commission, amendments and supplements to such registration statement,
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including post-effective amendments, in each case including the Prospectus contained therein, all exhibits thereto and all material incorporated

by reference therein.

�Trust Indenture Act� shall mean the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended and as in effect on the date of the Indenture.

�Trustee� shall mean the trustee with respect to the Notes under the Indenture.

�underwriter� shall mean any underwriter of Notes in connection with an offering thereof under a Shelf Registration

Statement.

2. Registered Exchange Offer. (a) Unless the Registered Exchange Offer shall not be permissible under applicable
law or Commission policy, in the event the Company shall receive from Initiating Holders, a written request that the Company file an

Exchange Offer Registration Statement, the Company and the Guarantor shall prepare and, not later than 90 days following the Initiation Date

(or if such 90th day is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day), shall file with the Commission the Exchange Offer Registration

Statement with respect to the Registered Exchange Offer. The Company shall use its best efforts to cause the Exchange Offer Registration

Statement to become effective under the Securities Act within 180 days of the Initiation Date (or if such 180th day is not a Business Day, the
next succeeding Business Day). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Company shall be under no obligation to file an
Exchange Offer Registration Statement unless it has received a written request from Initiating Holders.

(b) Upon the effectiveness of the Exchange Offer Registration Statement, the Company and the Guarantor shall

promptly commence the Registered Exchange Offer, it being the objective of such Registered Exchange Offer to enable each Holder electing

to exchange Notes for New Notes (assuming that such Holder is not an Affiliate of the Company, acquires the New Notes in the ordinary
course of such Holder�s business, has no arrangements with any Person to participate in the distribution of the New Notes and is not

prohibited by any law or policy of the Commission from participating in the Registered Exchange Offer) to trade such New Notes from and

after their receipt without any limitations or restrictions under the Securities Act and without material restrictions under the securities laws of a

substantial proportion of the several states of the United States.

4

(c) In connection with the Registered Exchange Offer, the Company and the Guarantor shall:

(i) mail to each Holder a copy of the Prospectus forming part of the Exchange Offer Registration Statement,

together with an appropriate letter of transmittal and related documents;

(ii) keep the Registered Exchange Offer open for not less than 20 Business Days and not more than 30

Business Days after the date notice thereof is mailed to the Holders (or, in each case, longer if required by applicable law) (the

�Expiration Date�);

(iii) use their best efforts to keep the Exchange Offer Registration Statement continuously effective under the

Securities Act, supplemented and amended as required, under the Securities Act to ensure that it is available for sales of New Notes
by Exchanging Dealers during the Exchange Offer Registration Period;

(iv) utilize the services of a depositary for the Registered Exchange Offer with an address in the Borough of

Manhattan in New York City, which may be the Trustee, the New Notes Trustee or an Affiliate of either of them;

(v) permit Holders to withdraw tendered Notes at any time prior to the close of business, New York time, on
the last Business Day on which the Registered Exchange Offer is open;
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(vi) prior to effectiveness of the Exchange Offer Registration Statement, provide a supplemental letter to the
Commission (A) stating that the Company and the Guarantor, are conducting the Registered Exchange Offer in reliance on the
position of the Commission in Exxon Capital Holdings Corporation (pub. avail. May 13, 1988), Morgan Stanley and Co., Inc. (pub.
avail. June 5, 1991); and (B) including a representation that the Company and the Guarantor have not entered into any arrangement or
understanding with any Person to distribute the New Notes to be received in the Registered Exchange Offer and that, to the best of
the Company�s and the Guarantor�s information and belief, each Holder participating in the Registered Exchange Offer is acquiring
the New Notes in the ordinary course of business and has no arrangement or understanding with any Person to participate in the
distribution of the New Notes; and

(vii) comply in all respects with all applicable laws.

(d) As soon as practicable after the close of the Registered Exchange Offer, the Company and the Guarantor shall:

(i) accept for exchange all Notes tendered and not validly withdrawn pursuant to the Registered Exchange

Offer;

(ii) deliver to the Trustee for cancellation in accordance with Section 4(s) all Notes so accepted for exchange;

and
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(iii) cause the New Notes Trustee promptly to authenticate and deliver to each Holder of Notes a principal

amount of New Notes equal to the principal amount of the Notes of such Holder so accepted for exchange.

(e) Each Holder hereby acknowledges and agrees that any Broker-Dealer and any such Holder using the Registered
Exchange Offer to participate in a distribution of the New Notes (x) could not under Commission policy as in effect on the date of this
Agreement rely on the position of the Commission in Morgan Stanley and Co., Inc. (pub. avail. June 5, 1991) and Exxon Capital Holdings
Corporation (pub. avail. May 13, 1988), as interpreted in the Commission�s letter to Shearman & Sterling dated July 2, 1993 and similar no-
action letters; and (y) must comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act in connection with any
secondary resale transaction and (z) that secondary resale transactions by such Holder must be covered by an effective registration statement
containing the selling note holder information required by Item 507 or 508, as applicable, of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act if the
resales are of New Notes obtained by such Holder in exchange for Notes acquired by such Holder directly from the Company or one of its
Affiliates. Accordingly, each Holder participating in the Registered Exchange Offer shall be required to represent to the Company and the
Guarantor that, at the time of the consummation of the Registered Exchange Offer:

(i) any New Notes received by such Holder will be acquired in the ordinary course of business;

(ii) such Holder will have no arrangement or understanding with any Person to participate in the distribution
of the Notes or the New Notes within the meaning of the Securities Act; and

(iii) such Holder is not an Affiliate of the Company.

(f) If the Initial Purchaser determines that it is not eligible to participate in the Registered Exchange Offer with respect

to the exchange of Notes constituting any portion of an unsold allotment, at the request of the Initial Purchaser within 20 days after the

consummation of the Exchange Offer, the Company shall issue and deliver to the Person purchasing Notes registered under a Shelf

Registration Statement as contemplated by Section 3 hereof from the Initial Purchaser, in exchange for such Notes, a like principal amount of

New Notes. The Company and the Guarantor shall use their best efforts to cause the CUSIP Service Bureau to issue the same CUSIP number

for such New Notes as for New Notes issued pursuant to the Registered Exchange Offer.
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3. Shelf Registration. (a) If the Company has received from Initiating Holders a written request that the Company

file an Exchange Offer Registration Statement, and (i) due to any change in law or applicable interpretations thereof by the Commission�s

staff, the Company determines upon advice of its outside counsel that it is not permitted to effect the Registered Exchange Offer as

contemplated by Section 2 hereof on or after the Initiation Date; or (ii) for any other reason the Registered Exchange Offer is not

consummated within 210 days of the Initiation Date; or (iii) the Initial Purchaser so requests, within 20 days after the consummation of the

Registered Exchange Offer, with respect to Notes that are not eligible to be
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exchanged for New Notes in the Registered Exchange Offer and that are held by it following consummation of the Registered Exchange

Offer; or (iv) any Holder (other than the Initial Purchaser) who notifies the Company within 20 days after the consummation of the Registered

Exchange Offer that it is not eligible to participate in the Registered Exchange Offer so requests; or (v) in the case of the Initial Purchaser

participating in the Registered Exchange Offer, the Initial Purchaser does not receive freely tradeable New Notes in exchange for Notes

constituting any portion of an unsold allotment (it being understood that (x) the requirement that the Initial Purchaser deliver a Prospectus

containing the information required by Item 507 or 508 of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act in connection with sales of New Notes

acquired in exchange for such Notes shall not result in such New Notes being not �freely tradeable�; and (y) the requirement that an

Exchanging Dealer deliver a Prospectus in connection with sales of New Notes acquired in the Registered Exchange Offer in exchange for

Notes acquired as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities shall not result in such New Notes being not �freely

tradeable�), the Company and the Guarantor shall effect a Shelf Registration Statement in accordance with subsection (b) below.

(b) (i) The Company and the Guarantor shall as promptly as practicable (but in no event more than 30 days after

so required or requested pursuant to this Section 3), file with the Commission and thereafter shall use its best efforts to cause to be declared

effective under the Securities Act a Shelf Registration Statement relating to the offer and sale of the Notes or the New Notes, as applicable, by

the Holders thereof from time to time in accordance with the methods of distribution elected by such Holders and set forth in such Shelf

Registration Statement; provided, however, that no Holder (other than the Initial Purchaser) shall be entitled to have the Notes held by it
covered by such Shelf Registration Statement unless such Holder agrees in writing to be bound by all of the provisions of this Agreement

applicable to such Holder; and provided further, that with respect to New Notes received by the Initial Purchaser in exchange for Notes

constituting any portion of an unsold allotment, the Company and the Guarantor may, if permitted by current interpretations by the

Commission�s staff, file a post-effective amendment to the Exchange Offer Registration Statement containing the information required by

Item 507 or 508 of Regulation S-K, as applicable, in satisfaction of its obligations under this subsection with respect thereto, and any such

Exchange Offer Registration Statement, as so amended, shall be referred to herein as, and governed by the provisions herein applicable to, a

Shelf Registration Statement.

(ii) The Company and the Guarantor shall use their best efforts to keep the Shelf Registration Statement

continuously effective, supplemented and amended as required by the Securities Act, in order to permit the Prospectus forming part

thereof to be usable by Holders for a period of two years from the date the Shelf Registration Statement is declared effective by the

Commission or such shorter period that will terminate when all the Notes or New Notes, as applicable, covered by the Shelf

Registration Statement have been sold pursuant to the Shelf Registration Statement (in any such case, such period being called the

�Shelf Registration Period�). The Company and the Guarantor shall be deemed not to have used their best efforts to keep the Shelf

Registration Statement effective during the requisite period if it voluntarily takes any action that would result in Holders of Notes

covered thereby not being able to offer and sell such Notes during that period, unless (A) such action is required by applicable law; or

(B) such action is taken by the Company and the Guarantor in good faith and for valid

7
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business reasons (not including avoidance of the Company�s and the Guarantor�s obligations hereunder), including the acquisition or

divestiture of assets, so long as the Company and the Guarantor promptly thereafter comply with the requirements of Section 4(k)

hereof, if applicable.

(iii) The Company shall cause the Shelf Registration Statement and the related Prospectus and any amendment
or supplement thereto, as of the effective date of the Shelf Registration Statement or such amendment or supplement, (A) to comply
in all material respects with the applicable requirements of the Securities Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission; and
(B) not to contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in
order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

4. Additional Registration Procedures. In connection with any Shelf Registration Statement and, to the extent

applicable, any Exchange Offer Registration Statement, the following provisions shall apply.

(a) The Company and the Guarantor shall:

(i) furnish to you, not less than five Business Days prior to the filing thereof with the Commission, a copy of

any Exchange Offer Registration Statement and any Shelf Registration Statement, and each amendment thereof and each amendment

or supplement, if any, to the Prospectus included therein (including all documents incorporated by reference therein after the initial

filing) and shall use their best efforts to reflect in each such document, when so filed with the Commission, such comments as you

reasonably propose;

(ii) include the information set forth in Annex A hereto on the facing page of the Exchange Offer Registration

Statement, in Annex B hereto in the forepart of the Exchange Offer Registration Statement in a section setting forth details of the

Exchange Offer, in Annex C hereto in the underwriting or plan of distribution section of the Prospectus contained in the Exchange

Offer Registration Statement, and in Annex D hereto in the letter of transmittal delivered pursuant to the Registered Exchange Offer;

(iii) if requested by the Initial Purchaser, include the information required by Item 507 or 508 of Regulation S-

K, as applicable, in the Prospectus contained in the Exchange Offer Registration Statement; and

(iv) in the case of a Shelf Registration Statement, include the names of the Holders that propose to sell Notes

pursuant to the Shelf Registration Statement as selling Note holders.

(b) The Company and the Guarantor shall ensure that:

(i) any Registration Statement and any amendment thereto and any Prospectus forming part thereof and any

amendment or supplement thereto complies in all material respects with the Securities Act and the rules and regulations thereunder;

and
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(ii) any Registration Statement and any amendment thereto does not, when it becomes effective, contain an

untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements

therein not misleading.
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(c) The Company and the Guarantor shall advise you, the Holders of Notes covered by any Shelf Registration

Statement and any Exchanging Dealer under any Exchange Offer Registration Statement that has provided in writing to the Company or the

Guarantor a telephone or facsimile number and address for notices, and, if requested by you or any such Holder or Exchanging Dealer, shall
confirm such advice in writing (which notice pursuant to clauses (ii)-(v) hereof shall be accompanied by an instruction to suspend the use of

the Prospectus until the Company and the Guarantor shall have remedied the basis for such suspension):

(i) when a Registration Statement and any amendment thereto has been filed with the Commission and when

the Registration Statement or any post-effective amendment thereto has become effective;

(ii) of any request by the Commission for any amendment or supplement to the Registration Statement or the

Prospectus or for additional information;

(iii) of the issuance by the Commission of any stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration

Statement or the initiation of any proceedings for that purpose;

(iv) of the receipt by the Company and the Guarantor of any notification with respect to the suspension of the

qualification of the Notes included therein for sale in any jurisdiction or the initiation of any proceeding for such purpose; and

(v) of the happening of any event that requires any change in the Registration Statement or the Prospectus so

that, as of such date, the statements therein are not misleading and do not omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or

necessary to make the statements therein (in the case of the Prospectus, in the light of the circumstances under which they were

made) not misleading.

(d) The Company and the Guarantor shall use their best efforts to obtain the withdrawal of any order suspending the

effectiveness of any Registration Statement or the qualification of the Notes therein for sale in any jurisdiction at the earliest possible time.

(e) The Company and the Guarantor shall furnish to each Holder of Notes covered by any Shelf Registration

Statement, without charge, at least one copy of such Shelf Registration Statement and any post-effective amendment thereto, including all

material incorporated therein by reference, and, if the Holder so requests in writing, all exhibits thereto (including exhibits incorporated by

reference therein).

(f) The Company and the Guarantor shall, during the Shelf Registration Period, deliver to each Holder of Notes

covered by any Shelf Registration Statement, without

9

charge, as many copies of the Prospectus (including each preliminary Prospectus) included in such Shelf Registration Statement and any

amendment or supplement thereto as such Holder may reasonably request. The Company and the Guarantor consent, subject to the provisions

of this Agreement, to the use of the Prospectus or any amendment or supplement thereto by each of the selling Holders of Notes in connection

with the offering and sale of the Notes covered by the Prospectus, or any amendment or supplement thereto, included in the Shelf Registration

Statement.

(g) The Company and the Guarantor shall furnish to each Exchanging Dealer which so requests, without charge, at

least one copy of the Exchange Offer Registration Statement and any post-effective amendment thereto, including all material incorporated by
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reference therein, and, if the Exchanging Dealer so requests in writing, all exhibits thereto (including exhibits incorporated by reference

therein).

(h) The Company and the Guarantor shall promptly deliver to the Initial Purchaser, each Exchanging Dealer and each

other Person required to deliver a Prospectus during the Exchange Offer Registration Period, without charge, as many copies of the Prospectus

included in such Exchange Offer Registration Statement and any amendment or supplement thereto as any such Person may reasonably

request. The Company and the Guarantor, subject to the provisions of this Agreement, consent to the use of the Prospectus or any amendment

or supplement thereto by the Initial Purchaser, any Exchanging Dealer and any such other Person that may be required to deliver a Prospectus

following the Registered Exchange Offer in connection with the offering and sale of the New Notes covered by the Prospectus, or any

amendment or supplement thereto, included in the Exchange Offer Registration Statement.

(i) Prior to the Registered Exchange Offer or any other offering of Notes pursuant to any Registration Statement, the

Company and the Guarantor shall arrange, if necessary, for the qualification of the Notes or the New Notes for sale under the laws of such

jurisdictions as any Holder shall reasonably request and will maintain such qualification in effect so long as required; provided that in no event

shall the Company and the Guarantor be obligated to qualify to do business in any jurisdiction where it is not then so qualified or to take any

action that would subject it to service of process in suits, other than those arising out of the Initial Placement, the Registered Exchange Offer

or any offering pursuant to a Shelf Registration Statement, in any such jurisdiction where it is not then so subject.

(j) The Company and the Guarantor shall cooperate with the Holders of Notes to facilitate the timely preparation and

delivery of certificates representing New Notes or Notes to be issued or sold pursuant to any Registration Statement free of any restrictive

legends and in such denominations and registered in such names as Holders may request.

(k) Upon the occurrence of any event contemplated by subsections (c)(ii) through (v) above, the Company and the

Guarantor shall promptly prepare a post-effective amendment to the applicable Registration Statement or an amendment or supplement to the

related Prospectus or file any other required document so that, as thereafter delivered to the Initial Purchaser of the Notes included therein, the

Prospectus will not include an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in

the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. In such
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circumstances, the period of effectiveness of the Exchange Offer Registration Statement provided for in Section 2 and the Shelf Registration
Statement provided for in Section 3(b) shall each be extended by the number of days from and including the date of the giving of a notice of
suspension pursuant to Section 4(c) to and including the date when the Initial Purchaser, the Holders of the Notes and any known Exchanging
Dealer shall have received such amended or supplemented Prospectus pursuant to this Section.

(l) Not later than the effective date of any Registration Statement, the Company and the Guarantor shall provide a

CUSIP number for the Notes or the New Notes, as the case may be, registered under such Registration Statement and provide the Trustee with

printed certificates for such Notes or New Notes, in a form eligible for deposit with The Depository Trust Company.

(m) The Company and the Guarantor shall comply with all applicable rules and regulations of the Commission and

shall make generally available to its Note holders as soon as practicable after the effective date of the applicable Registration Statement an

earnings statement satisfying the provisions of Section 11(a) of the Securities Act.

(n) The Company and the Guarantor shall cause the Indenture or the New Notes Indenture, as the case may be, to be

qualified under the Trust Indenture Act in a timely manner.
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(o) The Company and the Guarantor may require each Holder of Notes to be sold pursuant to any Shelf Registration

Statement to furnish to the Company and the Guarantor such information regarding the Holder and the distribution of such Notes or New

Notes as the Company and the Guarantor may from time to time reasonably require for inclusion in such Registration Statement. The

Company and the Guarantor may exclude from such Shelf Registration Statement the Notes of any Holder that unreasonably fails to furnish
such information within a reasonable time after receiving such request.

(p) In the case of any Shelf Registration Statement, the Company and the Guarantor shall enter into such and take all

other appropriate actions (including if requested an underwriting agreement in customary form) in order to expedite or facilitate the

registration or the disposition of the Notes, and in connection therewith, if an underwriting agreement is entered into, cause the same to

contain indemnification provisions and procedures no less favorable than those set forth in Section 7 (or such other provisions and procedures

acceptable to the Initiating Holders and the Managing Underwriters, if any, with respect to all parties to be indemnified pursuant to Section 7).

(q) In the case of any Shelf Registration Statement, the Company and the Guarantor shall:

(i) make reasonably available for inspection by the Holders of Notes to be registered thereunder, any

underwriter participating in any disposition pursuant to such Registration Statement, and any attorney, accountant or other agent

retained by the Holders or any such underwriter, all relevant financial and other records, pertinent
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corporate documents and properties of the Company, the Guarantor and their respective subsidiaries;

(ii) cause the Company�s officers, directors and employees to supply all relevant information reasonably

requested by the Holders or any such underwriter, attorney, accountant or agent in connection with any such Registration Statement

as is customary for similar due diligence examinations; provided, however, that any information that is designated in writing by the

Company, in good faith, as confidential at the time of delivery of such information shall be kept confidential by the Holders or any

such underwriter, attorney, accountant or agent, unless such disclosure is made in connection with a court proceeding or required by

law, or such information becomes available to the public generally or through a third party without an accompanying obligation of

confidentiality; provided, further, that the foregoing due diligence examination shall be coordinated by the Initial Purchaser on its
own behalf, and on behalf of other parties by one counsel designated by and on behalf of such other parties;

(iii) if requested by any Holder, make such representations and warranties to the Holders of Notes registered

thereunder and the underwriters, if any, in form, substance and scope as are customarily made by issuers to underwriters in primary

underwritten offerings and covering matters including, but not limited to, those set forth in the Purchase Agreement;

(iv) if requested by any Holder, obtain opinions of counsel to the Company and the Guarantor and updates

thereof (which counsel and opinions (in form, scope and substance) shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Managing Underwriters, if

any) addressed to each selling Holder and the underwriters, if any, in form, substance and scope, as are customarily addressed to

underwriters in primary underwritten offerings and covering such other matters as may be reasonably requested by such Holders and

underwriters;

(v) if requested by any Holder, obtain �cold comfort� letters and updates thereof from the independent

certified public accountants of the Company (and, if necessary, any other independent certified public accountants of any subsidiary

of the Company or of any business acquired by the Company for which financial statements and financial data are, or are required to

be, included in the Registration Statement), addressed to each selling Holder of Notes registered thereunder and the underwriters, if
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any, in customary form and covering matters of the type customarily covered in �cold comfort� letters in connection with primary

underwritten offerings; and

(vi) deliver such documents and certificates as may be reasonably requested by the Initiating Holders and the

Managing Underwriters, if any, including those to evidence compliance with Section 4(k) and with any customary conditions

contained in the underwriting agreement or other agreement entered into by the Company.

The actions set forth in clauses (iii), (iv), (v) and (vi) of this Section shall be performed at (A) the effectiveness of such Registration Statement

and each post-effective amendment thereto; and (B)
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each closing under any underwriting or similar agreement as and to the extent required thereunder.

(r) In the case of any Exchange Offer Registration Statement, the Company and the Guarantor shall:

(i) make reasonably available for inspection by the Initial Purchaser, and any attorney, accountant or other

agent retained by the Initial Purchaser, all relevant financial and other records, pertinent corporate documents and properties of the

Company, the Guarantor, and their respective subsidiaries;

(ii) cause the Company�s officers, directors and employees to supply all relevant information reasonably

requested by the Initial Purchaser or any such attorney, accountant or agent in connection with any such Registration Statement as is

customary for similar due diligence examinations; provided, however, that any information that is designated in writing by the

Company, in good faith, as confidential at the time of delivery of such information shall be kept confidential by the Initial Purchaser

or any such attorney, accountant or agent, unless such disclosure is made in connection with a court proceeding or required by law, or

such information becomes available to the public generally or through a third party without an accompanying obligation of

confidentiality; provided, further, that the foregoing due diligence examination shall be coordinated on behalf of parties other than the
Initial Purchaser by one counsel designated by and on behalf of such other parties;

(iii) if requested by the Initial Purchaser, make such representations and warranties to the Initial Purchaser, in

form, substance and scope as are customarily made by issuers to underwriters in primary underwritten offerings and covering matters

including, but not limited to, those set forth in the Purchase Agreement;

(iv) if requested by the Initial Purchaser, obtain opinions of counsel to the Company and the Guarantor and

updates thereof (which counsel and opinions (in form, scope and substance) shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Initial Purchaser

and its counsel, addressed to the Initial Purchaser, in form, substance and scope, as are customarily addressed to underwriters in

primary underwritten offerings and covering such other matters as may be reasonably requested by such Initial Purchaser or its

counsel;

(v) if requested by the Initial Purchaser, obtain �cold comfort� letters and updates thereof from the

independent certified public accountants of the Company (and, if necessary, any other independent certified public accountants of

any subsidiary of the Company or of any business acquired by the Company for which financial statements and financial data are, or

are required to be, included in the Registration Statement), addressed to the Initial Purchaser, in customary form and covering matters

of the type customarily covered in �cold comfort� letters in connection with primary underwritten offerings, or if requested by the
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Initial Purchaser or its counsel in lieu of a �cold comfort� letter, an agreed-upon procedures letter under Statement on Auditing

Standards No. 35, covering matters requested by the Initial Purchaser or its counsel; and
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(vi) deliver such documents and certificates as may be reasonably requested by the Initial Purchaser or its

counsel, including those to evidence compliance with Section 4(k) and with conditions customarily contained in underwriting

agreements.

The foregoing actions set forth in clauses (iii), (iv), (v), and (vi) of this Section shall be performed at the close of the Registered Exchange
Offer and the effective date of any post-effective amendment to the Exchange Offer Registration Statement.

(s) If a Registered Exchange Offer is to be consummated, upon delivery of the Notes by Holders to the Company (or to
such other Person as directed by the Company) in exchange for the New Notes, the Company shall mark, or caused to be marked, on the Notes
so exchanged that such Notes are being canceled in exchange for the New Notes. In no event shall the Notes be marked as paid or otherwise
satisfied.

(t) The Company will use its best efforts (i) if the Notes have been rated prior to the initial sale of such Notes by one
or more nationally recognized statistical rating agencies, to confirm that a rating (which need not be the same rating from each such agency)
will apply to the Notes or the New Notes, as the case may be, covered by a Registration Statement; or (ii) if the Notes were not previously
rated, to cause the Notes covered by a Registration Statement to be rated with at least one nationally recognized statistical rating agency, if so
requested by Initiating Holders with respect to the related Registration Statement or by any Managing Underwriters.

(u) In the case of any Shelf Registration Statement, if any Broker-Dealer shall underwrite any Notes or participate as a
member of an underwriting syndicate or selling group or �assist in the distribution� (within the meaning of the Rules of Fair Practice and the
By-Laws of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.) thereof, whether as a Holder of such Notes or as an underwriter, a placement
or sales agent or a broker or dealer in respect thereof, or otherwise, assist such Broker-Dealer in complying with the requirements of such
Rules and By-Laws, including, without limitation, by:

(i) if such Rules or By-Laws shall so require, engaging a �qualified independent underwriter� (as defined in
such Rules) to participate in the preparation of the Registration Statement, to exercise usual standards of due diligence with respect
thereto and, if any portion of the offering contemplated by such Registration Statement is an underwritten offering or is made through
a placement or sales agent, to recommend the yield of such Notes;

(ii) indemnifying any such qualified independent underwriter to the extent of the indemnification of
underwriters provided in Section 7 hereof; and

(iii) providing such information to such Broker-Dealer as may be required in order for such Broker-Dealer to
comply with the requirements of such Rules.

(v) The Company and the Guarantor shall use their best efforts to take all other steps necessary to effect the
registration of the Notes or the New Notes, as the case may be, covered by a Registration Statement.
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5. Additional Interest

(a) The parties hereto agree that the Holders of Notes or New Notes, as the case may be, will suffer damages if the
Company and the Guarantor fail to perform their obligations under Section 2 or 3 hereof and that it would not be feasible to ascertain the
extent of such damages. Accordingly, in the event that:

(i) neither the Exchange Offer Registration Statement nor the Shelf Registration Statement have been filed on
or prior to the 90th day following the Initiation Date;
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(ii) neither the Exchange Offer Registration Statement nor the Shelf Registration Statement have been
declared effective on or prior to the 180th day following the Initiation Date;

(iii) neither the Exchange Offer has been completed nor the Shelf Registration Statement has been declared
effective on or prior to the 210th day following the Initiation Date; or

(iv) either the Exchange Offer Registration Statement or Shelf Registration Statement cease to be effective or
usable in connection with the resales of the Notes or New Notes during a period in which it is required to be effective hereunder
without being succeeded immediately by any additional Registration Statement or post-effective amendment covering the Notes or
the New Notes, as the case may be, which has been filed and declared effective;

(each such event referred to in the foregoing clauses (i) through (iv), a �Registration Default�), then additional interest (�Additional Interest�)
will accrue on the principal amount of the Notes and the New Notes, respectively (in addition to the stated interest on the Notes and the New
Notes), from and including the date on which any Registration Default first occurs and while any such Registration Default has occurred and
is continuing, to but excluding the date on which all filings, declarations of effectiveness and consummations, as the case may be, have been
achieved which, if achieved on a timely basis, would have prevented the occurrence of all of the then existing Registration Defaults.
Additional Interest will accrue at a rate of 0.10% per annum during the 90-day period immediately following such first occurrence of a
Registration Default and while any such Registration Default has occurred and is continuing, and shall increase by 0.10% per annum at the
end of each subsequent 90-day period up to a maximum of 0.20% per annum with respect to all Registration Defaults, until the date on which
all of the filings, declarations of effectiveness and consummations referred to in the preceding sentence have been achieved, on which date the
interest rate on the Notes or the New Notes, respectively, will revert to the interest rate originally borne by such notes.

(b) The Company and the Guarantor shall notify the Trustee under the Indenture (or the trustee under any New Notes
Indenture) immediately upon the happening of each and every Registration Default. The Company and the Guarantor shall pay the Additional
Interest due on the Notes or New Notes, as the case may be, by depositing with the Trustee (which shall not be the Company for these
purposes) for the Notes or the New Notes, in trust, for
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the benefit of the Holders thereof, prior to 11:00 A.M. on the next interest payment date specified in the Indenture (or such New Notes
Indenture), sums sufficient to pay the Additional Interest then due. The Additional Interest due shall be payable on each interest payment date
specified by the Indenture (or such New Notes Indenture) to the record holders entitled to receive the interest payment to be made on such
date.

(c) The parties hereto agree that the Additional Interest provided for in this Section 5 constitutes a reasonable estimate
of the damages that will be suffered by Holders of Notes or New Notes by reason of the happening of any Registration Default.

(d) All of the Company�s and the Guarantor�s obligations set forth in this Section 5 shall survive the termination of
this Agreement.

6. Registration Expenses. The Company and the Guarantor shall be jointly and severally responsible to bear all

expenses incurred in connection with the performance of its obligations under Sections 2, 3 and 4 hereof and, in the event of any Shelf

Registration Statement, will reimburse the Holders for the reasonable fees and disbursements of one firm or counsel designated by the

Initiating Holders to act as counsel for the Holders in connection therewith, and, in the case of any Exchange Offer Registration Statement,

will reimburse the Initial Purchaser for the reasonable fees and disbursements of one firm or counsel designated as counsel acting in

connection therewith.

7. Indemnification and Contribution. (a) The Company and the Guarantor, jointly and severally, agree to indemnify

and hold harmless each Holder of Notes or New Notes, as the case may be, covered by any Registration Statement (including the Initial

Purchaser and, with respect to any Prospectus delivery as contemplated in Section 4(h) hereof, each Exchanging Dealer), the directors,
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officers, employees and agents of each such Holder and each Person who controls any such Holder within the meaning of either the Securities

Act or the Exchange Act against any and all losses, claims, damages or liabilities, joint or several, to which they or any of them may become

subject under the Securities Act, the Exchange Act or other federal or state statutory law or regulation, at common law or otherwise, insofar as

such losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actions in respect thereof) arise out of or are based upon any untrue statement or alleged untrue

statement of a material fact contained in the Registration Statement as originally filed or in any amendment thereof, or in any preliminary

Prospectus or the Prospectus, or in any amendment thereof or supplement thereto, or arise out of or are based upon the omission or alleged

omission to state therein a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, and agrees to

reimburse each such indemnified party, as incurred, for any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by them in connection with

investigating or defending any such loss, claim, damage, liability or action; provided, however, that the Company and the Guarantor will not

be liable in any case to the extent that any such loss, claim, damage or liability arises out of or is based upon any such untrue statement or

alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission made therein in reliance upon and in conformity with written information furnished

to the Company and the Guarantor by or on behalf of any such Holder specifically for inclusion therein; provided further, that with respect to
any untrue statement or omission of material fact made in any Registration Statement, the indemnity agreement contained in this Section 7(a)
shall not inure to the benefit of any Holder from whom the person asserting any such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or expenses purchased
Notes or
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New Notes concerned, or any person controlling such Holders, if a copy of the Prospectus (as then amended or supplemented if the Company
and the Guarantor shall have furnished any amendments or supplements thereto) was not sent or given by or on behalf of such Holder to such
person, if required by laws so to have been delivered, at or prior to the written confirmation of the sale of the New Notes or the Notes to such
person, and if the Prospectus (as so amended or supplemented) would have cured the defect giving rise to such losses, claims, damages,
liabilities or expenses, unless such failure is the result of noncompliance by the Company and the Guarantor with Section 4(e)-(h) hereof.
This indemnity agreement will be in addition to any liability which the Company and the Guarantor may otherwise have.

The Company and the Guarantor, jointly and severally, also agree to indemnify or contribute as provided in Section 7(d) to

Losses of each underwriter of Notes or New Notes, as the case may be, registered under a Shelf Registration Statement, their directors,
officers, employees or agents and each Person who controls such underwriter on substantially the same basis as that of the indemnification of

the Initial Purchaser and the selling Holders provided in this Section 7(a) and shall, if requested by any Holder, enter into an underwriting

agreement reflecting such agreement, as provided in Section 4(p) hereof.

(b) Each Holder of notes covered by a Registration Statement (including the Initial Purchaser and, with respect to any

Prospectus delivery as contemplated in Section 4(h) hereof, each Exchanging Dealer) severally agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the

Company and the Guarantor, and their respective directors and officers who signs such Registration Statement and each Person who controls

the Company and the Guarantor within the meaning of either the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, to the same extent as the foregoing

indemnity from the Company and the Guarantor to each such Holder, but only with reference to written information relating to such Holder

furnished to the Company and the Guarantor by or on behalf of such Holder specifically for inclusion in the documents referred to in the

foregoing indemnity. This indemnity agreement will be in addition to any liability which any such Holder may otherwise have.

(c) Promptly after receipt by an indemnified party under this Section 7 or notice of the commencement of any action,

such indemnified party will, if a claim in respect thereof is to be made against the indemnifying party under this Section, notify the

indemnifying party in writing of the commencement thereof; but the failure so to notify the indemnifying party (i) will not relieve it from

liability under paragraph (a) or (b) above unless and to the extent it did not otherwise learn of such action and such failure results in the

forfeiture by the indemnifying party of substantial rights and defenses; and (ii) will not, in any event, relieve the indemnifying party from any

obligations to any indemnified party other than the indemnification obligation provided in paragraph (a) or (b) above. The indemnifying party

shall be entitled to appoint counsel of the indemnifying party�s choice at the indemnifying party�s expense to represent the indemnified party
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in any action for which indemnification is sought (in which case the indemnifying party shall not thereafter be responsible for the fees and

expenses of any separate counsel retained by the indemnified party or parties except as set forth below); provided, however, that such counsel

shall be satisfactory to the indemnified party. Notwithstanding the indemnifying party�s election to appoint counsel to represent the

indemnified party in an action, the indemnified party shall have the right to employ separate counsel (including local counsel), and the

indemnifying party shall bear the reasonable fees, costs and expenses of such separate
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counsel if (i) the use of counsel chosen by the indemnifying party to represent the indemnified party would present such counsel with a

conflict of interest; (ii) the actual or potential defendants in, or targets of, any such action include both the indemnified party and the

indemnifying party and the indemnified party shall have reasonably concluded that there may be legal defenses available to it and/or other

indemnified parties which are different from or additional to those available to the indemnifying party; (iii) the indemnifying party shall not

have employed counsel satisfactory to the indemnified party to represent the indemnified party within a reasonable time after notice of the

institution of such action; or (iv) the indemnifying party shall authorize the indemnified party to employ separate counsel at the expense of the

indemnifying party. An indemnifying party will not, without the prior written consent (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld) of

the indemnified parties, settle or compromise or consent to the entry of any judgment with respect to any pending or threatened claim, action,

suit or proceeding in respect of which indemnification or contribution may be sought hereunder (whether or not the indemnified parties are

actual or potential parties to such claim or action) unless such settlement, compromise or consent includes an unconditional release of each

indemnified party from all liability arising out of such claim, action, suit or proceeding.

(d) In the event that the indemnity provided in paragraph (a) or (b) of this Section is unavailable to or insufficient to

hold harmless an indemnified party for any reason, then each applicable indemnifying party shall have a joint and several obligation to

contribute to the aggregate losses, claims, damages and liabilities (including legal or other expenses reasonably incurred in connection with

investigating or defending same) (collectively �Losses�) to which such indemnified party may be subject in such proportion as is appropriate

to reflect the relative benefits received by such indemnifying party, on the one hand, and such indemnified party, on the other hand, from the

Initial Placement and the Registration Statement which resulted in such Losses; provided, however, that in no case shall the Initial Purchaser

or any subsequent Holder of any Note or New Note be responsible, in the aggregate, for any amount in excess of the purchase discount or

commission applicable to such Note, or in the case of a New Note, applicable to the Note that was exchangeable into such New Note, nor shall

any underwriter be responsible for any amount in excess of the underwriting discount or commission applicable to the notes purchased by

such underwriter under the Registration Statement which resulted in such Losses. If the allocation provided by the immediately preceding

sentence is unavailable for any reason, the indemnifying party and the indemnified party shall contribute in such proportion as is appropriate

to reflect not only such relative benefits but also the relative fault of such indemnifying party, on the one hand, and such indemnified party, on

the other hand, in connection with the statements or omissions which resulted in such Losses as well as any other relevant equitable

considerations. Benefits received by the Company and the Guarantor shall be deemed to be equal to the total net proceeds from the Initial

Placement (before deducting expenses). Benefits received by the Initial Purchaser shall be deemed to be equal to the total purchase discounts

and commissions, and benefits received by any other Holders shall be deemed to be equal to the value of receiving Notes or New Notes, as

applicable, registered under the Securities Act. Benefits received by any underwriter shall be deemed to be equal to the total underwriting

discounts and commissions, as set forth on the cover page of the Prospectus forming a part of the Registration Statement which resulted in

such Losses. Relative fault shall be determined by reference to, among other things, whether any alleged untrue statement or omission relates

to information provided by the indemnifying party, on the one hand, or by the indemnified party, on the other hand, the intent of the parties
and their relative knowledge,

18

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent such untrue statement or omission. The parties agree that it would not be just and

equitable if contribution were determined by pro rata allocation (even if the Holders were treated as one entity for such purpose) or any other

method of allocation which does not take account of the equitable considerations referred to above. Notwithstanding the provisions of this

paragraph (d), no Person guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation (within the meaning of Section 11(f) of the Securities Act) shall be entitled to

contribution from any Person who was not guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation. For purposes of this Section, each Person who

controls a Holder within the meaning of either the Securities Act or the Exchange Act and each director, officer, employee and agent of such

Holder shall have the same rights to contribution as such Holder, and each Person who controls the Company and the Guarantor within the

meaning of either the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, each officer of the Company and the Guarantor who shall have signed the

Registration Statement and each director of the Company and the Guarantor shall have the same rights to contribution as the Company,

subject in each case to the applicable terms and conditions of this paragraph (d).

(e) The provisions of this Section will remain in full force and effect, regardless of any investigation made by or on

behalf of any Holder or the Company or the Guarantor or any of the officers, directors or controlling Persons referred to in this Section hereof,

and will survive the sale by a Holder of Notes covered by a Registration Statement.

8. Underwritten Registrations. (a) If any of the Notes or New Notes, as the case may be, covered by any Shelf
Registration Statement are to be sold in an underwritten offering, the Managing Underwriters shall be selected by the Initiating Holders.

(b) No Person may participate in any underwritten offering pursuant to any Shelf Registration Statement, unless such
Person (i) agrees to sell such Person�s Notes or New Notes, as the case may be, on the basis reasonably provided in any underwriting
arrangements approved by the Persons entitled hereunder to approve such arrangements; and (ii) completes and executes all questionnaires,
powers of attorney, indemnities, underwriting agreements and other documents reasonably required under the terms of such underwriting
arrangements.

9. No Inconsistent Agreements. Neither the Company nor the Guarantor has, as of the date hereof, entered into, nor

shall they, on or after the date hereof, enter into, any agreement with respect to Notes of the Company that is inconsistent with the rights

granted to the Holders herein or otherwise conflicts with the provisions hereof.

10. Amendments and Waivers. The provisions of this Agreement, including the provisions of this sentence, may not

be amended, qualified, modified or supplemented, and waivers or consents to departures from the provisions hereof may not be given, unless

the Company has obtained the written consent of Initiating Holders (or, after the consummation of any Registered Exchange Offer in

accordance with Section 2 hereof, of New Notes); provided that, with respect to any matter that directly or indirectly affects the rights of the

Initial Purchaser hereunder, the Company shall obtain the written consent of the Initial Purchaser against which such amendment,

qualification, supplement, waiver or consent is to be effective. Notwithstanding the foregoing (except the foregoing proviso), a waiver or

consent to departure from the provisions hereof with respect to a matter that relates exclusively to the rights of
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Holders whose Notes or New Notes, as the case may be, are being sold pursuant to a Registration Statement and that does not directly or

indirectly affect the rights of other Holders may be given by the Initiating Holders, determined on the basis of Notes or New Notes, as the case

may be, being sold rather than registered under such Registration Statement.

11. Notices. All notices and other communications provided for or permitted hereunder shall be made in writing by

hand-delivery, first-class mail, telex, telecopier or air courier guaranteeing overnight delivery:
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(a) if to a Holder, at the most current address given by such holder to the Company in accordance with the provisions

of this Section 11, which address initially is, with respect to each Holder, the address of such Holder maintained by the Registrar under the

Indenture, with a copy in like manner to Goldman, Sachs & Co.;

(b) if to you, initially at the address set forth in the Purchase Agreement; and

(c) if to the Company or the Guarantor, initially at its address:

Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc.
Harrah�s Operating Company, Inc.
One Harrah�s Court
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

Attn: Treasurer
With a copy
to:

General Counsel

All such notices and communications shall be deemed to have been duly given when received.

The Initial Purchaser or the Company or the Guarantor by notice to the other parties may designate additional or different

addresses for subsequent notices or communications.

12. Successors. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of each of

the parties, including, without the need for an express assignment or any consent by the Company and the Guarantor thereto, subsequent

Holders of Notes and the New Notes. The Company and the Guarantor hereby agree to extend the benefits of this Agreement to any Holder of

Notes and the New Notes, and any such Holder may specifically enforce the provisions of this Agreement as if an original party hereto.

13. Counterparts. This agreement may be in signed counterparts, each of which shall an original and all of which

together shall constitute one and the same agreement.

14. Headings. The headings used herein are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction hereof.
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15. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of

New York applicable to contracts made and to be performed in the State of New York.

16. Severability. In the event that any one of more of the provisions contained herein, or the application thereof in any

circumstances, is held invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect for any reason, the validity, legality and enforceability of any such

provision in every other respect and of the remaining provisions hereof shall not be in any way impaired or affected thereby, it being intended

that all of the rights and privileges of the parties shall be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

17. Notes Held by the Company, etc. Whenever the consent or approval of Holders of a specified percentage of

principal amount of Notes or New Notes is required hereunder, Notes or New Notes, as applicable, held by the Company or its Affiliates

(other than subsequent Holders of Notes or New Notes if such subsequent Holders are deemed to be Affiliates solely by reason of their
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holdings of such Notes or New Notes) shall not be counted in determining whether such consent or approval was given by the Holders of such

required percentage.

21

If the foregoing is in accordance with your understanding of our agreement, please sign and return to us the enclosed
duplicate hereof, whereupon this letter and your acceptance shall represent a binding agreement among the Company, the Guarantor and the
Initial Purchaser.

Very truly yours,

HARRAH�S OPERATING COMPANY, INC.

By:
Name: Jonathan S. Halkyard
Title: Vice President and Treasurer

HARRAH�S ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

By:
Name: Jonathan S. Halkyard
Title: Vice President and Treasurer
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The foregoing Agreement is hereby confirmed and

accepted as of the date first above written.

By: GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO., INC.

By:
(Goldman, Sachs & Co.)

23

ANNEX A

Each Broker-Dealer that receives New Notes for its own account pursuant to the Exchange Offer must acknowledge that it
will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such New Notes. The Letter of Transmittal states that by so acknowledging and by
delivering a prospectus, a Broker-Dealer will not be deemed to admit that it is an �underwriter� within the meaning of the Securities Act.
This Prospectus, as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time, may be used by a Broker-Dealer in connection with resales of New
Notes received in exchange for Notes where such Notes were acquired by such Broker-Dealer as a result of market-making activities or other
trading activities. The Company and the Guarantor have agreed that, starting on the Expiration Date (as defined herein) and ending on the

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


close of business 180 days after the Expiration Date, they will make this Prospectus available to any Broker-Dealer for use in connection with
any such resale. See �Plan of Distribution.�

A-1

ANNEX B

Each Broker-Dealer that receives New Notes for its own account in exchange for Notes, where such Notes were acquired by
such Broker-Dealer as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities, must acknowledge that it will deliver a prospectus in
connection with any resale of such New Notes. See �Plan of Distribution.�

B-1

ANNEX C

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Each Broker-Dealer that receives New Notes for its own account pursuant to the Exchange Offer must acknowledge that it
will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such New Notes. This Prospectus, as it may be amended or supplemented from time
to time, may be used by a Broker-Dealer in connection with resales of New Notes received in exchange for Notes where such Notes were
acquired as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities. The Company and the Guarantor have agreed that, starting on the
Expiration Date and ending on the close of business 180 days after the Expiration Date, it will make this Prospectus, as amended or
supplemented, available to any Broker-Dealer for use in connection with any such resale. In addition, until [�] all dealers effecting
transactions in the New Notes may be required to deliver a prospectus.

The Company and the Guarantor will not receive any proceeds from any sale of New Notes by brokers-dealers. New Notes
received by Broker-Dealers for their own account pursuant to the Exchange Offer may be sold from time to time in one or more transactions
in the over-the-counter market, in negotiated transactions, through the writing of options on the New Notes or a combination of such methods
of resale, at market prices prevailing at the time of resale, at prices related to such prevailing market prices or negotiated prices. Any such
resale may be made directly to purchasers or to or through brokers or dealers who may receive compensation in the form of commissions or
concessions from any such Broker-Dealer and/or the purchasers of any such New Notes. Any Broker-Dealer that resells New Notes that were
received by it for its own account pursuant to the Exchange Offer and any broker or dealer that participates in a distribution of such New
Notes may be deemed to be an �underwriter� within the meaning of the Securities Act and any profit of any such resale of New Notes and any
commissions or concessions received by any such Persons may be deemed to be underwriting compensation under the Securities Act. The
Letter of Transmittal states that by acknowledging that it will deliver and by delivering a prospectus, a Broker-Dealer will not be deemed to
admit that it is an �underwriter� within the meaning of the Securities Act.

For a period of 180 days after the Expiration Date, the Company and the Guarantor will promptly send additional copies of
this Prospectus and any amendment or supplement to this Prospectus to any Broker-Dealer that requests such documents in the Letter of
Transmittal. The Company and the Guarantor have agreed to pay all expenses incident to the Exchange Offer (including the expenses of one
counsel for the holder of the Notes) other than commissions or concessions of any brokers or dealers and will indemnify the holders of the
Notes (including any Broker-Dealers) against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

[If applicable, add information required by Regulation S-K Items 507 and/or 508.]

C-1

ANNEX D
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Rider A

CHECK HERE IF YOU ARE A BROKER-DEALER AND WISH TO RECEIVE 10 ADDITIONAL COPIES OF THE
PROSPECTUS AND 10 COPIES OF ANY AMENDMENTS OR SUPPLEMENTS THERETO.

Name:
Address:

Rider B

If the undersigned is not a Broker-Dealer, the undersigned represents that it acquired the New Notes in the ordinary course of its business, it is
not engaged in, and does not intend to engage in, a distribution of New Notes and it has no arrangements or understandings with any Person to
participate in a distribution of the New Notes. If the undersigned is a Broker-Dealer that will receive New Notes for its own account in
exchange for Notes, it represents that the Notes to be exchanged for New Notes were acquired by it as a result of market-making activities or
other trading activities and acknowledges that it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such New Notes; however, by so
acknowledging and by delivering a prospectus, the undersigned will not be deemed to admit that it is an �underwriter� within the meaning of
the Securities Act.

D-1
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Exhibit 10.1

ANNEX I

HARRAH��S OPERATING COMPANY, INC.

Guaranteed Debt Securities

Payment of Principal, Interest and
Premium, if any, Guaranteed by

Harrah��s Entertainment, Inc.

PURCHASE AGREEMENT GENERAL PROVISIONS

February 4, 2005

The provisions set forth herein are incorporated by reference in a Purchase Agreement of even date herewith (such
agreement, including the provisions hereof as incorporated therein, the �Purchase Agreement�). The Purchase Agreement is sometimes
referred to herein as this �Agreement.� Terms defined in the Purchase Agreement are used herein as therein defined.

1. Representations and Warranties. The Company and the Guarantor, jointly and severally, represent and warrant to
and agree with the Initial Purchaser that:

(a) The Offering Circular does not contain and, as amended or supplemented, if applicable, will not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading, except that the representations and warranties set forth in this paragraph do not apply to
statements or omissions in the Offering Circular based upon information relating to any Initial Purchaser furnished to the Company in
writing by such Initial Purchaser through the Representative expressly for use therein;

(b) Each of the Company and the Guarantor has been duly incorporated, is validly existing as a corporation in good
standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation, has the corporate power and authority to own its property and to
conduct its business as described in the Offering Circular and is duly qualified to transact business and is in good standing in each
jurisdiction in which the conduct of its business or its ownership or leasing of property requires such qualification, except to the
extent that the failure to be so qualified or be in good standing would not have a material adverse effect on the Company or the
Guarantor and their respective subsidiaries, taken as a whole;

(c) Each subsidiary of the Company and the Guarantor, respectively, has been duly organized or formed, as applicable,
is validly existing as a corporation, limited liability company or partnership in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its

organization or formation, as applicable, has the power and authority to own its property and to conduct its business as described in
the Offering Circular and is duly qualified to transact business and is in good standing in each jurisdiction in which the conduct of its
business or its ownership or leasing of property requires such qualification, except to the extent that the failure to be so qualified or
be in good standing would not have a material adverse effect on the Company or the Guarantor and their respective subsidiaries,
taken as a whole; all of the issued shares of capital stock or other equity interests of each subsidiary of the Company and the
Guarantor, respectively, have been duly and validly authorized and issued and are fully paid and non-assessable. Except as set forth
in or as incorporated by reference in the Offering Circular, all of the shares of capital stock or other equity or partnership interests of
each subsidiary of the Company or the Guarantor that would be considered a �significant subsidiary� for purposes of Rule 1-02 under
Regulation S-X pursuant to the Securities Act (the �Significant Subsidiaries�) are owned directly or indirectly by the Company or the
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Guarantor, respectively, except that 20% of the equity interest in Des Plaines Development Ltd. is not owned directly or indirectly by
the Company or the Guarantor. Except as set forth in or as incorporated by reference in the Offering Circular, all of the shares of
capital stock or other equity or partnership interests of subsidiaries of the Company or the Guarantor held by the Company or the
Guarantor are held free and clear of all liens, encumbrances, equities or claims except such liens, encumbrances, equities or claims
imposed by Gaming Laws or the terms of any partnership agreement pertaining to any partnership that is a subsidiary of the
Company or that would not would not have a material adverse effect on the Company or the Guarantor and their respective
subsidiaries, taken as a whole;

(d) This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by each of the Company and the Guarantor;

(e) The Indenture has been, or will be by the Closing Date, duly authorized, executed and delivered by each of the
Company and the Guarantor and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery thereof by the Trustee, is, or will be by the
Closing Date, a valid and binding agreement of each of the Company and the Guarantor, respectively, enforceable in accordance with
its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws affecting creditors� rights generally and general principles of
equity;

(f) The Registration Rights Agreement has been, or will be by the Closing Date, duly authorized, executed and
delivered by each of the Company and the Guarantor and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery thereof by the
Representative, is, or will be by the Closing Date, a valid and binding agreement of each of the Company and the Guarantor,
respectively, enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws affecting
creditors� rights generally and general principles of equity;

(g) The Securities have been duly authorized by the Company and the Guarantor and, when executed, authenticated
and issued in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture and delivered to and paid for by the Initial Purchaser in accordance
with the terms of the Purchase Agreement, (assuming due authorization,

2

execution and delivery thereof by the Trustee) will be entitled to the benefits of the Indenture, and will be valid and binding
obligations of the Company and the Guarantor, respectively, in each case enforceable in accordance with their respective terms,
subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws affecting creditors� rights generally and general principles of equity;

(h) The execution and delivery by each of the Company and the Guarantor of, and the performance by each of the
Company and the Guarantor of its respective obligations under, this Agreement, the Indenture, the Registration Rights Agreement
and the Securities will not contravene any provision of applicable law or the certificate of incorporation or by-laws of the Company
or the Guarantor, respectively, or any agreement or other instrument binding upon the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or the
Guarantor or any of its subsidiaries, respectively, that is material to the Company or the Guarantor and their respective subsidiaries,
taken as a whole, or any judgment, order or decree of any governmental body, agency or court having jurisdiction over the Company
or the Guarantor and any of their respective subsidiaries, and no consent, approval, authorization, filing with or order of, or
qualification with, any governmental body or agency is required in connection with, or prior to the consummation of, the transactions
contemplated in, or for the performance by the Company or the Guarantor of its respective obligations under, this Agreement, the
Indenture, the Registration Rights Agreement and the Securities, except such as will be obtained under the Securities Act, the
Exchange Act, and the Trust Indenture Act, or as may be required by the securities or Blue Sky laws of the various states and
securities laws of any jurisdiction outside the United States in connection with the offer and sale of the Securities, or as have been
obtained pursuant to Gaming Laws;

(i) There has not occurred any material adverse change, or any development involving a prospective material adverse
change, in the condition, financial or otherwise, or in the earnings, business or operations of the Company or the Guarantor and their
respective subsidiaries, taken as a whole, from that set forth in the Offering Circular (exclusive of any amendments or supplements
thereto subsequent to the Execution Time);

(j) To the knowledge of the Company, there are no known legal or governmental proceedings pending or threatened to
which the Company or the Guarantor and any of their respective subsidiaries is a party or to which any of the properties of the
Company or the Guarantor or any of their respective subsidiaries is subject that are not adequately disclosed in the Offering Circular
and that would, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the Company or the Guarantor and their respective
subsidiaries, taken as a whole. Except as disclosed in the Offering Circular, neither the Company nor the Guarantor has any reason to
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believe that any governmental agency with authority pursuant to any Gaming Law is investigating the Company, the Guarantor or
any of their respective subsidiaries in any non-routine matter, the results of which would materially affect the operations of the
Company and the subsidiaries of the Company. Due to the highly regulated nature of the business of the Company and the
subsidiaries of the Company, there are ongoing investigations by various governmental agencies with authority pursuant to the
various Gaming Laws;

3

(k) Neither the Company nor the Guarantor is, and after giving effect to the offering and sale of the Securities and the
application of the proceeds thereof as described in the Offering Circular, neither will be, an �investment company� or an entity
�controlled by an investment company� as such terms are defined in the Investment Company Act;

(l) The Company and the Guarantor and their respective subsidiaries (i) are in compliance with any and all applicable
foreign, federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to the protection of human health and safety, the environment or
hazardous or toxic substances or wastes, pollutants or contaminants (�Environmental Laws�), (ii) have received all permits, licenses
or other approvals required of them under applicable Environmental Laws to conduct their respective businesses, and (iii) are in
compliance with all terms and conditions of any such permit, license or approval, except where such noncompliance with
Environmental Laws, failure to receive required permits, licenses or other approvals or failure to comply with the terms and
conditions of such permits, licenses or approvals would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the
Company or the Guarantor and their respective subsidiaries, taken as a whole;

(m) There are no costs or liabilities associated with Environmental Laws (including, without limitation, any capital or
operating expenditures required for clean-up, closure of properties or compliance with Environmental Laws or any permit, license or
approval, any related constraints on operating activities and any potential liabilities to third parties) that would, individually or in the
aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the Company or the Guarantor and their respective subsidiaries, taken as a whole;

(n) Except as disclosed in the Offering Circular, each of the Company and the Guarantor and their respective
subsidiaries has sufficient trademarks, trade names, patent rights, copyrights, or licenses to conduct their respective businesses as
now conducted in all material respects;

(o) Except as disclosed in or specifically contemplated by the Offering Circular, each of the Company and the
Guarantor and their respective subsidiaries has sufficient licenses, approvals and authorizations required pursuant to Gaming Laws to
conduct their respective current businesses, except such licenses, approvals and authorizations required pursuant to Gaming Laws the
absence of which, either individually or in the aggregate, would not have a material adverse effect on the Company or the Guarantor
and their respective subsidiaries, taken as a whole;

(p) Each of the Company�s and Guarantor�s and their respective subsidiaries� controlling persons, key employees,
and, to the Company�s or the Guarantor�s knowledge, stockholders, have all necessary permits, licenses and other authorizations
required by Gaming Laws for the Company, the Guarantor and their respective subsidiaries to conduct their respective businesses as
now conducted in all material respects; and neither the Company nor the Guarantor has any knowledge that any of their respective
stockholders is unsuitable or may be deemed unsuitable by any authorities pursuant to Gaming Laws;
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(q) No labor dispute with the employees of the Company or the Guarantor or any of their respective subsidiaries exists,
or to the knowledge of the Company or the Guarantor, respectively, is imminent that would, individually or in the aggregate, have a
material adverse effect on the Company or the Guarantor and their respective subsidiaries, taken as a whole;

(r) Neither the Company, nor the Guarantor, nor any of their respective affiliates, nor any person acting on its or their
behalf has, directly or indirectly, made offers or sales of any security, or solicited offers to buy any security, under circumstances that
would require the registration of the Securities under the Securities Act;

(s) Neither the Company, nor the Guarantor, nor any of their respective affiliates, nor any person acting on its or their
behalf has engaged in any form of general solicitation or general advertising (within the meaning of Regulation D) in connection with
any offer or sale of the Securities in the United States;

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


(t) Assuming the accuracy of the representations and warranties and compliance with the agreements of the Initial
Purchaser made pursuant to Section 3, and except as described in the Offering Circular under �Description of Notes � Registration
Rights,� it is not necessary in connection with the offer, sale and delivery of the Securities in the manner contemplated by this
Agreement and the Offering Circular to register the Securities under the Securities Act or to qualify the Indenture under the Trust
Indenture Act;

(u) The Securities satisfy the eligibility requirements of Rule 144A(d)(3) under the Securities Act;

(v) Neither the Company, nor the Guarantor, nor any of their respective affiliates, nor any person acting on its or their
behalf has engaged in any directed selling efforts with respect to the Securities, and each of them has complied with the offering
restrictions requirement of Regulation S. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by Regulation S;

(w) The Company and Guarantor are subject to and in compliance in all material respects with the reporting
requirements of Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

(x) Neither the Company nor the Guarantor has, within the past 12 months, paid or agreed to pay to any person any
compensation for soliciting another to purchase any securities of the Company or Guarantor (except as contemplated by this
Agreement and the Purchase Agreement dated June 22, 2004 between the Company and the initial purchasers as set forth therein and
except in connection with any repurchase by the Guarantor of its outstanding securities (other than the Securities)); and

(y) The Company and the Guarantor are in compliance in all material respects with all applicable provisions of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rules and regulations of the Commission adopted thereunder.
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2. Payment and Delivery. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 2, payment for the Securities shall be made to
the Company in federal or other funds immediately available at the time and place set forth in the Purchase Agreement, upon delivery to the
Representative for the account of the Initial Purchaser of the Securities registered in such names and in such denominations as the
Representative shall request in writing not less than one full Business Day prior to the date of delivery, with any transfer taxes payable in
connection with the transfer of the Securities to the Initial Purchaser duly paid by the Company. Delivery of the Securities shall be made
through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company unless the Representative shall otherwise instruct.

3. Offering by Initial Purchaser. The Initial Purchaser represents and warrants to and agrees with the Company and
the Guarantor that:

(a) It has not offered or sold, and, until the Securities are registered under the Act as described in the Offering Circular
under the caption �Description of Notes � Registration Rights,� will not offer or sell, any Securities except (i) to those it reasonably
believes to be qualified institutional buyers (as defined in Rule 144A under the Act) and that, in connection with each such sale, it has
taken or will take reasonable steps to ensure that the purchaser of such Securities is aware that such sale is being made in reliance on
Rule 144A; or (ii) in accordance with the restrictions set forth in Exhibit A hereto.

(b) Neither it nor any person acting on its behalf has made or will make offers or sales of the Securities in the United
States by means of any form of general solicitation or general advertising (within the meaning of Regulation D) in the United States.

4. Conditions to the Initial Purchaser�s Obligations. The obligations of the Initial Purchaser are subject to the
performance by the Company and Guarantor of their obligations hereunder and to the following conditions:

(a) Subsequent to the execution and delivery of the Purchase Agreement and prior to the Closing Date:

(i) there shall not have occurred any downgrading, nor shall any notice have been given of any intended or
potential downgrading or of any review for a possible change that does not indicate the direction of the possible change, in
the rating accorded any of the Company�s or the Guarantor�s securities by any �nationally recognized statistical rating
organization,� as such term is defined for purposes of Rule 436(g)(2) under the Act; and

(ii) there shall not have occurred any change, or any development involving a prospective change, in the
condition, financial or otherwise, or in the earnings, business or operations of the Company or the Guarantor and their
respective subsidiaries, taken as a whole, from that set forth in the Offering Circular (exclusive of any amendments or
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supplements thereto subsequent to the Execution Time) that, in the judgment of the Representative, is material and adverse
and that makes it, in the judgment of the Representative, impracticable or
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inadvisable to proceed with the offering, sale or delivery of the Securities on the terms and in the manner contemplated in
the Offering Circular.

(b) The Initial Purchaser shall have received on the Closing Date a certificate, dated the Closing Date and signed by an
executive officer of each of the Company and the Guarantor, to the effect set forth in Section 4(a)(i) above and to the effect that the
representations and warranties of the Company and the Guarantor, respectively, contained in this Agreement are true and correct as
of the Closing Date and that the Company and the Guarantor, respectively, have complied with all of the agreements and satisfied all
of the conditions on its part to be performed or satisfied hereunder on or before the Closing Date. The officer signing and delivering
such certificate may rely upon the best of his or her knowledge as to proceedings threatened.

(c) The Initial Purchaser shall have received on the Closing Date an opinion of Stephen H. Brammell, Senior Vice
President and General Counsel of the Company and the Guarantor, dated the Closing Date, to the effect that:

(i) each of the Company, the Guarantor and the Significant Subsidiaries has been duly organized, is validly
existing as a corporation, limited liability company or partnership in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its
organization, has the power and authority to own its property and to conduct its business as described in the Offering
Circular and is duly qualified to transact business and is in good standing in each jurisdiction in which the conduct of its
business or its ownership or leasing of property requires such qualification, except to the extent that the failure to be so
qualified or be in good standing would not have a material adverse effect on the Company or the Guarantor and their
respective subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(ii) after inquiry of the members of the law departments of the Company and Guarantor, to the best of such
counsel�s knowledge, (A) there are no legal or governmental proceedings pending or threatened to which the Company or
the Guarantor and any of their respective subsidiaries is a party or to which any of the properties of the Company or the
Guarantor or any of their respective subsidiaries is subject that are not adequately disclosed in the Offering Circular and that
would, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the Company or the Guarantor and their respective
subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (B) there are no material statutes, regulations, contracts or other documents that are not
adequately disclosed in the Offering Circular, and (C) there is no non-routine investigation of the Company, the Guarantor
or any of their respective subsidiaries, by any governmental agency with authority pursuant to any Gaming Law, the results
of which would have material adverse effect on the Company, the Guarantor or any of their respective subsidiaries taken as
a whole.

(iii) each of the Company�s, and Guarantor�s and their respective subsidiaries� controlling persons, and key
employees have all necessary permits, licenses and other authorizations required by Gaming Laws for the Company, the
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Guarantor and their respective subsidiaries to conduct their businesses as now conducted except such licenses, approvals and
authorizations required pursuant to Gaming Laws the absence of which, either individually or in the aggregate, would not
have a material adverse effect on the Company or the Guarantor and their respective subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(iv) the statements (A) in the Offering Circular under the captions �Regulation and Licensing� and �Legal
Matters,� (B) in �Item 1 - Business - Patents and Trademarks,� �Item 1 - Business - Governmental Regulation� and �Item 3
- Legal Proceedings� of the Guarantor�s most recent annual report on Form 10-K in respect of the year ended December 31,
2003, which is incorporated by reference in the Offering Circular except for Part II, Items 6, 7 and 8, and Part IV, Item
15(a)(2) which have been updated in the Guarantor�s current report on Form 8-K dated December 17, 2004, which is
incorporated by reference in the Offering Circular (C) in �Item 7 - Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations - Debt and Liquidity� of the Guarantor�s most recent annual report on Form 10-K in
respect of the year ended December 31, 2003, as amended and restated in the Guarantor�s current report on Form 8-K dated
December 17, 2004 and (D) in �Item 2 - Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
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Operations - Debt and Liquidity� of the Guarantor�s quarterly reports on Form 10-Q in respect of the quarters ended
March 31, June 30 and September 30, 2004, which are incorporated by reference in the Offering Circular, in each case
insofar as such statements constitute summaries of the legal matters, documents or proceedings referred to therein, fairly
present in all material respects the information called for with respect to such legal matters, documents and proceedings and
fairly summarize in all material respects the matters referred to therein.

(v) no consent, approval, authorization of, or qualification with any authority pursuant to Gaming Laws is
required with respect to issuance of the Securities or the transactions contemplated by the Purchase Agreement, except as
has already been obtained.

(vi) the execution and delivery by each of the Company and the Guarantor of the transactions contemplated in,
and the performance by the Company and the Guarantor of its respective obligations pursuant to, the Purchase Agreement,
the Indenture, the Registration Rights Agreement and the Securities will not contravene, to the best of such counsel�s
knowledge, any agreement or other instrument binding upon the Company or the Guarantor and any of their respective
subsidiaries that is material to the Company or the Guarantor and their respective subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or, except
for any approvals required from the Indiana Gaming Commission for the Company to perform its obligations under the
Registration Rights Agreement, to the best of such counsel�s knowledge, any judgment, order or decree of any
governmental body, agency or court having jurisdiction over the Company or the Guarantor or any of their respective
subsidiaries, including without limitation, pursuant to any Gaming Laws.

8

(d) The Initial Purchaser shall have received on the Closing Date an opinion of Latham & Watkins LLP, outside
counsel for the Company and the Guarantor, dated the Closing Date, to the effect that:

(i) this Agreement has been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action of the Company and the
Guarantor, and this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Company and the Guarantor;

(ii) the Indenture has been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action of the Company and the
Guarantor, and the Indenture has been duly executed and delivered by the Company and the Guarantor and is the legally
valid and binding agreement of the Company and the Guarantor, enforceable against each of them in accordance with its
terms;

(iii) the Registration Rights Agreement has been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action of the
Company and the Guarantor, has been duly executed and delivered by the Company and the Guarantor and is the legally
valid and binding agreement of the Company and the Guarantor, enforceable against each of them in accordance with its
terms;

(iv) the Notes have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action of the Company and, when
executed, issued and authenticated in accordance with the terms of the Indenture and delivered to and paid for by the Initial
Purchaser in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, will be the legally valid and binding obligations of the Company,
enforceable against the Company in accordance with their terms;

(v) the notations of Guarantee of the Guarantor to be endorsed on the Notes have been duly authorized by all
necessary corporate action of the Guarantor and, when executed and delivered in accordance with the terms of the Indenture
(assuming the due execution, issuance and authentication of the Notes in accordance with the terms of the Indenture and
delivery and payment therefor by you in accordance with the terms of this Agreement), will be the legally valid and binding
obligations of the Guarantor, enforceable against the Guarantor in accordance with their terms;

(vi) the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Indenture and the Registration Rights Agreement, and
the execution, issuance and sale of the Notes and the Guarantees by each of the Company and the Guarantor, respectively, to
the Initial Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement, and the performance by each of the Company and the Guarantor on or prior
to the Closing Date of its respective obligations under this Agreement, the Indenture and the Registration Rights Agreement
required to be performed on or before the Closing Date, do not:

(A) violate the Company�s governing documents or the Guarantor�s governing documents,
respectively;

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


9

(B) violate the Delaware General Corporation Law, or any federal or New York statute, rule or
regulation applicable to the Company or the Guarantor, respectively; or

(C) require any consents, approvals, or authorizations to be obtained by the Company or the
Guarantor from, respectively, or any registrations, declarations or filings to be made by the Company or the
Guarantor with, respectively, in each case, any governmental authority under any federal or New York statute, rule
or regulation applicable to the Company or the Guarantor, respectively, that have not been obtained or made;

(vii) the statements in the Offering Circular under the caption �Description of Notes,� insofar as they purport
to describe or summarize certain provisions of the Notes and the Guarantee, are accurate descriptions or summaries in all
material respects;

(viii) no registration of the Securities under the Securities Act, and no qualification of the Indenture under the
Trust Indenture Act is required for the purchase of the Securities by the Initial Purchaser or the initial resale of the
Securities, in each case, in the manner contemplated by this Agreement and the Offering Circular (such counsel may state
that it expresses no opinion as to when or under what circumstances the Notes initially sold by you may be offered or
resold);

(ix) with your consent based solely on a certificate of an officer of the Company as to factual matters, neither
the Company nor the Guarantor is, and immediately after giving effect to the offering and sale of the Securities in
accordance with the Purchase Agreement and the application of the proceeds as described in the Offering Circular under the
caption �Use of Proceeds,� neither will be required to be registered as an �investment company� within the meaning of the
Investment Company Act; and

(x) based on such facts and subject to the limitations set forth in the Offering Circular, the statements in the
Offering Circular under the caption �Certain United States Federal Income Tax Consequences,� insofar as they purport to
summarize certain provisions of the statutes and regulations referred to therein, are accurate summaries in all material
respects.

Such counsel may state that the primary purpose of such counsel�s professional engagement was not to establish or confirm
factual matters or financial or quantitative information, and many determinations involved in the preparation of the Offering Circular
(and the documents incorporated by reference) are of a wholly or partially non-legal character or related to legal matters outside the
scope of such counsel�s opinion letter to you of even date herewith. Therefore, such counsel is not passing upon and does not
assume any responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the statements contained in, or incorporated by reference in,
the Offering Circular or the incorporated
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documents (except to the extent expressly set forth in numbered paragraphs (vii) and (x) above), and have not made an independent
check or verification thereof (except as aforesaid). However, in the course of acting as special counsel to the Company and the
Guarantor in connection with the preparation by the Company and the Guarantor of the Offering Circular, such counsel reviewed the
Offering Circular and the incorporated documents, and participated in conferences and telephone conversations with officers and
other representatives of the Company, counsel to the Company, the independent public accountants for the Company, your
representatives, and your counsel, during which conferences and conversations the contents of the Offering Circular (and portions of
the incorporated documents) and related matters were discussed. Such counsel also reviewed and relied upon certain corporate
records and documents, letters from counsel and accountants, and oral and written statements of officers and other representatives of
the Company and others as to the existence and consequence of certain factual and other matters. Such counsel considered the
foregoing in light of such counsel�s understanding of applicable U.S. federal securities laws and such counsel�s experience gained
through practice thereunder.
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Based on such counsel�s participation and review as described above, such counsel shall advise you that during the course
of such counsel�s services in connection with this matter, no facts came to such counsel�s attention that caused such counsel to
believe that the Offering Circular, together with the incorporated documents, as of its date or as of the date hereof, (together with the
incorporated documents at that date), contained or contains an untrue statement of a material fact or omitted or omits to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; it
being understood that such counsel expresses no belief with respect to the financial statements, schedules, or other financial data
included or incorporated by reference in, or omitted from, the Offering Circular or the incorporated documents.

The opinion of Latham & Watkins LLP described in this Section 4(d) shall be rendered to the Initial Purchaser at the request
of the Company and the Guarantor and shall so state therein.

(e) The Initial Purchaser shall have received from Cleary Gottlieb Steen & Hamilton LLP, counsel for the Initial
Purchaser, such opinion or opinions, dated the Closing Date and addressed to the Representative, with respect to the issuance and sale
of the Securities, the Indenture, the Registration Rights Agreement, the Offering Circular (as amended or supplemented at the
Closing Date) and other related matters as the Representative may reasonably require, and the Company and the Guarantor shall have
furnished to such counsel such documents as they request for the purpose of enabling them to pass upon such matters.

(f) At the Execution Time and at the Closing Date, Deloitte & Touche LLP shall have furnished to the Initial
Purchaser a letter or letters, dated respectively as of the Execution Time and as of the Closing Date, in form and substance
satisfactory to the Initial Purchaser, confirming that they are independent accountants within the meaning of the Act and the
Exchange Act and stating in effect that:

11

(i) in their opinion the audited financial statements and financial statement schedules included or
incorporated in the Offering Circular (as amended or supplemented at the date of the letter) and reported on by them comply
in form in all material respects with the applicable accounting requirements of the Exchange Act and the related published
rules and regulations;

(ii) on the basis of a reading of the latest unaudited financial statements made available by the Company, the
Guarantor and its subsidiaries; carrying out certain specified procedures (but not an examination in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards which would not necessarily reveal matters of significance with respect to the
comments set forth in such letter); a reading of the minutes of the meetings of the stockholders, directors and executive,
human resources and audit committees of the Company, the Guarantor and its subsidiaries; and inquiries of certain officials
of the Company and of the Guarantor who have responsibility for financial and accounting matters of the Company, the
Guarantor and its subsidiaries as to transactions and events subsequent to December 31, 2003, nothing came to their
attention which caused them to believe that: with respect to the period subsequent to September 30, 2004, there were any
changes, at a specified date not more than five Business Days prior to the date of the letter, in the consolidated long-term
debt of the Guarantor or capital stock of the Guarantor or decreases in the stockholders� equity of the Guarantor as
compared with the amounts shown on the September 30, 2004 consolidated balance sheet included or incorporated in the
Offering Circular (as amended or supplemented at the date of the letter), or for the period from October 1, 2004 to such
specified date there were any decreases, as compared with the corresponding period in the preceding year in consolidated
total revenues or operating income or income before income taxes or the total or per share amounts of consolidated net
income of the Guarantor and its subsidiaries, except in all instances for changes or decreases set forth in such letter, in which
case the letter shall be accompanied by an explanation by the Company as to the significance thereof unless said explanation
is not deemed necessary by the Initial Purchaser.

(iii) the statements and information contained in the letter or letters are of the type ordinarily included in
accountants� �comfort letters� to the Initial Purchaser with respect to the financial statements and certain financial
information contained in or incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular.

(g) Subsequent to the Execution Time or, if earlier, the dates as of which information is given in the Offering Circular,
there shall not have been (i) any change or decrease specified in the letter or letters referred to in paragraph (f) of this Section 4 or (ii)
any change, or any development involving a prospective change, in or affecting the business or properties of the Company and the
Guarantor and its subsidiaries the effect of which, in any case referred to in clause (i) or (ii) above, is, in the judgment of the Initial
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Purchaser, so material and adverse as to make it impractical or inadvisable to proceed with the offering, sale or delivery of the
Securities as contemplated by the Offering Circular.

12

(h) As of the Closing Date the Securities shall be rated not lower than BBB- by Standard & Poor�s Corporation and
Baa3 by Moody�s Investors Service, Inc.

(i) The Securities shall be eligible for clearance and settlement through The Depositary Trust Company.

(j) Prior to the Closing Date, the Company shall have furnished to the Initial Purchaser such further information,
certificates and documents as the Representative may reasonably request.

5. Covenants of the Company and the Guarantor. In further consideration of the agreements of the Initial Purchaser
herein contained, each of the Company and the Guarantor covenants with the Initial Purchaser as follows that:

(a) The Company and the Guarantor shall furnish the Representative, without charge, prior to 10:00 a.m. New York
City time on the second Business Day next succeeding the date of this Agreement and during the period mentioned in Section 5(c)
below, as many copies of the Offering Circular, any documents incorporated by reference therein and any supplements and
amendments thereto as the Representative may reasonably request.

(b) The Company and the Guarantor shall not amend or supplement the Offering Circular without the prior written
consent of the Representative, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed and the Company and the Guarantor shall not file
any document under the Exchange Act that is incorporated by reference in the Offering Circular unless, prior to such proposed filing,
they have furnished the Representative with a copy of such document for review by the Representative and the Representative has not
reasonably objected to the filing of such document. The Company or the Guarantor, as the case may be, shall promptly advise the
Representative when any document filed under the Exchange Act that is incorporated by reference in the Offering Circular shall have
been filed with the Commission.

(c) If, at any time prior to the completion of the sale of the Securities by the Initial Purchaser (as determined by the
Representative), any event shall occur or condition exist as a result of which it is necessary to amend or supplement the Offering
Circular in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances when the Offering Circular is delivered to a purchaser,
not misleading, or if, in the opinion of counsel for the Initial Purchaser, it is necessary to amend or supplement the Offering Circular
to comply with applicable law, forthwith to notify the Representative of such event or condition and prepare and furnish, at its own
expense, to the Initial Purchaser and such other persons as the Initial Purchaser may reasonably request, either amendments or
supplements to the Offering Circular (in such quantities as the Initial Purchaser may reasonably request) so that the statements in the
Offering Circular as so amended or supplemented will not, in light of the circumstances when the Offering Circular is delivered to a
purchaser, be misleading or so that the Offering Circular, as amended or supplemented, will comply with law.
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(d) The Company and Guarantor shall endeavor to qualify the Securities for offer and sale under the securities or Blue
Sky laws of such jurisdictions as the Representative shall reasonably request and promptly advise the Initial Purchaser of the receipt
by the Company or the Guarantor of any notification with respect to the suspension of the qualification of the Securities for sale in
any jurisdiction or the initiation or threatening-of any proceeding for such purpose.

(e) The Company and Guarantor shall not, and shall not permit any of their Affiliates to, resell any Securities that have
been acquired by any of them, except, in the case of a Controlled Affiliate, until the earlier of (i) the consummation of the Registered
Exchange Offer and (ii) the declaration of effectiveness of a Shelf Registration Statement pursuant to the Registration Rights
Agreement.

(f) Neither the Company, nor the Guarantor, nor any of their respective Affiliates, nor any person acting on behalf of
any of the foregoing, will, directly or indirectly, make offers or sales of any security, or solicit offers to buy any security, under
circumstances that would require the registration of the Securities under the Act.
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(g) Neither the Company, nor the Guarantor, nor any of their respective Affiliates, nor any person acting on behalf of
any of the foregoing, will engage in any form of general solicitation or general advertising (within the meaning of Regulation D) in
connection with any offer or sale of the Securities in the United States.

(h) So long as any of the Securities are �restricted securities� within the meaning of Rule 144(a)(3) under the Act, each
of the Company and the Guarantor will, during any period in which it is not subject to and in compliance with Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Exchange Act or it is not exempt from such reporting requirements pursuant to and in compliance with Rule 12g3-2(b) under the
Exchange Act, to provide to each holder of such restricted securities and to each prospective purchaser (as designated by such holder)
of such restricted securities, upon the request of such holder or prospective purchaser, any information required to be provided by
Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Act. This covenant is intended to be for the benefit of the holders, and the prospective purchaser
designated by such holders, from time to time of such restricted securities.

(i) Neither the Company, nor the Guarantor, nor any of their respective Affiliates, nor any person acting on behalf of
any of the foregoing, will engage in any directed selling efforts with respect to the Securities, and each of them will comply with the
offering restrictions requirement of Regulation S. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by Regulation S.

(j) To cooperate with the Representative and use its best efforts to permit the Securities to be eligible for clearance
and settlement through The Depository Trust Company.

(k) During the period beginning at the Execution Time and continuing until the date which is 30 days after the Closing
Date, not to offer, sell, contract to sell or otherwise dispose of any debt securities of the Company or warrants to purchase debt

14

securities of the Company substantially similar to the Securities (other than (i) the Securities, (ii) commercial paper issued in the
ordinary course of business and (iii) borrowings under our credit facility as described in the Offering Circular), without the prior
written consent of the Representative.

(l) Not to take, directly or indirectly, any action designed to or which has constituted or which might reasonably be
expected to cause or result, under the Exchange Act or otherwise, in stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the
Company or the Guarantor to facilitate the sale or resale of the Securities.

(m) Whether or not the transactions contemplated in this Agreement are consummated or this Agreement is terminated,
to pay or cause to be paid all expenses incident to the performance of the Company�s and the Guarantor�s obligations under this
Agreement, including:

(i) the fees, disbursements and expenses of the Company�s and Guarantor�s counsel and the Company�s and
Guarantor�s accountants in connection with the registration and delivery of the Securities under the Act and all other fees or
expenses in connection with the preparation of the Offering Circular and amendments and supplements or amendments to
either of the foregoing, including all printing costs associated therewith, and the mailing and delivering of copies thereof to
the Initial Purchaser and dealers, in the quantities hereinabove specified,

(ii) all costs and expenses related to the transfer and delivery of the Securities to the Initial Purchaser,
including any transfer or other taxes payable thereon (but excluding any transfer taxes on resale of any of the Securities by
the Initial Purchaser),

(iii) the cost of printing or producing any Blue Sky or legal investment memorandum in connection with the
offer and sale of the Securities under state law and all expenses in connection with the qualification of the Securities for
offer and sale under state law as provided in Section 5(d) hereof, including filing fees and the reasonable fees and
disbursements of counsel for the Initial Purchaser in connection with such qualification and in connection with the Blue Sky
or legal investment memorandum,

(iv) the fees and disbursements of the Trustee and its counsel,

(v) any fees charged by the rating agencies for the rating of the Securities,
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(vi) the costs and expenses of the Company and the Guarantor relating to investor presentations on any �road
show� undertaken in connection with the marketing of the offering of the Securities, including, without limitation, expenses
associated with the production of road show slides and graphics, fees and expenses of any consultants engaged in connection
with the road show presentations with the prior approval of the Company, travel and lodging
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expenses of the representatives and officers of the Company and the Guarantor and any such consultants, and the cost of any
aircraft chartered in connection with the road show, and

(vii) all other costs and expenses incident to the performance of the obligations of the Company and the
Guarantor hereunder for which provision is not otherwise made in this Section. It is understood, however, that except as
provided in this Section, Section 6 entitled �Indemnity and Contribution,� and Section 8 below, the Initial Purchaser will
pay all of their costs and expenses, including fees and disbursements of their counsel, stock transfer payable on resale of the
Securities and any advertising expenses connected with any offers they may make.

6. Indemnity and Contribution.

(a) The Company and the Guarantor, jointly and severally, agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Initial Purchaser
and each person, if any, who controls the Initial Purchaser within the meaning of either Section 15 of the Act or Section 20 of the
Exchange Act from and against any and all losses, claims, damages and liabilities (including, without limitation, any legal or other
expenses reasonably incurred in connection with defending or investigating any such action or claim) caused by any untrue statement
or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in the Offering Circular or amendment or supplement thereto (if the Company
or the Guarantor shall have furnished any amendments or supplements thereto), or caused by any omission or alleged omission to
state therein a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, except insofar as
such losses, claims, damages or liabilities are caused by any such untrue statement or omission or alleged untrue statement or
omission based upon information relating to the Initial Purchaser furnished to the Company in writing by the Initial Purchaser
through the Representative expressly for use therein.

(b) The Initial Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company and the Guarantor, and each person, if
any, who controls the Company or the Guarantor, respectively, within the meaning of either Section 15 of the Act or Section 20 of
the Exchange Act to the same extent as the foregoing indemnity from the Company and the Guarantor to such Initial Purchaser, but
only with reference to information relating to such Initial Purchaser furnished to the Company in writing by such Initial Purchaser
through the Representative expressly for use in the Offering Circular or any amendments or supplements thereto.

(c) In case any proceeding (including any governmental investigation) shall be instituted involving any person in
respect of which indemnity may be sought pursuant to either Section 6(a) or 6(b), such person (the �indemnified party�) shall
promptly notify the person against whom such indemnity may be sought (the �indemnifying party�) in writing and the indemnifying
party, upon request of the indemnified party, shall retain counsel reasonably satisfactory to the indemnified party to represent the
indemnified party and any others the indemnifying party may designate in such proceeding and shall
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pay the fees and disbursements of such counsel related to such proceeding. In any such proceeding, any indemnified party shall have
the right to retain its own counsel, but the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at the expense of such indemnified party unless
(i) the indemnifying party and the indemnified party shall have mutually agreed to the retention of such counsel or (ii) the named
parties to any such proceeding (including any impleaded parties) include both the indemnifying party and the indemnified party and
representation of both parties by the same counsel would be inappropriate due to actual or potential differing interests between them.
It is understood that the indemnifying party shall not, in respect of the legal expenses of any indemnified party in connection with any
proceeding or related proceedings in the same jurisdiction, be liable for the fees and expenses of more than one separate firm (in
addition to any local counsel) for all such indemnified parties and that all such fees and expenses shall be reimbursed as they are
incurred. Such firm shall be designated in writing by the Representative, in the case of parties indemnified pursuant to Section 6(a)
above, and by the Company, in the case of parties indemnified pursuant to Section 6(b) above. The indemnifying party shall not be
liable for any settlement of any proceeding effected without its written consent (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld),
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but if settled with such consent or if there be a final judgment for the plaintiff, the indemnifying party agrees to indemnify the
indemnified party from and against any loss or liability by reason of such settlement or judgment. Notwithstanding the foregoing
sentence, if at any time an indemnified party shall have requested an indemnifying party to reimburse the indemnified party for fees
and expenses of counsel as contemplated by the second and third sentences of this paragraph, the indemnifying party agrees that it
shall be liable for any settlement of any proceeding effected without its written consent if (i) such settlement is entered into more than
30 days after receipt by such indemnifying party of the aforesaid request and (ii) such indemnifying party shall not have reimbursed
the indemnified party in accordance with such request prior to the date of such settlement. No indemnifying party shall, without the
prior written consent of the indemnified party, effect any settlement of any pending or threatened proceeding in respect of which any
indemnified party is or could have been a party and indemnity could have been sought hereunder by such indemnified party, unless
such settlement includes an unconditional release of such indemnified party from all liability on claims that are the subject matter of
such proceeding.

(d) To the extent the indemnification provided for in Section 6(a) or 6(b) is unavailable to an indemnified party or
insufficient in respect of any losses, claims, damages or liabilities referred to therein, then each indemnifying party under such
paragraph, in lieu of indemnifying such indemnified party thereunder, shall contribute to the amount paid or payable by such
indemnified party as a result of such losses, claims, damages or liabilities (i) in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative
benefits received by the Company on the one hand and the Initial Purchaser on the other hand from the offering of the Securities or
(ii) if the allocation provided by clause 6(d)(i) above is not permitted by applicable law, in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect
not only the relative benefits referred to in clause 6(d)(i) above but also the relative fault of the Company and the Guarantor on the
one hand and of the Initial Purchaser on the other hand in connection with the statements or omissions that resulted in such losses,
claims, damages or liabilities, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative benefits received by the Company
on the one hand and the Initial Purchaser on
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the other hand in connection with the offering of the Securities shall be deemed to be in the same respective proportions as the net
proceeds from the offering of such Securities (before deducting expenses) received by the Company and the total underwriting
discounts and commissions received by the Initial Purchaser bear to the aggregate public offering price of the Securities. The relative
fault of the Company and the Guarantor on the one hand and the Initial Purchaser on the other hand shall be determined by reference
to, among other things, whether the untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact or the omission or alleged omission to state a
material fact relates to information supplied by the Company or the Guarantor or by the Initial Purchaser and the parties� relative
intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent such statement or omission.

(e) The Company, the Guarantor and the Initial Purchaser agree that it would not be just or equitable if contribution
pursuant to this Section 6 were determined by pro rata allocation (even if the Initial Purchaser were treated as one entity for such
purpose) or by any other method of allocation that does not take account of the equitable considerations referred to in Section 6(d).
The amount paid or payable by an indemnified party as a result of the losses, claims, damages and liabilities referred to in the
immediately preceding paragraph shall be deemed to include, subject to the limitations set forth above, any legal or other expenses
reasonably incurred by such indemnified party in connection with investigating or defending any such action or claim.
Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section 6, no Initial Purchaser shall be required to contribute any amount in excess of the
amount by which the total price at which the Securities underwritten by it and distributed to the public were offered to the public
exceeds the amount of any damages that such Initial Purchaser has otherwise been required to pay by reason of such untrue or alleged
untrue statement or omission or alleged omission. No person guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation (within the meaning of
Section 11(f) of the Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any person who was not guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation.
The remedies provided for in this Section 6 are not exclusive and shall not limit any rights or remedies which may otherwise be
available to any indemnified party at law or in equity.

(f) The indemnity and contribution provisions contained in this Section 6 and the representations, warranties and other
statements of the Company and the Guarantor contained in this Agreement shall remain operative and in full force and effect
regardless of (i) any termination of this Agreement, (ii) any investigation made by or on behalf of any Initial Purchaser or any person
controlling any Initial Purchaser or the Company or the Guarantor, or their respective officers or directors or any person controlling
the Company or the Guarantor, respectively, and (iii) acceptance of and payment for any of the Securities.

7. Termination. This Agreement shall be subject to termination by notice given by the Representative to the
Company, if (a) after the execution and delivery of the Purchase Agreement and prior to the Closing Date (i) trading generally shall have been
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suspended or materially limited on or by, as the case may be, any of the New York Stock Exchange, the American Stock Exchange, the
National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., the Chicago Board of Options Exchange, the Chicago Mercantile Exchange or the Chicago
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Board of Trade, (ii) trading of any securities of the Company or the Guarantor shall have been suspended on any exchange or in any over-the-
counter market, (iii) a general moratorium on commercial banking activities in New York shall have been declared by either federal or New
York State authorities or (iv) there shall have occurred any outbreak or escalation of hostilities or any change in financial markets or any
calamity or crisis that, in the judgment of the Representative, is material and adverse and (b) in the case of any of the events specified in
clauses 7(a)(i) through 7(a)(iv), such event, individually or together with any other such event, makes it, in the judgment of the
Representative, impracticable or inadvisable to proceed with the offering, sale or delivery of the Securities on the terms and in the manner
contemplated in the Offering Circular.

8. Defaulting Initial Purchaser.

[Reserved].

If this Agreement shall be terminated by the Initial Purchaser because of any failure or refusal on the part of the Company or
the Guarantor to comply with the terms or to fulfill any of the conditions of this Agreement, or if for any reason the Company or the Guarantor
shall be unable to perform its obligations under this Agreement, the Company and the Guarantor will reimburse the Initial Purchaser for all
out-of-pocket expenses (including the fees and disbursements of their counsel) reasonably incurred by such Initial Purchaser in connection
with this Agreement or the offering contemplated hereunder.

9. Definitions. The terms which follow, when used in this Agreement, shall have the meanings indicated.

�Affiliate� shall have the meaning specified in Rule 501(b) of Regulation D.

�Business Day� shall mean any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a legal holiday or a day on which banking
institutions or trust companies are authorized or obligated by law to close in The City of New York.

�Commission� shall mean the Securities and Exchange Commission.

�Controlled Affiliate� means any person or entity that is directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
controlled by the Company, the Guarantor, or both.

�Exchange Act� shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations of the
Commission promulgated thereunder.

�Execution Time� shall mean, the date and time that this Agreement is executed and delivered by the parties hereto.

�Gaming Laws� means any foreign, federal, state or local law and the rules and regulations thereunder and any similar laws
and regulations governing any aspect of legalized gambling in any foreign, federal, state or local jurisdiction in which the Company or the
Guarantor or any of their respective subsidiaries conducts business.
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�Investment Company Act� shall mean the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, and the rules and regulations of
the Commission promulgated thereunder.
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�Registered Exchange Offer� shall have the meaning ascribed thereto by the Registration Rights Agreement.

�Regulation D� shall mean Regulation D under the Act.

�Regulation S� shall mean Regulation S under the Act.

�Securities Act� shall mean the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations of the Commission
promulgated thereunder.

�Shelf Registration Statement� shall have the meaning ascribed thereto by the Registration Rights Agreement.

�Trust Indenture Act� shall mean the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, and the rules and regulations of the
Commission promulgated thereunder.

10. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be an original, with
the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument.

11. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
New York applicable to contracts made and to be performed within the State of New York.

12. Headings. The headings of the sections of this Agreement have been inserted for convenience of reference only and
shall not be deemed a part of this Agreement.
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EXHIBIT A

Selling Restrictions for Offers and
Sales outside the United States

(1)(a) The Securities have not been and will not be registered under the Act and may not be offered or sold within the
United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except in accordance with Regulation S under the Act or pursuant to an
exemption from the registration requirements of the Act. Each Initial Purchaser represents and agrees that, except as otherwise permitted by
Section 3(a)(i) of the Agreement to which this is an exhibit, it has offered and sold the Securities, and will offer and sell the Securities, (i) as
part of their distribution at any time; and (ii) otherwise until 40 days after the later of the commencement of the offering and the Closing Date,
only in accordance with Rule 903 of Regulation S under the Act. Accordingly, each Initial Purchaser represents and agrees that neither it, nor
any of its Affiliates nor any person acting on its or their behalf has engaged or will engage in any directed selling efforts with respect to the
Securities, and that it and they have complied and will comply with the offering restrictions requirement of Regulation S. Each Initial
Purchaser agrees that, at or prior to the confirmation of sale of Securities (other than a sale of Securities pursuant to Section 3(a)(i) of the
Agreement to which this is an exhibit), it shall have sent to each distributor, dealer or person receiving a selling concession, fee or other
remuneration that purchases Securities from it during the distribution compliance period a confirmation or notice to substantially the following
effect:

�The Securities covered hereby have not been registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933 (the �Securities Act�) and
may not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons (i) as part of their
distribution at any time or (ii) otherwise until 40 days after the later of the commencement of the offering and February 9,
2005, except in either case in accordance with Regulation S or Rule 144A under the Act. Terms used above have the
meanings given to them by Regulation S.�
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(b) Each Initial Purchaser also represents and agrees that it has not entered and will not enter into any contractual
arrangement with any distributor with respect to the distribution of the Securities, except with its Affiliates or with the prior written
consent of the Company.

(c) Terms used in this section have the meanings given to them by Regulation S.

(2) Each Initial Purchaser represents, warrants and agrees that:

(a) it has not offered or sold and, prior to the expiry of a period of six months from the Closing Date, will not offer or sell
any Securities to persons in the United Kingdom except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding,
managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses or otherwise in circumstances which
have not resulted and will not result in an

A-1

offer to the public in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995;

(b) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated any
invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets
Act 2000 (the �FSMA�)) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of any Securities in circumstances in which section 21(1)
of the FSMA does not apply to the Company or the Guarantor; and

(c) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done by it in
relation to the Securities in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

A-2

HARRAH��S OPERATING COMPANY, INC.
HARRAH��S ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

$250,000,000

Senior Floating Rate Notes due 2008

Payment of Principal, Interest and
Premium, if any, Guaranteed by

Harrah��s Entertainment, Inc.

PURCHASE AGREEMENT

New York, New York
February 4, 2004

Goldman, Sachs & Co.
85 Broad Street
New York, NY 10004

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


Harrah�s Operating Company, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the �Company�), proposes to issue and sell to the party named
below (the �Initial Purchaser�) $250,000,000 principal amount of its Senior Floating Rate Notes due 2008 (the �Notes�) payment of principal,
interest and premium, if any, in respect of which notes are to benefit from the guarantee (the �Guarantee�) of Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (the �Guarantor�) (such notes, together with such guarantee, the �Securities�). The Securities are to be issued under an
indenture (the �Indenture�) to be dated as of February 9, 2005, among the Company, the Guarantor and U.S. Bank National Association, as
trustee (the �Trustee�). The Securities will have the benefit of a registration rights agreement (the �Registration Rights Agreement�) to be
dated as of February 9, 2005, among the Company, the Guarantor and the Initial Purchaser, pursuant to which the Company and the Guarantor
have agreed to register the Securities under the Securities Act, subject to the terms and conditions therein specified. The sale of the Securities
to the Initial Purchaser will be made without registration of the Securities under the Securities Act in reliance upon exemptions from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act.

In connection with the sale of the Securities, the Company and the Guarantor have prepared an offering Circular dated
February 4, 2005 (including any information incorporated by reference therein, the �Offering Circular�). The Offering Circular sets forth
certain information concerning the Company, the Guarantor and the Securities. Unless stated to the contrary, all references herein to the
Offering Circular are to the Offering Circular at the Execution Time and are not meant to include any amendment or supplement, or any
information incorporated by reference therein, subsequent to the Execution Time. The Company hereby confirms that it has

A-1

authorized the use of the Offering Circular, and any amendment or supplement thereto, in connection with the offer and sale of the Securities
by the Initial Purchaser.

The term �Representative� as used herein shall mean you as the Initial Purchaser. The use of the neuter in this Agreement
shall include the feminine and masculine wherever appropriate. Certain terms used herein are defined in Section 9 of Annex I hereto. Unless
stated to the contrary, any references herein to the terms �amend,� �amendment� or �supplement� with respect to the Offering Circular shall
be deemed to refer to and include any information filed under the Exchange Act subsequent to the Execution Time that is incorporated by
reference therein.

Subject to the terms and conditions, and in reliance upon the representations and warranties, set forth or incorporated by
reference herein, the Company hereby agrees to sell to the Initial Purchaser, and the Initial Purchaser agrees to purchase from the Company,
$250,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Securities at a purchase price of 99.75% of the principal amount of Securities, plus accrued
interest, if any, from February 9, 2005 to the date of payment and delivery.

The Initial Purchaser will pay for the Securities upon delivery thereof at the offices of Cleary Gottlieb Steen & Hamilton
LLP, One Liberty Plaza, New York, New York at 10:00 a.m. (New York City time) on February 9, 2005, or at such other time, not later than
5:00 p.m. (New York City time) on February 9, 2005, as shall be designated by the Representative. The time and date of such payment and
delivery are hereinafter referred to as the Closing Date.

The Securities shall have the terms set forth in the Offering Circular dated February 4, 2005, including the following:

Terms of Securities

Maturity Date: February 8, 2008

Interest Rate: 3-month LIBOR + .60%

Optional Redemption: Company call on or after February 8, 2007

Interest Payment Dates: Each February 8, May 8, August 8 and November 8, commencing May 8, 2005
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Closing Date: February 9, 2005

All provisions contained in the Annex I hereto, entitled �Purchase Agreement General Provisions,� are herein incorporated
by reference in their entirety and shall be deemed to be a part of this Agreement to the same extent as if such provisions had been set forth in
full herein, except that if any term defined in such document is otherwise defined herein, the definition set forth herein shall control.

A-2

If the foregoing is in accordance with your understanding of our agreement, please sign and return to us the enclosed
duplicate hereof, whereupon this Agreement and your acceptance shall represent a binding agreement between the Company and the
Guarantor and the Initial Purchaser.

Very truly yours,

HARRAH�S OPERATING COMPANY, INC.

By:
Name: Jonathan S. Halkyard
Title: Vice President and Treasurer

HARRAH�S ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

By:
Name: Jonathan S. Halkyard
Title: Vice President and Treasurer

A-3

The foregoing Agreement is hereby
confirmed and accepted as of the
date first above written.

Goldman, Sachs & Co.

By:
Name:
Title:

A-4
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Exhibit 31.1

I, Gary W. Loveman, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant�s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant�s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant�s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant�s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant�s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant�s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant�s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant�s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant�s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant�s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant�s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 6, 2005 By: /s/ GARY W. LOVEMAN
Gary W. Loveman
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and President
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Exhibit 31.2

I, Charles L. Atwood, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Harrah�s Entertainment, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant�s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant�s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant�s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant�s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant�s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant�s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant�s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant�s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant�s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant�s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant�s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 6, 2005 By: /s/ CHARLES L. ATWOOD
Charles L. Atwood
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as created by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned officer of Harrah�s
Entertainment, Inc. (the �Company�), hereby certifies, to such officer�s knowledge, that:

(i) the accompanying Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2005 (the �Report�)
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

Dated: May 6, 2005 /s/ GARY W. LOVEMAN
Gary W. Loveman
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and President

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely to accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, and is not being filed for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the
Company, whether made before or after the date hereof, regardless of any general incorporation language in such filing.

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


Exhibit 32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as created by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned officer of Harrah�s
Entertainment, Inc. (the �Company�), hereby certifies, to such officer�s knowledge, that:

(i) the accompanying Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2005 (the �Report�)
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

Dated: May 6, 2005 /s/ CHARLES L. ATWOOD
Charles L. Atwood
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely to accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, and is not being filed for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the
Company, whether made before or after the date hereof, regardless of any general incorporation language in such filing.
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	(i)            such exchange or transfer is effected pursuant to the Registered Exchange Offer in accordance with the Registration Rights Agreement and the holder of the beneficial interest to be transferred, in the case of an exchange, or the transferee, in the case of a transfer, certifies in the applicable Letter of Transmittal that it is not (1) a broker-dealer, (2) a Person participating in the distribution of the New Notes or (3) a Person who is an affiliate (as defined in Rule 144) of the Company;
	 
	(ii)           such transfer is effected pursuant to the Shelf Registration Statement in accordance with the Registration Rights Agreement;
	 
	(iii)          such transfer is effected by a Broker-Dealer pursuant to the Exchange Offer Registration Statement in accordance with the Registration Rights Agreement; or
	 
	(iv)          the Registrar receives a certificate and/or any other information reasonably required by and satisfactory to it in order to ensure compliance with the Securities Act and, if the Registrar so requests or if the Applicable Procedures so require, an Opinion of Counsel in form reasonably acceptable to the Registrar to the effect that such exchange or transfer is in compliance with the Securities Act and that the restrictions on transfer contained herein and in the Private Placement Legend are no longer required in order to maintain compliance with the Securities Act.
	 


	2.14.3      Transfer or Exchange of Beneficial Interests for Certificated Notes.
	 
	(a)           Beneficial Interests in Restricted Global Notes to Restricted Certificated Notes.  If any holder of a beneficial interest in a Restricted Global Note proposes to exchange such beneficial interest for a Restricted Certificated Note or to transfer such beneficial interest to a Person who takes delivery thereof in the form of a Restricted Certificated Note, then, upon receipt by the Registrar of an Opinion of Counsel and/or a certificate and/or any other information reasonably required by and satisfactory to it in order to ensure compliance with the Securities Act, the Trustee shall cause the aggregate principal amount of the applicable Global Note to be reduced accordingly pursuant to Section 2.14.6 hereof, and the Company shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate
	and deliver to the Person designated in the instructions a Certificated Note in the appropriate principal amount.  Any Certificated Note issued in exchange for a beneficial interest in a Restricted Global Note pursuant to this Section 2.14.3 shall be registered in such name or names and in such authorized denomination or denominations as the holder of such beneficial interest shall instruct the Registrar through instructions from the Depositary and the participant or indirect participant in the Depositary.  The Trustee shall deliver such Certificated Notes to the Persons in whose names such Notes are so registered.  Any Certificated Note issued in exchange for a beneficial interest in a Restricted Global Note pursuant to this Section 2.14.3(a) shall bear the Private Placement Legend and shall be subject to all restrictions on transfer contained therein.
	 
	(b)           Beneficial Interests in Restricted Global Notes to Unrestricted Certificated Notes.  A holder of a beneficial interest in a Restricted Global Note may exchange such beneficial interest for an Unrestricted Certificated Note or may transfer such beneficial interest to a Person who takes delivery thereof in the form of an Unrestricted Certificated Note only if:
	 
	(i)            such exchange or transfer is effected pursuant to the Registered Exchange Offer in accordance with the Registration Rights Agreement and the holder of such beneficial interest, in the case of an exchange, or the transferee, in the case of a transfer, certifies in the applicable Letter of Transmittal that it is not (1) a broker-dealer, (2) a Person participating in the distribution of the New Notes or (3) a Person who is an affiliate (as defined in Rule 144) of the Company;
	 
	(ii)           such transfer is effected pursuant to the Shelf Registration Statement in accordance with the Registration Rights Agreement;
	 
	(iii)          such transfer is effected by a Broker-Dealer pursuant to the Exchange Offer Registration Statement in accordance with the Registration Rights Agreement; or
	 
	(iv)          the Registrar receives an Opinion of Counsel and/or a certificate and/or any other information reasonably required by and satisfactory to it in order to maintain compliance with the Securities Act and to ensure that the restrictions on transfer contained herein and in the Private Placement Legend are no longer required.
	 

	(c)           Beneficial Interests in Unrestricted Global Notes to Unrestricted Certificated Notes.  If any holder of a beneficial interest in an Unrestricted Global Note proposes to exchange such beneficial interest for a Certificated Note or to transfer such beneficial interest to a Person who takes delivery thereof in the form of a Certificated Note, then, upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Section 2.14.2(b) hereof, the Trustee shall cause the aggregate principal amount of the applicable Global Note to be reduced accordingly pursuant to Section 2.14.6 hereof, and the Company shall execute
	and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to the Person designated in the instructions a Certificated Note in the appropriate principal amount.  Any Certificated Note issued in exchange for a beneficial interest pursuant to this Section 2.14.3(c) shall be registered in such name or names and in such authorized denomination or denominations as the holder of such beneficial interest shall instruct the Registrar through instructions from the Depositary and the participant or indirect participant in the Depositary.  The Trustee shall deliver such Certificated Notes to the Persons in whose names such Notes are so registered.  Any Certificated Note issued in exchange for a beneficial interest pursuant to this Section 2.14.3(c) shall not bear the Private Placement Legend.
	 

	2.14.4      Registered Exchange Offer.  Upon the occurrence of the Registered Exchange Offer in accordance with the Registration Rights Agreement, the Company shall issue and, upon receipt of a Company Order in accordance with Section 2.2, the Trustee shall authenticate (i) one or more Unrestricted Global Notes in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of the beneficial interests in the Restricted Global Notes tendered for acceptance by Persons that certify in the applicable letters of transmittal that (x) they are not broker-dealers, (y) they are not participating in a distribution of the New Notes and (z) they are not affiliates (as defined in Rule 144) of the Company, and accepted for exchange in the Registered Exchange Offer and (ii) Certificated Notes in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of the Restricted Certificated Notes accepted for exchange in the Registered Exchange Offer.  Concurrently with the issuance of such Notes, the Trustee shall cause the aggregate principal amount of the applicable Restricted Global Notes to be reduced accordingly, and the Company shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to the Persons designated by the Holders of Certificated Notes so accepted Unrestricted Certificated Notes in the appropriate principal amount.
	 
	2.14.5      Legends.  The following legends shall appear on the face of all Global Notes and Certificated Notes issued under this Indenture unless specifically stated otherwise in the applicable provisions of this Indenture.
	 
	(a)           Private Placement Legend.  Except as permitted by subparagraph (b) below, each Global Note and each Certificated Note (and all Notes issued in exchange therefor or substitution thereof) shall bear the legend in substantially the following form:
	 
	�THE NOTES EVIDENCED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 (THE �SECURITIES ACT�) AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT (A) BY THE INITIAL INVESTOR (1) TO A PERSON WHO THE SELLER REASONABLY BELIEVES IS A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER WITHIN THE MEANING OF RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT PURCHASING FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER IN A TRANSACTION MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 144A, (2) IN AN OFFSHORE TRANSACTION COMPLYING WITH RULE 903
	OR RULE 904 OF REGULATIONS UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR (3) PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT PROVIDED BY RULE 144 THEREUNDER (IF AVAILABLE) OR (4) PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND (B) BY SUBSEQUENT INVESTORS, AS SET FORTH IN (A) ABOVE, AND, IN ADDITION, TO AN INSTITUTIONAL INVESTOR THAT IS AN ACCREDITED INVESTOR WITHIN THE MEANING OF RULE 501 OF REGULATION D UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND, IN THE CASE OF EACH OF CLAUSES (A) AND (B), IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS OF THE STATES OF THE UNITED STATES AND OTHER JURISDICTIONS.  IN CONNECTION WITH ANY TRANSFER OF THIS NOTE WITHIN TWO YEARS AFTER THE ORIGINAL ISSUANCE OF THIS NOTE, THE HOLDER MUST, PRIOR TO SUCH TRANSFER, FURNISH TO THE TRUSTEE AND THE ISSUER SUCH CERTIFICATIONS, LEGAL OPINIONS OR OTHER INFORMATION AS MAY BE REQUIRED PURSUANT TO THE INDENTURE TO CONFIRM THAT SUCH TRANSFER IS BEING MADE PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT.�
	 
	(b)           Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Global Note or Certificated Note issued pursuant to Sections 2.14.2(d), 2.14.3(b), 2.14.3(c), 2.14.4 (and all Notes issued in exchange therefor or substitution thereof) shall not bear the Private Placement Legend.
	 
	(c)           Global Notes Legend.  Each Global Note shall bear the Global Notes Legend in addition to the Private Placement Legend.
	 

	2.14.6      Cancellation and/or Adjustment of Global Notes.  At such time as all beneficial interests in a particular Global Note have been exchanged for Certificated Notes or a particular Global Note has been redeemed, repurchased or canceled in whole and not in part, each such Global Note shall be returned to or retained and canceled by the Trustee in accordance with Section 2.11 hereof.  At any time prior to such cancellation, if any beneficial interest in a Global Note is exchanged for or transferred to a Person who will take delivery thereof in the form of a beneficial interest in another Global Note or for Certificated Notes, the principal amount of Notes represented by such Global Note shall be reduced accordingly and an endorsement shall be made on such Global Note by the Trustee or by the Depositary at the direction of the Trustee to reflect such reduction; and if the beneficial interest is being exchanged for or transferred to a Person who will take delivery thereof in the form of a beneficial interest in another Global Note, such other Global Note shall be increased accordingly and an endorsement shall be made on such Global Note by the Trustee or by the Depositary at the direction of the Trustee to reflect such increase.
	2.14.7      General Provisions Relating to Transfers and Exchanges.
	(a)           To permit registrations of transfers and exchanges, the Company shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate Global Notes and Certificated Notes upon receipt of a Company Order or at the Registrar�s request.
	 
	(b)           No service charge shall be made to a Holder of a beneficial interest in a Global Note or to a Holder of a Certificated Note for any registration of transfer or exchange, but the Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any transfer tax or similar governmental charge payable in connection therewith (other than any such transfer taxes or similar governmental charge payable upon exchange or transfer pursuant to Sections 2.10, 3.7, and 9.6 hereof).
	 
	(c)           The Registrar shall not be required to register the transfer of or exchange any Note selected for redemption in whole or in part, except the unredeemed portion of any Note being redeemed in part.
	 
	(d)           All Global Notes and Certificated Notes issued upon any registration of transfer or exchange of Global Notes or Certificated Notes shall be the valid obligations of the Company, evidencing the same debt, and entitled to the same benefits under this Indenture, as the Global Notes or Certificated Notes surrendered upon such registration of transfer or exchange.
	 
	(e)           Neither the Company nor the Registrar shall be required (A) to issue, to register the transfer of or to exchange any Notes during a period beginning at the opening of business 15 days before the day of any selection of Notes for redemption under Section 3.2 hereof and ending at the close of business on the day of selection, (B) to register the transfer of or to exchange any Note so selected for redemption in whole or in part, except the unredeemed portion of any Note being redeemed in part or (C) to register the transfer of or to exchange a Note between a record date and the next succeeding Interest Payment Date.
	 
	(f)            Prior to due presentment for the registration of a transfer of any Note, the Trustee, any Agent and the Company may deem and treat the Person in whose name any Note is registered as the absolute owner of such Note for the purpose of receiving payment of principal of and interest on such Notes and for all other purposes, and none of the Trustee, any Agent or the Company shall be affected by notice to the contrary.
	 
	(g)           The Trustee shall authenticate Global Notes and Certificated Notes in accordance with the provisions of Section 2.2 hereof.
	 
	(h)           All certifications, certificates and Opinions of Counsel required to be submitted to the Registrar pursuant to this Section 2.14 to effect a registration of transfer or exchange may be submitted by facsimile.


	Section 2.15           Payments.
	 
	Section 2.16           CUSIP Numbers.
	 
	Section 2.17           Mandatory Disposition of Notes Pursuant to Gaming Laws.
	 
	Section 2.18           Additional Notes.
	 
	Section 2.19           Additional Interest Under Registration Rights Agreements
	 

	ARTICLE III. REDEMPTION
	 
	Section 3.1             Optional Redemption.
	 
	Section 3.2             Notice to Trustee.
	 
	Section 3.3             Selection of Notes to be Redeemed.
	 
	Section 3.4             Notice of Redemption.
	 
	(a)           the redemption date;
	 
	(b)           the redemption price;
	 
	(c)           if any Note is being redeemed in part, the portion of the principal amount of such Note to be redeemed and that after the Redemption Date upon surrender of such Note a new Note or Notes in principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion will be issued upon cancellation of the original Notes;
	 
	(d)           the name and address of the Paying Agent;
	 
	(e)           that Notes called for redemption must be surrendered to the Paying Agent to collect the redemption price;
	 
	(f)            that interest on Notes called for redemption ceases to accrue on and after the redemption date; and
	 
	(g)           that no representation is made as to the correctness or accuracy of the CUSIP number, if any, listed in such notice or printed on the Notes.
	 

	Section 3.5             Effect of Notice of Redemption.
	 
	Section 3.6             Deposit of Redemption Price.
	 
	Section 3.7             Notes Redeemed in Part.
	 

	ARTICLE IV. COVENANTS
	 
	Section 4.1             Payment of Principal and Interest.
	 
	Section 4.2             SEC Reports.
	 
	Section 4.3             Compliance Certificate.
	 
	Section 4.4             Stay, Extension and Usury Laws.
	 
	Section 4.5             Corporate Existence.
	 
	Section 4.6             Taxes.
	 
	Section 4.7             Limitation on Liens.
	 
	Section 4.8             Limitation on Sale and Lease-Back Transactions.
	 

	ARTICLE V. SUCCESSORS
	 
	Section 5.1             When Company May Merge, Etc.
	 
	(a)           either the Company shall be the continuing person, or the Person (if other than the Company) formed by such consolidation or into or with which the Company is merged or to which the assets of the Company are transferred shall be a corporation organized and validly existing under the laws of the United States or any State thereof or the District of Columbia and shall expressly assume, by an indenture supplemental hereto, executed and delivered to the Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, all the obligations of the Company on the Notes and under this Indenture;
	 
	(b)           immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no Event of Default, and no event or condition which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event of Default, shall have occurred and be continuing; and
	 
	(c)           the Company has delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each stating that such consolidation, merger, sale, conveyance or lease and such supplemental indenture comply with this Section 5.1 and that all conditions precedent herein provided for relating to such transaction have been complied with.
	 

	Section 5.2             Successor Corporation Substituted.
	 

	ARTICLE VI. DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES
	 
	Section 6.1             Events of Default.
	 
	(a)           default in the payment of any interest on any Note when it becomes due and payable, and continuance of such default for a period of 30 days (unless the entire amount of such payment is deposited by the Company with the Trustee or with a Paying Agent prior to the expiration of such period of 30 days); or
	 
	(b)           default in the payment of the principal of any Note at its Maturity, upon redemption or otherwise; or
	 
	(c)           default in the performance or breach of any covenant or warranty of the Company or the Guarantor in this Indenture, which default continues uncured for a period of 60 days after there has been given, by registered or certified mail, to the Company or the Guarantor by the Trustee or to the Company, the Guarantor and the Trustee by the Holders of at least 25% in principal amount of the outstanding Notes (including Additional Notes, if any) a written notice specifying such default or breach and requiring it to be remedied and stating that such notice is a �Notice of Default� hereunder; or
	 
	(d)           the acceleration of the maturity of any Indebtedness of the Company (other than Non-recourse Indebtedness), at any one time, in an amount in excess of the greater of (i) $25 million and (ii) 5% of Consolidated Net Tangible Assets, if such acceleration is not annulled within 30 days after written notice to the Company by the Trustee and the Holders of at least 25% in principal amount of the outstanding Notes (including Additional Notes, if any); or
	(e)           the Company or any of its Significant Subsidiaries pursuant to or within the meaning of any Bankruptcy Law:
	 
	(i)            commences a voluntary case,
	 
	(ii)           consents to the entry of an order for relief against it in an involuntary case,
	 
	(iii)          consents to the appointment of a Custodian of it or for all or substantially all of its property,
	 
	(iv)          makes a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or
	 
	(v)           generally is not paying its debts as the same become due; or
	 

	(f)            a court of competent jurisdiction enters an order or decree under any Bankruptcy Law that:
	 
	(i)            is for relief against the Company or any of its Significant Subsidiaries in an involuntary case,
	 
	(ii)           appoints a Custodian of the Company or any of its Significant Subsidiaries or for all or substantially all of its property, or
	 
	(iii)          orders the liquidation of the Company or any of its Significant Subsidiaries, and the order or decree remains unstayed and in effect for 60 consecutive days.
	 


	Section 6.2             Acceleration of Maturity; Rescission and Annulment.
	 
	(a)           the Company has paid or deposited with the Trustee a sum sufficient to pay
	 
	(i)            all overdue interest, if any, on all Notes,
	 
	(ii)           the principal of any Notes which have become due otherwise than by such declaration of acceleration and interest thereon,
	 
	(iii)          to the extent that payment of such interest is lawful, interest upon any overdue principal and overdue interest at the rate or rates prescribed therefor in such Notes, and
	 
	(iv)          all sums paid or advanced by the Trustee hereunder and the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances of the Trustee, its agents and counsel; and
	 

	(b)           all Events of Default with respect to the Notes, other than the non-payment of the principal of the Notes which have become due solely by such declaration of acceleration, have been cured or waived as provided in Section 6.13.
	 

	Section 6.3             Collection of Indebtedness and Suits for Enforcement by Trustee.
	 
	(a)           default is made in the payment of any interest on any Note when such interest becomes due and payable and such default continues for a period of 30 days, or
	 
	(b)           default is made in the payment of principal of any Note at the Maturity thereof,
	 

	Section 6.4             Trustee May File Proofs of Claim.
	 
	(a)           to file and prove a claim for the whole amount of principal and interest owing and unpaid in respect of the Notes and to file such other papers or documents as may be necessary or advisable in order to have the claims of the Trustee (including any claim for the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances of the Trustee, its agents and counsel) and of the Holders allowed in such judicial proceeding, and
	 
	(b)           to collect and receive any moneys or other property payable or deliverable on any such claims and to distribute the same,
	 

	Section 6.5             Trustee May Enforce Claims Without Possession of Notes.
	 
	Section 6.6             Application of Money Collected.
	 
	Section 6.7             Limitation on Suits.
	 
	(a)           such Holder has previously given written notice to the Trustee of a continuing Event of Default with respect to the Notes;
	 
	(b)           the Holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of the outstanding Notes shall have made written request to the Trustee to institute proceedings in respect of such Event of Default in its own name as Trustee hereunder;
	(c)           such Holder or Holders have offered to the Trustee reasonable indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in compliance with such request;
	 
	(d)           the Trustee for 60 days after its receipt of such notice, request and offer of indemnity has failed to institute any such proceeding; and
	 
	(e)           no direction inconsistent with such written request has been given to the Trustee during such 60-day period by the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding Notes;
	 

	Section 6.8             Unconditional Right of Holders to Receive Principal and Interest.
	 
	Section 6.9             Restoration of Rights and Remedies.
	 
	Section 6.10           Rights and Remedies Cumulative.
	 
	Section 6.11           Delay or Omission Not Waiver.
	 
	Section 6.12           Control by Holders.
	 
	(a)           such direction shall not be in conflict with any rule of law or with this Indenture,
	 
	(b)           the Trustee may take any other action deemed proper by the Trustee which is not inconsistent with such direction, and
	 
	(c)           subject to the provisions of Section 6.1, the Trustee shall have the right to decline to follow any such direction if the Trustee in good faith shall, by a Responsible Officer of the Trustee, determine that the proceeding so directed would involve the Trustee in personal liability.
	 

	Section 6.13           Waiver of Past Defaults.
	 
	Section 6.14           Undertaking for Costs.
	 

	ARTICLE VII. TRUSTEE
	 
	Section 7.1             Duties of Trustee.
	 
	(a)           If an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Trustee shall exercise the rights and powers vested in it by this Indenture and use the same degree of care and skill in its exercise as a prudent Person would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of such Person�s own affairs.
	 
	(b)           Except during the continuance of an Event of Default:
	 
	(i)            The Trustee need perform only those duties that are specifically set forth in this Indenture and no others.
	 
	(ii)           In the absence of bad faith on its part, the Trustee may conclusively rely, as to the truth of the statements and the correctness of the opinions expressed therein, upon Officers� Certificates or Opinions of Counsel furnished to the Trustee and conforming to the requirements of this Indenture; however, in the case of any such Officers� Certificates or Opinions of Counsel which by any provisions hereof are specifically required to be furnished to the Trustee, the Trustee shall examine such Officers� Certificates and Opinions of Counsel to determine whether or not they conform to the requirements of this Indenture.
	 

	(c)           The Trustee may not be relieved from liability for its own negligent action, its own negligent failure to act or its own willful misconduct, except that:
	 
	(i)            This paragraph does not limit the effect of paragraph (b) of this Section.
	 
	(ii)           The Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a Responsible Officer, unless it is proved that the Trustee was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts.
	 
	(iii)          The Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken, suffered or omitted to be taken by it with respect to the Notes in good faith in accordance with the direction of the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding Notes relating to the time, method and
	place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred upon the Trustee, under this Indenture with respect to the Notes.
	 

	(d)           Every provision of this Indenture that in any way relates to the Trustee is subject to paragraph (a), (b) and (c) of this Section.
	 
	(e)           The Trustee may refuse to perform any duty or exercise any right or power unless it receives indemnity satisfactory to it against any loss, liability or expense.
	 
	(f)            The Trustee shall not be liable for interest on any money received by it except as the Trustee may agree in writing with the Company.  Money held in trust by the Trustee need not be segregated from other funds except to the extent required by law.
	 
	(g)           No provision of this Indenture shall require the Trustee to risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance of any of its duties, or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers, if it shall have reasonable grounds for believing that repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity against such risk is not reasonably assured to it.
	 
	(h)           The Paying Agent, the Registrar and any authenticating agent shall be entitled to the protections, immunities and standard of care as are set forth in paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) of this Section with respect to the Trustee.
	 

	Section 7.2             Rights of Trustee.
	 
	(a)           The Trustee may rely on and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon any document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper Person.  The Trustee need not investigate any fact or matter stated in the document.
	 
	(b)           Before the Trustee acts or refrains from acting, it may require an Officers� Certificate or an Opinion of Counsel.  The Trustee shall not be liable for any action it takes or omits to take in good faith in reliance on such Officers� Certificate or Opinion of Counsel.
	 
	(c)           The Trustee may act through agents and shall not be responsible for the misconduct or negligence of any agent appointed with due care.  No Depositary shall be deemed an agent of the Trustee and the Trustee shall not be responsible for any act or omission by any Depositary.
	 
	(d)           The Trustee shall not be liable for any action it takes or omits to take in good faith which it believes to be authorized or within its rights or powers.
	 
	(e)           The Trustee may consult with counsel and the advice of such counsel or any Opinion of Counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection in respect
	of any action taken, suffered or omitted by it hereunder in good faith and in reliance thereon.
	 
	(f)            The Trustee shall be under no obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers vested in it by this Indenture at the request or direction of any of the Holders of Notes unless such Holders shall have offered to the Trustee reasonable security or indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities which might be incurred by it in compliance with such request or direction.
	 
	(g)           The Trustee shall be entitled to rely on faxed or telecopy documents in the same manner and to the same extent that it may rely on original, manually signed documents.
	 
	(h)           The Trustee shall not be deemed to have notice of any Default or Event of Default unless a trust officer of the Trustee has actual knowledge thereof or unless written notice of any event which is in fact such a default is received by the Trustee at the Corporate Trust Office, and such notice references the Notes and this Indenture.
	 
	(i)            Except with respect to Section 4.1, the Trustee shall have no duty to inquire as to the performance of the Company with respect to the covenants in Article IV or Article V.
	 

	Section 7.3             Individual Rights of Trustee.
	 
	Section 7.4             Trustee�s Disclaimer.
	 
	Section 7.5             Notice of Defaults.
	 
	Section 7.6             Reports by Trustee to Holders.
	 
	Section 7.7             Compensation and Indemnity.
	 
	Section 7.8             Replacement of Trustee.
	 
	(a)           the Trustee fails to comply with Section 7.10;
	 
	(b)           the Trustee is adjudged a bankrupt or an insolvent or an order for relief is entered with respect to the Trustee under any Bankruptcy Law;
	 
	(c)           a Custodian or public officer takes charge of the Trustee or its property; or
	 
	(d)           the Trustee becomes incapable of acting.
	 

	Section 7.9             Successor Trustee by Merger, etc.
	 
	Section 7.10           Eligibility; Disqualification.
	 
	Section 7.11           Preferential Collection of Claims Against Company.
	 

	ARTICLE VIII. SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE; DEFEASANCE
	 
	Section 8.1             Satisfaction and Discharge of Indenture.
	 
	(a)           either
	 
	(i)            all Notes theretofore authenticated and delivered (other than Notes that have been destroyed, lost or stolen and that have been replaced or paid) have been delivered to the Trustee for cancellation; or
	 
	(ii)           all such Notes not theretofore delivered to the Trustee for cancellation
	 

	(b)           the Company has paid or caused to be paid all other sums payable hereunder by the Company; and
	 
	(c)           the Company has delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each stating that all conditions precedent herein provided for relating to the satisfaction and discharge of this Indenture have been complied with.
	 

	Section 8.2             Application of Trust Funds; Indemnification.
	 
	(a)           Subject to the provisions of Section 8.5, all money deposited with the Trustee pursuant to Section 8.1, all money and U.S. Government Obligations or Foreign Government Obligations deposited with the Trustee pursuant to Section 8.3 or 8.4 and all money received by the Trustee in respect of U.S. Government Obligations or Foreign Government Obligations deposited with the Trustee pursuant to Section 8.3 or 8.4, shall be held in trust and applied by it, in accordance with the provisions of the Notes and this Indenture, to the payment, either directly or through any Paying Agent (including the Company acting as its own Paying Agent) as the Trustee may determine, to the persons entitled thereto, of the principal and interest for whose payment such money has been deposited with or received by the Trustee or to make payments as contemplated by Sections 8.3 or 8.4.
	 
	(b)           The Company shall pay and shall indemnify the Trustee against any tax, fee or other charge imposed on or assessed against U.S. Government Obligations or Foreign Government Obligations deposited pursuant to Sections 8.3 or 8.4 or the interest and principal received in respect of such obligations other than any payable by or on behalf of Holders.
	 
	(c)           The Trustee shall deliver or pay to the Company from time to time upon Company Request any U.S. Government Obligations or Foreign Government Obligations or money held by it as provided in Sections 8.3 or 8.4 which, in the opinion of a
	nationally recognized firm of independent certified public accountants expressed in a written certification thereof delivered to the Trustee, are then in excess of the amount thereof which then would have been required to be deposited for the purpose for which such U.S. Government Obligations or Foreign Government Obligations or money were deposited or received.  This provision shall not authorize the sale by the Trustee of any U.S. Government Obligations or Foreign Government Obligations held under this Indenture.
	 

	Section 8.3             Legal Defeasance of Notes.
	 
	(a)           the rights of Noteholders to receive, from the trust funds described in subparagraph (d) hereof, payment of the principal of and each installment of principal of and interest on the outstanding Notes on the Stated Maturity of such principal or installment of principal or interest;
	 
	(b)           the provisions of Sections 2.3, 2.7, 2.14, 8.2, 8.3 and 8.5; and
	 
	(c)           the rights, powers, trust and immunities of the Trustee hereunder;
	 
	(d)           the Company shall have deposited or caused to be deposited irrevocably with the Trustee as trust funds in trust for the purpose of making the following payments, specifically pledged as security for and dedicated solely to the benefit of the Noteholders, cash in Dollars (or such other money or currencies as shall then be legal tender in the United States) and/or U.S. Government Obligations, which through the payment of interest and principal in respect thereof, in accordance with their terms, will provide (and without reinvestment and assuming no tax liability will be imposed on such Trustee), not later than one day before the due date of any payment of money, an amount in cash, sufficient, in the opinion of a nationally recognized firm of independent public accountants expressed in a written certification thereof delivered to the Trustee, to pay and discharge each installment of principal of and interest, if any, on all the Notes on the dates such installments of interest or principal are due;
	 
	(e)           such deposit will not result in a breach or violation of, or constitute a default under, this Indenture or any other agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which it is bound;
	(f)            no Default or Event of Default with respect to the Notes shall have occurred and be continuing on the date of such deposit or during the period ending on the 91st day after such date;
	 
	(g)           the Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that (i) the Company has received from, or there has been published by, the Internal Revenue Service a ruling, or (ii) since the date of execution of this Indenture, there has been a change in the applicable Federal income tax law, in either case to the effect that, and based thereon such Opinion of Counsel shall confirm that, the Holders of the Notes will not recognize income, gain or loss for Federal income tax purposes as a result of such deposit, defeasance and discharge and will be subject to Federal income tax on the same amount and in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such deposit, defeasance and discharge had not occurred;
	 
	(h)           the Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate stating that the deposit was not made by the Company with the intent of preferring the Holders of the Notes over any other creditors of the company or with the intent of defeating, hindering, delaying or defrauding any other creditors of the Company;
	 
	(i)            such deposit shall not result in the trust arising from such deposit constituting an investment company (as defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended), or such trust shall be qualified under such Act or exempt from regulation thereunder; and
	 
	(j)            the Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each stating that all conditions precedent provided for relating to the defeasance contemplated by this Section have been complied with.
	 

	Section 8.4             Covenant Defeasance.
	 
	(a)           With reference to this Section 8.4, the Company has deposited or caused to be irrevocably deposited (except as provided in Section 8.2(c)) with the Trustee as trust funds in trust, specifically pledged as security for, and dedicated solely to, the benefit of the Noteholders, cash in Dollars (or such other money or currencies as shall then be legal tender in the United States) and/or U.S. Government Obligations, which through the payment of interest and principal in respect thereof, in accordance with their terms, will
	provide (and without reinvestment and assuming no tax liability will be imposed on such Trustee), not later than one day before the due date of any payment of money, an amount in cash, sufficient, in the opinion of a nationally recognized firm of independent certified public accountants expressed in a written certification thereof delivered to the Trustee, to pay principal and interest, if any, on the Notes on the dates such installments of interest or principal are due;
	 
	(b)           Such deposit will not result in a breach or violation of, or constitute a default under, this Indenture or any other agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which it is bound;
	 
	(c)           No Default or Event of Default with respect to the Notes shall have occurred and be continuing on the date of such deposit or during the period ending on the 91st day after such date;
	 
	(d)           the Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Opinion of Counsel confirming that Holders of the Notes will not recognize income, gain or loss for federal income tax purposes as a result of such deposit and defeasance and will be subject to federal income tax on the same amounts, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such deposit and defeasance had not occurred;
	 
	(e)           the Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate stating the deposit was not made by the Company with the intent of preferring the Holders of the Notes over any other creditors of the Company or with the intent of defeating, hindering, delaying or defrauding any other creditors of the Company; and
	 
	(f)            The Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each stating that all conditions precedent herein provided for relating to the defeasance contemplated by this Section have been complied with.
	 

	Section 8.5             Repayment to Company.
	 

	ARTICLE IX. AMENDMENTS AND WAIVERS
	 
	Section 9.1             Without Consent of Holders.
	 
	(a)           to cure any ambiguity, defect or inconsistency;
	(b)           to comply with Article V;
	 
	(c)           to make any change that does not adversely affect the rights of any Noteholder;
	 
	(d)           to provide for the issuance of Additional Notes as permitted by this Indenture; or
	 
	(e)           to comply with requirements of the SEC in order to effect or maintain the qualification of this Indenture under the TIA.
	 

	Section 9.2             With Consent of Holders.
	 
	Section 9.3             Limitations.
	 
	(a)           reduce the amount of Notes whose Holders must consent to an amendment, supplement or waiver;
	(b)           reduce the rate of or extend the time for payment of interest (including default interest) on the Notes;
	 
	(c)           reduce the principal or change the Stated Maturity of the Notes or reduce the amount of, or postpone the date fixed for, redemption;
	 
	(d)           reduce the principal amount of discount securities payable upon acceleration of Maturity;
	 
	(e)           waive a Default or Event of Default in the payment of the principal of or interest, if any, on the Notes (except a rescission of acceleration of the Notes by the Holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the then outstanding Notes and a waiver of the payment default that resulted from such acceleration);
	 
	(f)            make the principal of or interest, if any, on the Notes payable in any currency other than that stated in the Note; or
	 
	(g)           make any change in Sections 6.8, 6.13, 9.3 (this sentence), or 10.15.
	 

	Section 9.4             Compliance with Trust Indenture Act.
	 
	Section 9.5             Revocation and Effect of Consents.
	 
	Section 9.6             Notation on or Exchange of Notes.
	 
	Section 9.7             Trustee Protected.
	 

	ARTICLE X. MISCELLANEOUS
	 
	Section 10.1           Trust Indenture Act Controls.
	 
	Section 10.2           Notices.
	 
	Section 10.3           Communication by Holders with Other Holders.
	 
	Section 10.4           Certificate and Opinion as to Conditions Precedent.
	 
	(a)           an Officers� Certificate stating that, in the opinion of the signers, all conditions precedent, if any, provided for in this Indenture relating to the proposed action have been complied with; and
	 
	(b)           an Opinion of Counsel stating that, in the opinion of such counsel, all such conditions precedent have been complied with.
	 

	Section 10.5           Statements Required in Certificate or Opinion.
	 
	(a)           a statement that the Person making such certificate or opinion has read such covenant or condition;
	 
	(b)           a brief statement as to the nature and scope of the examination or investigation upon which the statements or opinions contained in such certificate or opinion are based;
	 
	(c)           a statement that, in the opinion of such Person, he has made such examination or investigation as is necessary to enable him to express an informed opinion as to whether or not such covenant or condition has been complied with; and
	 
	(d)           a statement as to whether or not, in the opinion of such Person, such condition or covenant has been complied with.
	 

	Section 10.6           Rules by Trustee and Agents.
	 
	Section 10.7           Legal Holidays.
	 
	Section 10.8           No Recourse Against Others.
	 
	Section 10.9           Counterparts.
	 
	Section 10.10         Governing Laws.
	 
	Section 10.11         No Adverse Interpretation of Other Agreements.
	 
	Section 10.12         Successors.
	 
	Section 10.13         Severability.
	 
	Section 10.14         Table of Contents, Headings, Etc.
	 
	Section 10.15         Judgment Currency.
	 

	ARTICLE XI. SINKING FUNDS
	 
	Section 11.1           No Sinking Funds.
	 

	ARTICLE XII. GUARANTEE
	 
	Section 12.1           Guarantee.
	 
	12.1.1      Subject to Section 12.1.2, below, the Guarantor hereby irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees (such guarantee being the �Guarantee�) to each Holder of a Note authenticated and delivered by the Trustee and to the Trustee and its successors and assigns, irrespective of the validity and enforceability of this Indenture and the Notes hereunder, that: (i) the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes promptly will be paid in full when due, whether at the Maturity, by acceleration, call for redemption or otherwise, and interest on the overdue principal, premium, if any, and interest, if any, of the Notes, if lawful, and all other obligations of the Company to the Holders and the Trustee hereunder or thereunder will be promptly paid in full or performed, all in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, and (ii) in case of any extension of time of payment or renewal of any Notes or any of such other obligations, the same will be promptly paid in full when due or performed in accordance with the terms of the extension or renewal, whether at Stated Maturity, by acceleration or otherwise. Failing payment when due by the Company of any amount so guaranteed for whatever reason, the Guarantor shall be obligated to pay the same immediately.  The Guarantor hereby agrees that its obligations hereunder shall be unconditional, irrespective of the validity, regularity or enforceability of the Notes or this Indenture, the absence of any action to enforce the same, any waiver or consent by any Holder of the Notes with respect to any provisions hereof or thereof, the recovery of any judgment against the Company, any action to enforce the same or any other circumstance which might otherwise constitute a legal or equitable discharge or defense of a guarantor.  The Guarantor hereby waives diligence, presentment, demand of payment, filing of claims with a court in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company, any right to require a proceeding first against the Company, protest, notice and all demands whatsoever and covenants that this Guarantee shall not be discharged except by complete performance of the obligations contained in the Notes and this Indenture. If any Holder or the Trustee is required by any court or otherwise to return to the Company or any custodian, Trustee,
	liquidator or other similar official acting in relation to the Company, any amount paid by the Company to the Trustee or such Holder, this Guarantee, to the extent theretofore discharged, shall be reinstated in full force and effect. The Guarantor agrees that it shall not be entitled to any right of subrogation in relation to the Holders in respect of any obligations guaranteed hereby until payment in full of all obligations is guaranteed hereby.
	 
	12.1.2      It is the intention of the Guarantor and the Company that the obligations of the Guarantor hereunder shall be, but not in excess of, the maximum amount permitted by applicable law.  Accordingly, if the obligations in respect of the Guarantee would be annulled, avoided or subordinated to the creditors of the Guarantor by a court of competent jurisdiction in a proceeding actually pending before such court as a result of a determination both that such Guarantee was made without fair consideration and, immediately after giving effect thereto, the Guarantor was insolvent or unable to pay its debts as they mature or left with an unreasonably small capital, then the obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee shall be reduced by such court if such reduction would result in the avoidance of such annulment, avoidance or subordination; provided, however, that any reduction pursuant to this paragraph shall be made in the smallest amount as is strictly necessary to reach such result.  For purposes of this paragraph, �fair consideration,� �insolvency,� �unable to pay its debts as they mature,� �unreasonably small capital� and the effective times of reductions, if any, required by this paragraph shall be determined in accordance with applicable law.
	 
	12.1.3      The Guarantor shall be subrogated to all rights of the Holders against the Company in respect of any amounts paid by Guarantor pursuant to the provisions of the Guarantee or this Indenture; provided, however, that the Guarantor shall not be entitled to enforce or to receive any payments arising out of, or based upon, such right of subrogation until the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on all Notes issued hereunder shall have been paid in full.
	 

	Section 12.2           Execution and Delivery of Guarantee.
	 
	Section 12.3           Release of Guarantor.
	 
	(a)           the Company or the Guarantor has transferred all or substantially all of its properties and assets to any Person (whether by sale, merger or consolidation or otherwise), or has merged into or consolidated with another Person, pursuant to a transaction in compliance with this Indenture and:
	 
	(i)            the corporation to whom all or substantially all of the properties and assets of the Company or the Guarantor are transferred, or whom the Company or the Guarantor has merged into or consolidated with, has expressly assumed, by an indenture supplemental hereto, executed and delivered to the Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, all the obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee and this Indenture;
	 
	(ii)           immediately before and immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no Event of Default, and no event or condition which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event of Default, shall have occurred and be continuing; and
	 
	(iii)          the Guarantor has delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each stating that such consolidation, merger or transfer and such supplemental indenture comply with this Section 12.3 and that all conditions precedent herein provided for relating to such transaction have been complied with;
	 

	(b)           the Guarantor liquidates (other than pursuant to any Bankruptcy Law) and complies, if applicable, with the provisions of this Indenture; provided that if a Person and its Affiliates, if any, shall acquire all or substantially all of the assets of the Guarantor upon such liquidation the Guarantor shall liquidate only if:
	 
	(i)            the Person and each such Affiliate (or the common corporate parent of such Person and its Affiliates, if such Person and its Affiliates are wholly owned by such parent) which acquire or will acquire
	all or a portion of the assets of the Guarantor shall expressly assume, by an indenture supplemental hereto, executed and delivered to the Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, all the obligations of the Guarantor, under the Guarantee and this Indenture and such Person or any of such Affiliates (or such parent) shall be a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the United States or any State thereof or the District of Columbia;
	 
	(ii)           immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no Event of Default, and no event or condition which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event of Default, shall have occurred and be continuing; and
	 
	(iii)          the Guarantor has delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each stating that such liquidation and such supplemental indenture comply with this Section 12.3 and that all conditions precedent herein provided for relating to such transaction have been complied with; or
	 

	(c)           the Company ceases for any reason to be a �wholly owned subsidiary� of the Guarantor (as such term is defined in Rule 1-02(z) of the Regulation S-X promulgated by the SEC).
	 

	Section 12.4           When Guarantor May Merge, etc.
	 
	(a)           either the Guarantor shall be the continuing person, or the Person (if other than the Guarantor) formed by such consolidation or into or with which the Guarantor is merged or to which the assets of the Guarantor are transferred shall be a corporation organized and validly existing under the laws of the United States or any State thereof or the District of Columbia and shall expressly assume, by an indenture supplemental hereto, executed and delivered to the Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, all the obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee and this Indenture;
	(b)           immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no Event of Default, and no event or condition which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event of Default, shall have occurred and be continuing; and
	 
	(c)           the Guarantor has delivered to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each stating that such consolidation, merger, sale, conveyance or lease and such supplemental indenture comply with this Section 12.4 and that all conditions precedent herein provided for relating to such transaction have been complied with.
	 



	EX-4.2
	EX-10.1
	EX-31.1
	EX-31.2
	EX-32.1
	EX-32.2

